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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
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Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of te Securities Exchange Act of 1934
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Or
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incorporation or organization)

660 Madison Avenue, Suite 1700 10065
New York, NY (zip code)
(Address of principal executive offices)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area c(®IF) 672-9100

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(IhefAct:
Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
common stock, $.0001 par value Nasdaq Global Market

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefAct:
None
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Note—Checking the box above will not relieve any regist required to file reports pursuant to SectiBroi 15(d) of the Exchange Act from their obligaso
under those Sections.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @b filed all reports required to be filed by Secti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4188ring
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter patiatithe registrant was required to file such reg)pand (2) has been subject to such filing nesments for
the past 90 days. Yex] No[

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant isnitted electronically and posted on its corpo¥absite, if any, every Interactive Data File reqdito be
submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of R&gol&-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the pding 12 months (or for such shorter period that th
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registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or imfsation statements incorporated by reference inlRaf this Form 10-K/A or any amendment to tiierm
10-K/A. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlazge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer or a smaller reporting comp&se
definition of “large accelerated filer”, “acceleedtfiler” and “smaller reporting company” in Rulglit2 of the Exchange Act. (check one): Large Aaedésl

Filer O Accelerated FilerxI Non-Accelerated Filerd Smaller Reporting Compariy

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExge Act) Yes[l No
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The aggregate market value of the voting and ndmg@ommon stock held by non-affiliates of theisérgnt, based upon the closing sale price of tmeroon
stock on June 30, 2014 as reported on the Nasd#zpQVarket was approximately $150,882,115.

As of February 17, 2015 the registrant had outstan®3,504,296 shares of common stock.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following document is incorporated herein bfgrence:

Document Parts Into Which Incorporated
Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2015 Annual Part Il
Meeting of Stockholders
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Iltem 1. Business

Certain statements in this Annual Report on ForrKl@hcluding certain statements contained in “Besis” and “Managemenst’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &Results of Operations,” constitute “forward-lookistatementsivithin the meaning «
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as ameencand Section 21E of the Securities Exchangeof934, as amended, includ
statements relating to the progress of SIGA's adgreknt programs and timelines for bringing prodtetmarket, the enforceability of SIG,
contract (the “BARDA Contract”) with the U.S. Biomlieal Advanced Research and Development AuthofiBARDA”), the appeal «
judgment of the Delaware Court of Chancery awarddgrmAthene, Inc.“PharmAthene”)expectation damages, and the administratic
SIGA's chapter 11 case. The words or phrases “edn“&xpects,” “may affect,” “may depend,” “beliesg “estimate,” “project’and simila
words and phrases are intended to identify suchidiat-looking statements. Such forwdamking statements are subject to various knowr
unknown risks and uncertainties and SIGA cautioos that any forwardeoking information provided by or on behalf of $13s not ¢
guarantee of future performance. SIGA’s actualltesould differ materially from those anticipatleyg such forwardeoking statements due
a number of factors, some of which are beyond SEa@dntrol, including, but not limited to, (i) thésk that potential products that apg
promising to SIGA or its collaborators cannot bewh to be efficacious or safe in subsequentgtiréeal or clinical trials, (ii) the risk th
SIGA or its collaborators will not obtain appropgéaor necessary governmental approvals to marlksetlor other potential products, (iii)
risk that SIGA may not be able to obtain anticigafending for its development projects or otherdexkfunding, including from anticipat
governmental contracts and grants (iv) the risk ®A may not complete performance under the BARD@&ntract on schedule or
accordance with contractual terms, (v) the risk Bi&A may not be able to secure or enforce swfficiegal rights in its products, includ
intellectual property protection, (vi) the risk tremy challenge to SIGA’patent and other property rights, if adverselgigeined, could affe
SIGA'’s business and, even if determined favorabbyld be costly, (vii) the risk that regulatory végments applicable to SIG#&’product
may result in the need for further or additionatiteg or documentation that will delay or preveeeldng or obtaining needed approval
market these products, (viii) the risk that onemarre protests could be filed and upheld in wholengrart or other governmental action tal
in either case leading to a delay of performancgeurthe BARDA Contract or other governmental castga(ix) the risk that the BARD
Contract is modified or canceled at the requesequirement of the U.S. government, (x) the risk the volatile and competitive nature of
biotechnology industry may hamper SIGAéfforts to develop or market its products, (ki trisk that changes in domestic and for
economic and market conditions may affect SI&ability to advance its research or may affegpitglucts adversely, (xii) the effect of fede
state, and foreign regulation, including drug regioh and international trade regulation, on Sli&Ausinesses, (xiii) the risk that SIG
outstanding indebtedness or chapter 11 case mag inalore difficult to obtain additional financinxiv) the risk that the U.S. government’
responses (including inaction) to the national glabal economic situation may affect SIGAbusiness adversely, (xv) the risk that SI(
internal controls will not be effective in detedinr preventing a misstatement in SIGA's finanstatements, (xvi) the risk that some amo
received and recorded as deferred revenue ultijnately not be recognized as revenue, (xvii) the tielt any appeal of the pasmani
opinion by the Delaware Court of Chancery in otigdition with PharmAthene may not be successfultaatisuch postemand opinion will b
upheld in whole or in part, or that an appeal b§&Imay result in a different, less favorable rulihgt could materially and adversely af
SIGA, (xviii) the risk that an appeal may resultartended and expensive litigation, (xix) the ris&t continued litigation with PharmAthe
may impede SIGA's efforts to continue to grow, d&xx) the cost and expense and other inherent waingrtattendant to SIGA's chapter
case, including if and when a plan of reorganizatidll be confirmed and consummated and the prowsiof any such plan of reorganizat
All such forwardlooking statements are current only as of the aaewnhich such statements were made. SIGA does md¢rtake an
obligation to update publicly any forwatdeking statement to reflect events or circumstaraier the date on which any such stateme
made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipatezhts.

Overview

SIGA Technologies, Inc. is referred to throughdiss teport as “SIGA,” “the Company,” “we” or “us.”

We are a company specializing in the developmedtcammercialization of solutions for serious unmetdical needs and biothre:
Our lead product is Tecovirimat, also known as 96&, an orally administered antiviral drug that targetdopoxviruses. While Tecovirinr
is not yet licensed as safe or effective by the. B&d & Drug Administration, it is a novel smatielecule drug that is being delivered to
Strategic National Stockpile under Project BioSthiel

BARDA Contract - Tecovirimat also known as ST-246®
On May 13, 2011, SIGA signed a contract with BARQthe “BARDA Contract”) pursuant to which SIGA agreed to deliver
million courses of Tecovirimat to the U.S. Stratefjiational Stockpile (“Strategic Stockpile’the BARDA Contract is worth approximat

$463 million, including $409.8 million for the mafagture and delivery of 1.7 million courses of
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Tecovirimat and $54 million of potential reimbursemts related to development and supportive a@wiihe “Base Contract’)n addition tc
the Base Contract, the BARDA Contract also contaimsous options that are exercisable at BAR®Aiscretion. The BARDA Contre
expires in September 2020.

Under the Base Contract with BARDA, BARDA has agirée buy from SIGA 1.7 million courses of TecoviamAdditionally, SIG/
expects to contribute to BARDA 300,000 coursesetdvirimat at no additional cost to BARDA

For courses of Tecovirimat that are physicallydaied to the Strategic Stockpile, the Company Bpecement obligations, at no ¢
to BARDA, in the event that the final version ofcbeirimat approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Adstiaition (the* FDA " ) is differen
from any course of Tecovirimat that has been dedgeo the Strategic Stockpile or if Tecovirimatedanot meet any specified label clai
fails release testing or does not meet 38 montlnexeriod (from time of delivery to the Strateditockpile), or if Tecovirimat is recalled
deemed to be recalled for any reason.

The Company is eligible for a $102.5 million holddx payment from BARDA if the FDA approves Tecawiat, either in th
currently delivered form or in a different form. lhold back payment is part of the $409.8 millidrpayments that can be received by
Company for the manufacture and delivery of 1.7iomlcourses of Tecovirimat. If the approved vensad Tecovirimat is different from tho
delivered to the Strategic Stockpile, then the Canyps obligated to replace the previously delidereurses, at no additional cost, to BARI
If the final approved version of Tecovirimat diffefrom those delivered, the $102.5 million hold lbb@ayment would not be paid until -
obligation to replace the previously delivered pretcht no additional cost is satisfied.

The Base Contract with BARDA includes $409.8 miiliof payments, inclusive of upfront payments antbstone payments, that
be received by the Company for the manufacturedsfigery of 1.7 million courses of Tecovirimat thete to be purchased by BARDA
physically delivered to the Strategic StockpileeThming and amount of specific payments to the gamy are based on splyment tranchi
provided for in the Base Contract. As of Decemhkkr2014, the Company has received $198.3 milliotieuthe Base Contract related to
manufacture and physical delivery of courses ofoVganat. Included in this amount are a $41 milliadvance payment in 2011 for
completion of certain planning and preparatory\étitis related to the Base Contract, a $12.3 nnillinilestone payment in 2012 for
completion of the product labeling strategy for @@dmat, a $8.2 million milestone payment in 2008 the completion of the commerc
validation campaign for Tecovirimat, and $136.8liorl of payments following physical deliveries a8Imillion courses of Tecovirimat to t
Strategic Stockpile.

The Company is eligible to receive an additional 8 million under the Base Contract for the maotufiee, delivery and purchase
BARDA of courses of Tecovirimat. Included in thimaunt are: $88.5 million of payments following dilshal future physical deliveries
Tecovirimat to the Strategic Stockpile; a $20.5lionl milestone payment for successful submissiotheoFDA of a complete application
Tecovirimat regulatory approval; and a $102.5 willihold back payment, which represents a 25% hatk lon the $409.8 million of to
payments tied to the manufacture and delivery @frillion courses of Tecovirimat that are to beghased by BARDA. The $102.5 milli
hold back payment would be triggered by FDA appfafaTecovirimat, as long as the Company does rateh as described below
continuing product replacement obligation to BARDA.

Product deliveries of Tecovirimat subsequent todbaimer 31, 2014 are expected to be at a provistosdge of 600 mg administe
twice per day (1,200 mg per day). This is a chang the provisional dosage that was in effect whesduct deliveries were made in 2
and 2014 (600 mg per day). In 2013 and 2014, tbeigipnal dosage of courses delivered to the Sj@tstockpile was 600 mg administe
once a day. The change in the provisional dosafgased on FDA guidance received by the Compan@1d 2subsequent to the delivery of
million courses of Tecovirimat. Based on the cutrprovisional dosage of 600 mg administered twiee gay (1,200 mg per day), Sl(
currently expects to supplement previously delidezeurses of Tecovirimat, at no additional coBARDA, with additional dosages so that
of the courses previously delivered to BARDA wiél bt the new provisional dosage. The Company andBA have agreed to an amendn
(the “BARDA Amendment”of the BARDA Contract to reflect the foregoing, whimodification is subject to the approval of thenBruptc
Court (as defined below). The Company expectsdaarisignificant incremental costs when previousjivetred courses are supplemented.
provisional dosage for Tecovirimat may be subjecdditional changes in the future based on FDAlange.

The Base Contract with BARDA includes $54 millioh gmtential reimbursement for development and supgo activities. Thes
activities are reimbursed primarily on a cp#is basis after each individual activity is authed by BARDA and after costs are incurred. A
December 31, 2014, the Company has received $8liombf reimbursement payments under the Base i@ontfor development a
supportive activities.

The BARDA Contract also separately contains $118illon of options that, if exercised by BARDA: winlifund development ai
supportive activities such as work on pediatric gadatric formulations of the drug as well as ag&ecovirimat
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for smallpox prophylaxis; would result in a $50 linih payment to the Company for FDA approval fotesmsion to 84nonth expiry fo
Tecovirimat (from 38 month expiry as required ire tBase Contract); and/or would fund productionteslaactivities such as warbast
manufacturing. As of December 31, 2014, BARDA hasexercised any options and may not exercise atigres in the future. These optic
are exercisable by BARDA in its sole discretion.

The Company has been actively pursuing FDA approiv&kcovirimat for purposes of receiving the $B0iillion hold back payme
(discussed above) as well as for strategic purpd$esCompany is pursuing FDA approval under thrértel rule.” As such, the Company t
completed multiple monkeypox and variola efficadydées in norhuman primates and is coordinating and conductaigbitpox efficac
studies in rabbits. In addition to coordinating azmhducting efficacy studies in rabbits, the Conypanalso finalizing the protocol for
expanded clinical human safety trial, in whichtfipatient dosing is expected in the second or thirarter of 2015. The Company believes
the successful completion of an expanded clinicmhdin safety study would represent the last magp prior to the filing of a New Drt
Application (“NDA”) for Tecovirimat with the FDA. B5A is targeting 184 months (from first patient dosing) for completiof testing an
analysis of data for the expanded clinical safgty.tThis clinical trial is expected to providesestial human safety data in support of an I
filing. Notwithstanding, there can be no assurahe¢ FDA will approve an NDA for Tecovirimat.

At the point of FDA approval of an NDA for Tecovirat, the Company would be able to address replateoi#igations, if an
relating to courses of Tecovirimat that have bedlivdred to the Strategic Stockpile.

As discussed in Item 3, “Legal Proceedinghg amount of cash SIGA will retain pursuant to BARDA Contract may be advers
affected by the outcome of PharmAthenattion against SIGA. Additionally, as discussetbly, the Company has filed a Motion to ass
the BARDA Contract under the provisions of the Baupkcy Code. The Motion currently is scheduled ¢chieard by the Bankruptcy Court
March 17, 2015.

Lead Product - Tecovirimat™ also known as St-246®

SIGA believes that Tecovirimat is among the firstvnsmallmolecule drugs delivered to the Strategic Stockpiider the Proje
BioShield Act of 2004 (“Project BioShield"Y.ecovirimat is an investigational product that @& ourrently approved by the FDA as a treatr
of smallpox or any other indication. Neverthelgbs, FDA has designated Tecovirimat for “fast-trastdtus, creating a path for expedited F
review and eventual regulatory approval. Tecovitiisaa novel, patented drug that is easy to stoa@sport and administer. There coulc
several uses for an effective smallpox antiviraigdrto reduce mortality and morbidity in those otésl with the smallpox virus, to protect
nonimmune who risk developing smallpox following viresposure, and as an adjunct to the smallpox vadniorder to reduce the freque
of serious adverse events due to the live virud fsevaccination.

Tecovirimat’'s regulatory path, and SIGAdevelopment activities related to Tecovirimag araterially guided by the results of
FDA Advisory Committee meeting that was convene®é@tember 2011 (the “Advisory CommitteeThe Advisory Committee was convel
to consider proposals for using a surrogate ortkeipas model and to determine what elements of“dr@mal rule” constitute “enough”
evidence for approval of a drug for the treatmensmallpox. The Advisory Committeg’ recommendation confirmed that the monkey
rabbitpox and ectromelia models, especially in coation, could suitably provide appropriate eviderd efficacy for treatment of smallpi
Subsequent to the Advisory Committee, SIGA hascdx$tantive meetings and communications with th& Fegarding the regulatory path
Tecovirimat. Development activities for Tecovirinee based on the Advisory Commitieeecommendation, and take into account mee
and communications with the FDA.

Tecovirimat has Orphan Drug designation for both titeatment and prevention of smallpox, and in 2#&0, Tecovirimat receiv
Orphan Drug designation for the broader indicatidrireatment of orthopoxvirus infections (vaccimi@ariola, monkeypox and cowpox).
Investigational New Drug (“IND™application for an intravenous (IV) formulation B&covirimat was filed with FDA in September 20121
SIGA received a safe to proceed letter from FDAlavember 2012 along with a letter granting fastkratatus.

Chapter 11 Filing

On September 16, 2014 (the “Petition Datéhe Company filed a voluntary petition for relieider chapter 11 of Title 11 of t
United States Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”) in thated States Bankruptcy Court for the Southernrigisbf New York (the Bankruptc
Court”) chapter 11 Case Number 14-12623 (SHL). Tbhenpany is continuing to operate its business ‘@eltor-in-possessiont accordanc
with the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcyd€o
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The Company commenced the chapter 11 case to peeased to ensure its ability satisfy its commitnsambder the BARDA Contre
and to preserve its operations, which likely wolde been jeopardized by the enforcement of a jedgistemming from the litigation wi
PharmAthene (see Note 14 to the financial stateshewthile operating as a debtorfiossession under chapter 11, the Company is pg
what it believes is a meritorious appeal of theabare Court of Chancery Final Order and Judgmentédined below), without the neces
of posting a bond.

Administration of Chapter 11 Cas

On September 17, 2014, the Company received Batdyrupourt approval of certain “first-daytotions, which preserved 1
Company's ability to continue operations withoueiruption in chapter 11. As part of the “first-dayotions, the Company received appr:
to pay or otherwise honor certain gretition obligations generally designed to supploet Company's operations. Additionally, the Bankey
Court confirmed the Company's authority to paygoods and services received post-petition in theary course of business.

In October 2014, the U.S Trustee for the southeistribt of New York (the “U.S. Trustee"@ppointed an official committee
unsecured creditors (the “UCC"he UCC has a right to be heard on any issue irCthrapany's chapter 11 case. There can be no ase
that the UCC will support the Company's positionswatters to be presented to the Bankruptcy Cauhe future or with respect to any plau
reorganization, when proposed.

As part of the chapter 11 case, the Company hameet, pursuant to Bankruptcy Court authorizatiegal and other professionals
advise the Company in connection with the admiaigin of its chapter 11 case and its litigationhwRharmAthene, and certain ot
professionals to provide services and advice inditnary course business. From time to time, then@any may seek Bankruptcy Cc
approval to retain additional professionals.

Pursuant to an order of the Bankruptcy Court, d@etbber 28, 2014, the Company was authorized yor@anbursable preetitior
obligations to certain service providers that arléyfreimbursable by BARDA pursuant to the BARDA i@act. Pursuant to an order of
Bankruptcy Court, dated January 14, 2015, the Compeas authorized to satisfy a fulbgcured term loan provided by General Ele
Capital Corporation in the approximate amount aB$illion. Such amount, and related fees, was pgithe Company on January 16, 2
and all liens securing the credit facility wereeiaeded.

On January 29, 2015, the Company filed a motiorh wie Bankruptcy Court to assume the BARDA Conjfrastamended by t
BARDA Amendment, under the provisions of the Bamitcy Code. If the motion is granted, the partisghts and obligations under 1
BARDA Contract, as so amended, will continue withaay impact arising from SIGA’filing for relief under chapter 11 of the Bankicy
Code. The Motion currently is scheduled to be atergid by the Bankruptcy Court on March 17, 2015.

Plan of Reorganizatior

The Company has not yet filed a plan of reorgamirzatith the Bankruptcy Court. The Company hasdkelusive right to file a ple
of reorganization through and including May14, 2048d to solicit votes on such a plan if filed lgcls date through and including July
2015, subject to the ability of parties in intertsfile motions seeking to terminate the Compaeyausive periods, as well as the Compe
right to seek further extensions of such periodee Tompany has a right to seek further extensiérssich exclusive periods, subject to
statutory limit of 18 months from the Petition Dattethe case of filing a plan and 20 months in¢hse of soliciting and obtaining accepta
of such a plan. The implementation of a plan ofganization is subject to confirmation of the ptanthe Bankruptcy Court in accordance \
the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, and the oenice of the effective date under the plan. Ag thme, there is no certainty as to when
a plan will be filed, the provisions of a plan (uding provisions with respect to the treatmenpadpetition claims and equity interests)
whether a plan will be confirmed and become effecti

Other Matters Related to the Chapter 11 Case

On September 16, 2014, the Company received a fetim the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC asserting thiadsed on the Comparsy’
chapter 11 filing, the Company no longer met thaticwing listing requirements necessary to mainitsnlisting on the NASDAQ Sto«
Market. The Company appealed such assertion. Oob®ctl6, 2014, representatives of the Company apgpezsefore the NASDAQ Sto
Market LLC’s hearings panel to present the Compsuaypeal, asking the panel to exercise its distrdt allow the Company to maintain
listing for up to five additional months (the linaf the paneB discretion at that time). On October 29, 2014,Glompany received the decis
of the NASDAQ hearings panel. The NASDAQ hearingsgd decided that the Company’s common stock erfimon Stock”would remail
listed, subject to (i) the Company providing the S3AQ hearings panel with confidential updates rémay the status of the PharmAth
litigation, public disclosures
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relating to such litigation and any possible judgtend (ii) the Company, on or before March 161%20emerging from chapter 11 ¢
evidencing compliance with all requirements fotialilisting on the NASDAQ Stock Market. The NASDAIGgarings panel also stated th
reserved the right to reconsider its determinabiesed upon any event, condition or circumstanceekiats or develops that would, in
opinion of the panel, make continued listing of empanys securities on the NASDAQ Stock Market inadvisatteunwarranted. Tl
Company does not expect to emerge from bankruptcgrdefore March 16, 2015. Accordingly, there banno assurance that the Comg
will meet the conditions required by the NASDAQ Hiegs panel and maintain the listing of its Comn&tack on NASDAQ.

PharmAthene Litigation

On August 8, 2014, the Delaware Court of Chancesyed its Remand Opinion and related order initigation initiated against ti
Company in 2006 by PharmAthene. In the Remand Opjnthe Delaware Court of Chancery determined, @mother things, th
PharmAthene is entitled to a lump sum damages afearitis lost profit related to Tecovirimat, withterest and fees, based on United S
government purchases of the Company's smallpox aiegedly anticipated as of December 2006. Onagnib, 2015, the Delaware Cour
Chancery entered its Final Order and Judgment amgrigdharmAthene approximately $195 million, inchgliprejudgment interest up
January 15, 2015 (the “Outstanding Judgmeritje Company's pending chapter 11 case preventsnRllaene from taking any enforcem
action at this time and also permits the Compaagjgeal of the Outstanding Judgment to go forwarthowit the need to post a bond.
January 16, 2015, the Company filed a notice okappf the Outstanding Judgment.

Manufacturing

SIGA does not have a manufacturing infrastructume @oes not intend to develop one for the manufaaifi Tecovirimat. SIGA relie
on and uses third parties known as Contract Maturfi;xg Organizations (“CMOs™o procure commercial raw materials and suppliad, te
manufacture Tecovirimat. SIGA's CMOs apply methadd controls in facilities that are used for maotifeing, processing, packaging, test
analyzing and holding pharmaceuticals which confdancurrent good manufacturing practices (“cGMRHe standard set by FDA -
manufacture of pharmaceuticals intended for hunsan u

For the manufacture of Tecovirimat, the Companysubke following CMOs: Albemarle Corporation (“Albantke”); Powdersize, Inc.
(“Powdersize”), and Catalent Pharma Solutions LLCafalent”).

In August, 2011, SIGA entered into an agreemenh Wibemarle. Albemarle manufactures, tests and Iggppactive pharmaceutic
ingredient (“API1”) for use in Tecovirimat. SIGA agreed that, during term of the agreement, SIGA will purchase 75%tinternal an
external API requirements from Albemarle at a fixgtte per kilogram. There is no minimum amoun®&fl kilograms that must be usec
acquired by SIGA. The following events are excludiein the “75% API"requirement: (i) if a contract entered into by SI®k the sale ¢
final drug product (“FDP”Yyequires that the product used as the API for 2R be manufactured outside the U.S. and Albenisdawilling
or unable to subcontract such manufacture to & parparties that meet the terms of the agreengignif a contract entered into by SIGA 1
the sale of FDP in an intravenous formulation respidifferent specifications than those provideduioder the agreement and the partie:
not able to reach agreement on the necessary chdogie specifications or on pricing, or (iii)ifl®emarle fails to perform any of
obligations under the agreement and does not awate failure within 30 days of written notice fronhG3\. Albemarle may raise or lower 1
unit price of API due to increases or decreaseavinmaterial costs in February 2014, and upon &é2amonth anniversary date thereafter,
written notice to SIGA no less than 30 days prmmahy such date. SIGA is required to pay Albemaiithin 45 days of their invoice da
Albemarle is required to deliver API that conformigh specifications outlined in the agreement; @@mpany is not required to pay for /
that does not meet specifications. The CompanylB@gays to reject any shipments that do not npetiications or are damaged. In addi
to receiving payments for API deliveries, Albemadealso paid for related services, such as stghidisting. The Compang’agreement wi
Albemarle continues for an initial term that is tbager of the period ending on December 31, 20lthelast calendar day of the year in wi
the Company completes delivery of 1.7 million cegref Tecovirimat under the BARDA Contract. Theteafthe parties will have a 90 ¢
period prior to the termination date or anticipatedmnination date to negotiate a three-year renewalgreed-upon pricing. If a thrgea
renewal is not agreed upon, then the existing ageeé will continue for one year and then termin&®a&rties may terminate the agreement |
60 days written notice prior to the expiration loé tinitial term or the renewal term in the evenbr#ach, if such breach is not cured withir
60 days prior written notice.

Powdersize micronizes and tests API for use in Vigoosat. The Companyg agreement with Powdersize continues for an iniian
that is the longer of the period ending on (i) AsiglL5, 2014 or (ii) the date the Company has fatfiits delivery obligations under the BARI
Contract. Thereafter, this agreement may be renewguatovided for in such agreement.
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Catalent granulates, encapsulates, tests and paxKigcovirimat. Catalent swontracts the packaging services to Pack:
Coordinators, Inc., a CMO that purchased Catadgpdickaging business. In addition, Catalent prevavices related to commercial stak
testing of drug product and preparation for taldattability and trend analysis for each time poliite Company agreement with Catals
continues for an initial term that is the longertbé period ending December 15, 2014 or the daeCbmpany has fulfilled its delive
obligations under the BARDA Contract. Thereafthis agreement may be renewed as provided for in ageeement.

Any manufacturing failures or delays by SIGA’s CM@msild cause delays in delivery of Tecovirimat itite Strategic Stockpile.
Market for Biological Defense Programs

The market for biodefense countermeasures refiertinued awareness of the threat of global texna biowarfare activity. The U.
government is the largest source of development puodurement funding for academic institutions dvidpharmaceutical compan
conducting biodefense research or developing vascimantinfectives and immunotherapies directed at poterdgents of bioterror
biowarfare. U.S. government spending on biodefgmegrams includes development funding awarded byNétional Institute of Allergy a1
Infectious Diseases, BARDA and Department of DedefiBoD”), and procurement of countermeasures by BARDA, theteZe for Diseas
Control and Prevention (“CDC”) and DoD.

Project BioShield, which became law in 2004, autte® the procurement of countermeasures for biokdgchemical, radiological a
nuclear attacks for the Strategic Stockpile, whik national repository of medical assets and oareasures designed to provide fed
state and local public health agencies with medscgplies needed to treat and protect those affduyeterrorist attacks, natural disast
industrial accidents and other public health emecigps. Project BioShield initially provided apprgtions of $5.6 billion to be expended ¢
ten years. The initial $5.6 billion appropriatiorpged on September 30, 2013. In 2013, Congreasgheszed Project BioShield and in 20
the Appropriations Act for Fiscal Year 2014 prowdden annual appropriation of $670 million for aities related to countering biological ¢
other threats to civilian populations, of which $2%illion was set aside for the procurement of ¢ermeasures and $415 million was set ¢
for advanced research and development and adnaivgtrexpenses of BARDA. The Fiscal Year 2015 OmsilBill outlines an annu
appropriation of $670 million for activities relatéo countering biological and other threats talieim populations, of which $255 million h
been set aside for procurement and $415 millionafbranced development and administrative expedgsesdditional $157 million is als
included in the Fiscal Year 2015 Omnibus bill fokBBDA advanced development of Ebola countermeasures.

In addition to the U.S. government, we believe tbtiter potential additional markets for the salebmfdefense countermeast
include:

» foreign governments, including both defense andiptiealth agencie

» state and local governments, which may be intedeistehese products to protect, among others, eenesgresponders, such
police, fire and emergency medical personnel;

* healthcare providers, including hospitals and ctinani
* nongovernmental organizations and multinational congmrincluding transportation and security comps
Product Candidate

Dengue fever, an acute febrile disease characteligyea sudden onset of fever and an abnormally initgrnal body temperature,
caused by one of four serotypes of dengue virdbeofyenus Flavivirus. Dengue fever can be classdgclassical dengue fever, severe de
(which includes the life threatening dengue henaggit fever syndrome), or dengue shock syndromegderirus may be transmitted via
bite of an infected\edes aegypthosquito, which is found in tropical and sub-tr@bieegions around the world.

Each year, regional epidemics of dengue fever caigificant morbidity and mortality. Regional epidics also cause soc
disruption and substantial economic burden in #éfareas, in part due to increased hospitalizatites and necessary mosquito control.
World Health Organization estimates that forty patoof the world's population is at risk with atimated 50100 million people infected wi
the virus each year. There is currently no appreuaiviral or vaccine for the treatment or preventof denguewnediated disease. We hi
identified a lead pretinical drug candidate with activity against aluf serotypes of virus and which has shown effidacg murine model
disease.




Table of Contents
We are seeking partners for our Dengue Antivirabdeandidate to support further development agtivit
Research Agreements

We obtain funding in the form of grants or contsaftom various agencies of the U.S. governmentugapsrt our research a
development activities. Currently, in addition be tBARDA Contract, we have one contract and onatgrith varying expiration dates throt
February 2018 that provide for potential future reggite research and development funding for spqmiGijects of approximately $9.2 millic
This amount includes, among other things, optidreg may or may not be exercised at the U.S. goventim discretion. Because of -
Optimization Program (see Note 13 to the finansiatements), we may not utilize all available fundser the grant covering the pohnical
drug candidate. Moreover, the contracts and g@origain customary terms and conditions and incthdeJ.S. governmerd’right to termina
or restructure a grant for convenience at any tWie.have entered into the following collaboratiesearch arrangements and contracts:

Smallpox Antiviral Drug Development

In 2006, we were awarded a contract from the Natitwstitute of Health (“NIH"}totaling approximately $21 million for the contird
development of SP46, now also known as Tecovirimat. In 2008, we evawarded a $55.1 million contract from NIH to sogpthe
development of additional formulations and orthopetated indications for S246. In 2008, NIH increased an existing $16.5 wrillcontrac
to $20.0 million. In August 2011, these contracwrevrestructured and transferred to BARDA so tHat.@ million was eligible to cov
performance through February 2013. Subsequentypémiod of performance for a portion of the rerimgrfunds available under the cont
was extended to February 2018. As of December@1l4,256.6 million remains available to us underréstructured contract.

In September 2009, we received a three-year, $8l@mPhase Il grant from NIH to fund the contirldevelopment of SP46 fol
the treatment of smallpox vaccine-related adveveats. This grant concluded in February 2013.

Dengue Antiviral Drug Developmer

In May 2011, we received aygar grant of $6.5 million from NIH to continue filing for the development of antiviral drugs
dengue. As of December 31, 2014, there is $2.6amilavailable under this grant. As described imité, “Managemens Discussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gqiems,” in connection with the Optimization Prograwe have restricted our eadyage
drug discovery efforts and thus may not utilize enial amounts of available funds under this grant.

Anti-arenavirus Drug Development

In August 2011, we received ay®ar grant of $7.7 million from NIH to continue fling for the development of antiviral drugs
Lassa fever virus. In connection with the Optimi@atProgram, in August 2014, the Company enter&glan asset purchase agreement tc
and transfer its pre-clinical Ansirenavirus assets and research and developmerihétakFour, LLC, an unrelated party (see Note &t
financial statements).

We receive cash payments from NIH and BARDA on antinly basis, as services are performed or goodpuanehased. Our curre
contract and grant, other than the BARDA Contrdotnot include milestone payments. Amounts undetract and grant agreements are
guaranteed and can be canceled at any time fooneasich as noperformance or convenience of the U.S. governmedt i canceled, w
will not receive funds for additional work undeethgreements.

For a discussion of research and development egpesse Item 7, “ManagemeDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condi
and Results of Operations.”

Competition

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical industries doaracterized by rapidly evolving technology antemse competition. O
competitors include most of the major pharmaceltompanies, each of which has financial, technécal marketing resources significa
greater than ours. Biotechnology and other pharota@d competitors in the biodefense space inclbdé,are not limited to, Bavarian Nor
AS, Chimerix Inc., PharmAthene, Inc., and Emerd&niSolutions. Academic institutions, governmentgémacies and other public and priv
research organizations are also conducting resesutivities and seeking patent protection and mayroercialize products on their own
through joint ventures.
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Tecovirimat faces significant competition for U.§overnment funding for both development and praoam of medic:
countermeasures for biological, chemical, radialabiand nuclear threats, diagnostic testing systemd other emergency prepared
countermeasures.

Our commercial opportunities could be reduced oniehted if our competitors develop and commerz&lproducts that are sa
more effective, have fewer side effects, are morevenient or are less expensive than productsst@ahay develop. In addition, we may no
able to compete effectively if our product candégato not satisfy governmental procurement requrgs) particularly requirements of
U.S. government with respect to biodefense products

Human Resources and Research Facilities

As of February 16, 2015, we had 34 fiilhe employees. None of our employees are coveyeddmllective bargaining agreement,
we consider our employee relations to be good. @search and development facilities are locate@adnvallis, Oregon, where we lei
approximately 32,800 square feet under a leaseeagnet signed in January 2007, as amended in May, 20 which expires in Decem
2017.

Intellectual Property and Proprietary Rights

SIGA’s commercial success will depend in part on itéitglib obtain and maintain patent protection ft proprietary technologie
drug targets, and potential products and to pres#svtrade secrets. Because of the substantigtHeof time and expense associated
bringing potential products through the developmaamd regulatory clearance processes to reach thieetpkace, the pharmaceutical indu
places considerable importance on obtaining patedt trade secret protection. The patent positidnsharmaceutical and biotechnolc
companies can be highly uncertain and involve cempégal and factual questions. No consistent palegarding the breadth of clai
allowed in biotechnology patents has emerged te. detcordingly, SIGA cannot predict the type anteek of claims allowed in these patents.

SIGA also relies upon trade secret protection terconfidential and proprietary information. No wssice can be given that ot

companies will not independently develop substintequivalent proprietary information and techréguor otherwise gain access to SIGA’

trade secrets or that SIGA can meaningfully protsdrade secrets.

SIGA exclusively owns its key patent portfolio, whirelates to its leading drug candidate ZBI6- (Tecovirimat). SIGA's key patt
portfolio currently consists of seven U.S. utilggtents, eight issued foreign patents, three Uilfy yatent applications, two international P
patent applications and 48 foreign patent appbeceti
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The principal and material issued patents covefiegpvirimat are described in the table below.

Patent Number Country Protection Conferred | Bate Expiration Date
US 7737168 United States  Method of treating grttxeirus infection with ST-246 June 15, 2010 My 027
US 7687641 United States  Method of manufactuBime246 March 30, 2010 September 27, 2024
Composition of matter for the ST-246 compound and
US 8124643 United States pharmaceutical composition containing ST-246 Faiyr28, 2012 June 18, 2024
Pharmaceutical compositions and unit dosage foontaming ST-
US 8039504 United States 246 October 18, 2010 July 23, 2027
US 7956197 United States  Method of manufactuime?46 June 7, 2011 June 18, 2024
Pharmaceutical compositions containing a mixtureashpounds
US 8530509 United States including ST-246 September 10, 2013 June 18, 2024
Method of treating orthopoxvirus infection with axtare of
US 8802714 United States compounds including ST-246 August 12, 2014 June 18, 2024
Method of treating orthopoxvirus infection with 86,
pharmaceutical compositions containing ST-246 amdposition of
AU2004249250 Australia  matter for the ST-246 compound March 29, 2012 eliff) 2024
Use of ST-246 to treat orthopoxvirus infection, phaceutical
compositions containing ST-246 and composition after for the
CA 2529761 Canada  ST-246 compound August 13, 2013 June 18, 2024
Therapeutic agent for treating orthopoxvirus inahgdST-246,
pharmaceutical compositions containing ST-246, ausitipn of
matter for the ST-246 compound and method of maturfimg ST-
JP 4884216 Japan 246 December 16, 2011 June 18, 2024
Pharmaceutical compositions containing ST-246 areday more
AU 2007351866 Australia  additional ingredients and dosage unit forms coingi ST-246 January 1, 2014 June 18, 2024
Pharmaceutical compositions containing ST-246 areday more
CA, 2685153 Canada  additional ingredients and dosage unit forms coingi ST-246 December 16, 2014 April 23, 2027
Pharmaceutical compositions containing ST-246 areday more
MX 326231 Mexico additional ingredients and dosage unit forms coirgi ST-246 December 11, 2014 April 23, 2027
JP 5657489 Japan Method of manufacturing ST-246 December 5, 2014 June 18, 2024
Certain polymorphs of ST-246, method of preparatibthe
NZ 602578 New Zealand polymorphs and their use in treating orthopoxvinisction December 2, 2014 March 23, 2031

The principal and material patent applications cimgeTecovirimat include patent filings in multipjerisdictions, including the Unite
States, Europe, Asia, Africa, Australia, and otbemmercially significant markets. We hold 53 patapplications currently pending w
respect to various compositions of Tecovirimat, mds of manufacturing, methods of treatment, anshge forms. Expiration dates
pending patents, if granted, will fall between 2@2¢ 2034.

Tecovirimat is currently SIGA’s sole clinicatage drug candidate. In addition to the Tecovitipatent portfolio, SIGA also h
patents covering pre-clinical drug candidates. guttiglly all of the preelinical patent portfolio is for Dengue Antiviratuf candidate. SIGA
currently seeking partners for its Dengue Antivitalg candidate to support further development/eyti

FDA regulations require that patented drugs be saolier brand names that comply with various reguat SIGA must develop a
make efforts to protect these brand names for edb products in order to avoid product piracylda secure exclusive rights to these b
names. SIGA may expend substantial funds in dewrgdoand securing rights to adequate brand namesuioproducts. SIGA currently he
proprietary trademark rights in SIGA®, Tecovirima®T-246®and other brands used by us in the United Statgé<arain foreign countrie
but we may have to develop additional trademarhtsign order to comply with regulatory requiremer8$GA consider securing adeqt
trademark rights to be important to its business.
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Government Regulation
Regulatory Approval Proces

Regulation by governmental authorities in the WhiEtates and other countries is a significant faictdhe production and marketi
of any biopharmaceutical product that we rdayelop. The nature and the extent to which sughlagions may apply to us will vary depenc
on the nature of any such product. Virtually alloofr potential biopharmaceutical products will riequegulatory approval by governmel
agencies prior to non-governmental commercializatio particular, human therapeutic products algest to rigorous prelinical and clinice
testing and other approval procedures by FDA amdlasi health authorities in foreign countries. \tau$ federal statutes and regulations
govern or influence the manufacturing, safety, lialge storage, record keeping and marketing of qucilucts. The process of obtaining tt
approvals and the subsequent compliance with apptepfederal and foreign statutes and regulatieqgiires the expenditure of substal
resources.

In order to test clinically, and to produce and kearproducts for diagnostic or therapeutic use,ommany must comply wi
mandatory procedures and safety standards estdlishFDA and comparable agencies in foreign casitBefore beginning human clini
testing of a potential new drug in the United S$tate company must file an IND application and reeeilearance from FDA. An IN
application is a summary of the pekrical studies that were conducted to charaatettze drug, including toxicity and safety stuc
information on the drug composition and the manufacturing and qualitytr@biprocedures used to produce the drug, as well discussion
the human clinical studies that are being proposed.

The pre-marketing clinical program required for imgyal by FDA for a new drug typically involves ané-consuming and costly three-
phase process. In Phase |, trials are conductddasimall number of healthy subjects to determtieectarly safety profile, the pattern of d
distribution, metabolism and elimination. In Phésérials are conducted with small groups of patseafflicted with a target disease in orde
determine preliminary efficacy, optimal dosages ampganded evidence of safety. In Phase lll, lagdes multicenter comparative tria
which may include both controlled and uncontroliddies, are conducted with patients afflicted vdtharget disease in order to proy
enough data for statistical proof of efficacy aafesy required by FDA and other authorities.

FDA closely monitors the progress of each of thedlphases of clinical testing and may, in itsr@isen, reevaluate, alter, suspen
terminate the testing based on the data that hars decumulated to that point and its assessmeaheafsk/benefit ratio to the patients invol
in the testing. Estimates of the total time tydicakquired for carrying out such clinical testingry between two and ten years. U
completion of such clinical testing, a company ¢glly submits an NDA to FDA that summarizes theultssand observations of the d
during the clinical testing. Based on its reviewtlod NDA, FDA will decide whether to approve theauglr This review process can be q
lengthy, and approval for the production and mankeodf a new pharmaceutical product can requireraber of years and substantial fund
There can be no assurance that any approval wildeted on a timely basis, if at all.

FDA amended its regulations, effective June 30,22@0 include the “animal rulein circumstances that would permit the typ
clinical testing regime to approve certain new damgl biological products used to reduce or prevleattoxicity of chemical, biologic:
radiological, or nuclear agents not otherwise ralyipresent for use in humans based on evidensafety in healthy subjects and evidenc
effectiveness derived only from appropriate anistatlies and any additional supporting data. FDAihdEated that approval for therape!
use of Tecovirimat will be determined under theifizal rule.”

Once the product is approved for sale, FDA regofetigovern the production process and marketingitées, and a postrarketing
testing and surveillance program may be requirethadaitor a product usage and effects. Product approvals may be raithdif complianc
with regulatory standards is not maintained. Matlyeo countries in which products developed by ugy rha marketed impose simi
regulatory processes.

FDA regulations also make available an alternatiggulatory mechanism that may lead to use of thmdymt under limite
circumstances. The Emergency Use Authorization @BUauthority allows the FDA Commissioner to strengthtes public health protectio
against biological, chemical, radiological and maclagents that may be used to attack the Amepieaple or the U.S. armed forces. Under
authority, the FDA Commissioner may allow medicalictermeasures to be used in an emergency to diagtreat or prevent serious or life:
threatening diseases or conditions caused by sgeht@awhen appropriate findings are made concerfiagnature of the emergency,
availability of adequate and approved alternatias] the quality of available data concerning thegdcandidate under consideration
emergency use. We have provided data to FDA toatigm EUA for Tecovirimat in the event of a smalipattack. In November 2012, ClI
filed an IND application for use of Tecovirimat @mergency situations until an EUA is in place. lecBmber 2012, CDC received safe t
proceed” letter from FDA for this IND. In August 28, CDC filed a pre-EUA request for which FDA cuntlg holds an open file.
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Legislation and Regulation Related to Bioterroris@ounteragents and Pandemic Preparedn

Because some of our drug candidates are intenddtiddreatment of diseases that may result froms @fchioterrorism or biowarfa
or for pandemic preparedness, they may be subjetite specific legislation and regulation descrilbetow and elsewhere in this Ann
Report on Form 10-K.

Project BioShield

Project BioShield and related 2006 federal legistaprovide procedures for biodefenstated procurement and awarding of rese
grants, making it easier for HHS to commit fundsctuntermeasure projects. Project BioShield pravidikernative procedures under
Federal Acquisition Regulation, the general rulfiac acquisition of goods and services by the U.&egnment, for procuring property
services used in performing, administering or sugpg biomedical countermeasure research and dewedat. In addition, if the Secretary
HHS deems that there is a pressing need, Proje8HB2ld authorizes the Secretary of HHS to usexpedited award process, rather thar
normal peer review process, for grants, contracts @operative agreements related to biomedicabteomeasure research and develop
activity.

Under Project BioShield, the Secretary of HHS, wilte concurrence of the Secretary of the DepartroEhtomeland Security al
upon the approval of the President, can contraptitohase unapproved countermeasures for the @t&eckpile in specified circumstanc
Congress is notified of a recommendation for at8tfia Stockpile purchase after Presidential apgrdveoject BioShield specifies tha
company supplying the countermeasure to the Sicattpckpile is paid on delivery of a substantiaktppn of the countermeasure. To
eligible for purchase under these provisions, ther&ary of HHS must determine that there are @afit and satisfactory clinical results
research data, including data, if available, fram-ginical and clinical trials, to support a reasoleatonclusion that the countermeasure
qualify for approval or licensing within eight ysarProject BioShield also allows the Secretary &fSHto authorize the emergency us
medical products that have not yet been approvedely. To exercise this authority, the SecretariibfS must conclude that:

» the agent for which the countermeasure is desigian cause serious or lifereatening diseas

» the product may reasonably be believed to be éffeat detecting, diagnosing, treating or prevegtine diseas

» the known and potential benefits of the productvaigh its known and potential risks; ¢

« there is no adequate alternative to a productishegpproved and availak

Although this provision permits the Secretary of kb circumvent FDA approval (entirely, or in paidy marketing, its use in tt
manner would likely be limited to rare circumstascerior to the award of the BARDA Contract in M2§11, the Secretary of HHS conclu
that ST-246 would qualify within eight years forpapval by the FDA for therapeutic use against spol

Public Readiness and Emergency Preparedness

The Public Readiness and Emergency PreparednessrARRREP Act, provides immunity for manufacturigesn claims under state
federal law for “loss” arising out of the adminaion or use of a “covered countermeasurHnivever, injured persons may still bring a sui
“willful misconduct” against the manufacturer und®me circumstances. “Covered countermeasunefide security countermeasures
“qualified pandemic or epidemic product&icluding products intended to diagnose or treateanic or epidemic disease, as well as treatr
intended to address conditions caused by such ptadeor these immunities to apply, the SecretitéS must issue a declaration in case
public health emergency or “credible ris&f a future public health emergency. Since 200&, $ecretary of HHS has issued 8 declara
under the PREP Act to protect from liability counmteasures that are necessary to prepare the rfatigrotential pandemics or epidem
including a declaration on October 10, 2008 thatjoles immunity from tort liability as it relates smallpox countermeasures.

Foreign Regulation

As noted above, in addition to regulations in thetéd States, we might be subject to a varietyoodifyn regulations governing clini
trials and commercial sales and distribution of durg candidates. Whether or not we obtain FDA eyelrfor a product, we may have
obtain approval of a product by the comparable letgry authorities of foreign countries before vas @ommence clinical trials or market
of the product in those countries. The actual treguired to obtain clearance to market a product particular foreign jurisdiction vari
substantially, based upon the type, complexity rmanklty of the
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pharmaceutical drug candidate, the specific requairets of that jurisdiction, and in some countridgethier FDA has previously approved
drug for marketing. The requirements governing ¢dbaduct of clinical trials, marketing authorizatiguricing and reimbursement vary fr
country to country. Certain foreign jurisdictionscluding the European Union, have adopted biodsfepecific regulation akin to tt
available in the United States such as a procesionidar to the “animal rule” promulgated by FDA.

Regulations Regarding Government Contractil

The status of an organization as a governmentactoir in the United States and elsewhere meanshibairganization is also subj
to various statutes and regulations, including Flederal Acquisition Regulation, which governs thhiecorement of goods and services
agencies of the United States. These governingitsgatand regulations can impose stricter penattias those normally applicable
commercial contracts, such as criminal and civindges liability and suspension and debarment frotaré government contracting.
addition, pursuant to various statutes and reguiati government contracts can be subject to uralatermination or modification by t
government for convenience in the United States elsdwhere, detailed auditing requirements, statytoontrolled pricing, sourcing ai
subcontracting restrictions and statutorily mandigecesses for adjudicating contract disputes.

Availability of Reports and Other Information

We file annual, quarterly, and current reports xgretatements, and other documents with the Séesiiéind Exchange Commiss
(“SEC”) under the Securities Exchange Act of 198% (‘Exchange Act”)The public may read and copy any material thatilgesfith the SE(
at the SEGS Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Wgsthin D.C. 20549. The public may obtain informatemthe operation of tl
Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at (8L -8330. Also, the SEC maintains an Internet websitd tontains reports, proxy &
information statements, and other information rday issuers, including us, that file electronigaliith the SEC. The public can obtain .
document that we file with or furnish to the SEGQvatw.sec.gov.

In addition, our website can be found on the irgeat www.siga.com. The website contains infornraabout us and our operatic
Copies of each of our filings with the SEC on Fdr&K, Form 10-Q, and Form I8; and all amendments to those reports, can beedean:
downloaded free of charge as soon as reasonaltjiqatale after the reports and amendments arerefecally filed with or furnished to tl
SEC. To view the reports, access www.siga.comk dic“Investor Relations” and “Financial Informati®
The following corporate governance related docusare also available on our website:

e Audit Committee Charte

» Compensation Committee Char

* Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee €h

* Code of Ethics and Business Cond

» Procedure for Sending Communications to the BoaRirectors

» Procedures for Security Holder Submission of NonimgaRecommendatior

« Policy on Confidentiality of Information and Sedies Trading; an

Conflict of Interest Polic

To review these documents, access www.siga.contlakdon “Investor Relations” and “Corporate Govance.”

Any of the above documents can also be obtainegtriim by any shareholder upon request to the SmgreSIGA Technologies, Inc., 6
Madison Avenue, Suite 1700, New York, New York 1806
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

This report contains forward-looking statements atiter prospective information relating to futunesets. These forwartboking statemen
and other information are subject to risks and ttaggies that could cause our actual results tiedimaterially from our historical results

currently anticipated results including the follogi

Risks Related to Our Chapter 11 Filing

Risks and uncertainties associated with our restiuring process under chapter 11 of the United SwtBankruptcy Code, may lead
potential adverse effects on our liquidity, resuti6 operations or business prospec

We are subject to a number of risks and uncertsrgssociated with the filing of a voluntary petitfor relief under chapter 11 of the
U.S. Bankruptcy Code, which may lead to potentilMesise effects on our liquidity, results of opeyasi or business prospects. We cannot
assure you of the outcome of our chapter 11 casks Rssociated with the chapter 11 filing mayudel an adverse impact on the following:

» the ability of the Company to continue as a goiogaern

e our ability to obtain Bankruptcy Court approval witespect to motions we file in the chapter 11 Gase the impact of Bankrupt
Court rulings on the case in general,

» the length of time we will operate in chapter 18 aur ability to successfully emerge from chapte

e our ability to consummate and implement a plareofganization with respect to our chapter 11

» risks associated with third party motions and otletief sought in the chapter 11 case, and theni@l impact on our operations
ability to emerge from chapter 11;

» the ability to maintain sufficient liquidity throbgut the chapter 11 ca

* increased costs related to the chapter 11 filirdyather litigation

» our ability to manage contracts that are criticabtir operations and, to obtain and maintain appt®pterms with customers, suppl
and service providers;

» the resolution of all prpetition claims against us; &

» our ability to maintain existing customers, vendaationships and expand sales to new custo

A plan of reorganization and related disclosure s&ment have not been filed, and the terms and psawis of a plan of reorganization a
uncertain.

A plan of reorganization or related disclosureestagnt has not been filed with the Bankruptcy Camd may not be filed for sor
time. All outstanding prepetition claims againstwili likely be subject to compromise in a planrebrganization. At this stage of our cha
11 case, we are not in a position to predict theaseand provisions of a plan, including how outdtag prepetition claims and equity intere
will be treated under a plan of reorganization owhour chapter 11 case or how a plan of reorganoizatill impact our common stock. T
treatment of claims and equity interests underaa pff reorganization will be dependent on a nunabéactors including the amount of clai
allowed in our chapter 11 case, the value of owetas business results, negotiations with creqitiims outcome of the litigation wi
PharmAthene and other factors. It is possible ttm@lementation of a plan of reorganization coultbstantially dilute our existing comm
stock or result in the cancellation of such stddke Company has the exclusive right to file a glreorganization through and including N
14, 2015. The Company expects to seek court appimvaurther extension of that period of exclusyi

Our common stock could be delisted by NASDAQ, afhslich delisting occurs it could limit the liquiditof our common stock, increase its
volatility and hinder our ability to raise capital.

On September 16, 2014, the Company received a fetim the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC asserting thiadsed on the Comparsy’
chapter 11 filing, the Company no longer met thaticwing listing requirements necessary to mainitsnlisting on the NASDAQ Sto«
Market. The Company appealed such assertion. Oob®ctl6, 2014, representatives of the Company apgpezefore the NASDAQ Sto
Market LLC’s hearings panel to present the Compsuaypeal, asking the panel to exercise its digerdt allow the Company to maintain
listing for up to five additional months (the linaf the panek discretion at this time). On October 29, 2014, @ompany received the decis
of the NASDAQ hearings panel. The NASDAQ hearingagd decided that the CompasyCommon Stock would remain listed, subject tc
the Company providing the NASDAQ hearings panehwbnfidential updates regarding the status of RharmAthene litigation, pub
disclosures relating to such litigation and to @ogsible judgment, and (b) the Company, on or leeftéarch 16, 2015, emerging from cha
11 and evidencing compliance with all requiremdatsnitial listing on the NASDAQ Stock Market. TIR'ASDAQ hearings panel also sta
that it reserves the right to reconsider its deieation based upon any event, condition or circams that exists or develops that
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would, in the opinion of the panel, make contindesting of the Companyg securities on the NASDAQ Stock Market inadvisabt
unwarranted. There can be no assurance that thep&gnwill meet the conditions required by the NASDAearings panel and maintain
listing of its Common Stock on NASDAQ.

Risks Related to Our Dependence on U.S. Governme@bntracts and Grants

We currently expect to derive substantially all ofir foreseeable future revenue from sales of Teconat under the BARDA Contracts i
addition to contracts and grants from various agees of the U.S. government. If BARDA demand for Be@rimat is reduced, our busines
financial condition and operating results could baaterially harmed.

Our BARDA Contract does not necessarily increase ltkelihood that we will secure future comparablentracts with the U..
government. The success of our business and ouatope results for the foreseeable future are sultistly dependent on the terms of
Tecovirimat sales to the U.S. government, inclugirige per course, the number and size of dosagaurse and the timing of deliveries.

Furthermore, substantially all of our revenuestfer years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2&4#ctively, were derived frc
contracts and grants other than the BARDA Contr@cir. current revenue is primarily derived from cant work being performed for N
under grants and one BARDA development contractduled to substantially conclude in February 200&re can be no assurance tha
will recognize the revenue from the BARDA Contracthe time periods we anticipate or at all, ort thva will be able to secure future contri
or grants. Failure to recognize such revenue arrsesuch contracts or grants could have an adeffieset on our results of operations.

The pricing under our fixedprice government contracts and grants is based atineates of the time, resources and expenses reglic
perform these contracts and grants. If our estimgtare not accurate, we may not be able to earn dequate return or may incur a lo
under these arrangements.

Our existing contract with BARDA for Tecovirimatdludes fixedprice components. We expect that our future cotdrand gran
with the U.S. government for Tecovirimat as wellcamtracts and grants for biodefense product cateldthat we successfully develop
may be fixed-price arrangements. Under a fipeide contract or grant, we are required to deliwar products at a fixed price regardless o
actual costs we incur and to absorb any cost ieexof the fixed price. Estimating costs that atated to performance in accordance
contract or grant specifications is difficult, pauiarly where the period of performance is overesal years. Our failure to anticipate techr
problems, estimate costs accurately or controlscdsting performance of a fixgatice contract or grant could reduce the profiiabibf a
fixed-price contract or grant or cause a loss, tvleiculd in turn harm our operating results.

Product deliveries of Tecovirimat subsequent todbalwer 31, 2014 are expected to be at a provistwsdge of 600 mg administe
twice per day (1,200 mg per day). This is a change the provisional dosage that was in effect wharduct deliveries were made in 2
and 2014 (600 mg per day). In 2013 and 2014, theigional dosage of courses delivered to the Sjiatstockpile was 600 mg administe
once per day. The change in the provisional dosabased on FDA guidance received by the Compa20id, subsequent to the deliverie
1.3 million courses of Tecovirimat. Based on thevsional dosage of 600 mg administered twice pay, dSIGA currently expects
supplement previously delivered courses of Tecodtj at no additional cost to BARDA, with additibreapsules so that all of the coul
previously delivered to BARDA will be at the newopisional dosage. The Company expects to incurifgignt incremental costs wh
previously delivered courses are supplemented.pftnsional dosage for Tecovirimat may be subjecidditional changes in the future be
on FDA guidance.

Our U.S. government contracts and grants requiregming funding decisions by the government. Reduggdliscontinued funding of thes
contracts and grants could cause our financial catidn and operating results to suffer materially.

Our principal customer for Tecovirimat at the prasame is the U.S. government. We anticipate thatU.S. government will also
the principal customer for any other biodefensedpob that we successfully develop. A U.S. governnpeagram, such as Project BioShi
may be implemented through the award of many diffemdividual grants, contracts and subcontrakte. funding of government program
subject to Congressional appropriations, generalide on a fiscal year basis even though a program aontinue for several years. (
government customers are subject to political @®rsitions and stringent budgetary constraints.douernment customers are also subje
uncertainties as to continued funding of their ltdgAdditionally, governmerftinded development grants and contracts typicalhsist of
base period of performance followed by successption periods for performance of certain futureiaies. The value of the goods ¢
services provided during such option periods, whidd exercisable in the sole discretion of the guwent, may constitute the majority of
total value of the underlying contract. If levelsgmvernment expenditures and authorizations fodéiense decrease or shift to progran
areas where we do not offer products or are natldping product candidates, our business, reveang®perating results may suffer.
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Our future business may be harmed as a result o tiovernment contracting process, which can be anpetitive bidding process that m
involve risks not present in the commercial conttang process.

We expect that a significant portion of the busintat we will seek in the near future will be undevernment grants, contracts
subcontracts, which may be awarded through conneetiidding. Competitive bidding for government traicts and grants presents a nur

of risks that are not typically present in the coanaial contracting process, which may include:

» the need to devote substantial time and attemtionanagement and key employees to the preparatibids and proposals for
contracts and grants that may not be awarded to us;

» the need to estimate the resources and cost geutttat will be required to perform any contractgoant that we might |
awarded,;

» the risk that the government will issue a requespfoposal to which we would not be eligible tepend
» the risk that third parties may submit protestsuio responses to requests for proposal that cegldltrin delays or withdrawals
those requests for proposal; and
» the expenses that we might incur and the delaysatbanight suffer if our competitors protest or Iidrage contract awards me
to us pursuant to competitive bidding, and the tigkt any such protest or challenge could resuthénresubmission of bids ba:
on modified specifications, or in termination, retian or modification of the awarded contract caryr
The U.S. government may choose to award futureractst and grants for the supply of smallpox aniwiand other biodefer
product candidates that we are developing to oompetitors instead of to us. If we are unable to particular contracts and grants, we may
be able to operate in the market for products dhatprovided under those contracts and grants hamaber of years. If we are unable to ok
new contracts and grants over an extended perioiflwe fail to anticipate all of the costs andaeasces that will be required to secure ¢

contracts and grants, our growth strategy and osinkss, financial condition, and operating reszdtsld be materially adversely affected.

The success of our business with the U.S. governméepends on our compliance with regulations andlightions under our U.S
government contracts and grants and various fedestdtutes and regulation:

Our business with the U.S. government is subjecsgecific procurement regulations and a varietyotifer legal compliant
obligations. These laws and rules include thoseedIto:

e procurement integrit

* export contro

e government security regulatio

e employment practice

» protection of the environme!

» accuracy of records and the recording of costs

» foreign corrupt practice

In addition, before awarding us any contract ongréhe U.S. government could require that we radpgatisfactorily to a request
substantiate our commercial viability and industc@pabilities. Compliance with these obligationsreases our performance and compli

costs. Failure to comply with these regulations mgiirements could lead to suspension or debarrfentause, from government contrac
or subcontracting for a period of time. The terrimaof a government contract or grant or relatiopsas a result of our failure to satisfy an



these obligations would have a negative impact wnoperations and harm our reputation and abibtyptocure other governm
contracts or grants in the future.
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Unfavorable provisions in government contracts agdants, some of which may be customary, may harnr @uture business, financie
condition and potential operating results.

Government contracts and grants customarily corgadvisions that give the government substantigits and remedies, many
which are not typically found in commercial contsaéncluding (but not limited to) provisions thalow the government to:

e terminate existing contracts or grants, in wholéngart, for any reason or no reas

« unilaterally reduce or modify grants, contractsabcontracts, including through the use of equitaiice adjustment

« cancel multivear contracts or grants and related orders if§dfodperformance for any subsequent year becoraeailable

» decline to exercise an option to renew a contragrant

e exercise an option to purchase only the minimumuarhepecified in a contract or gre

» decline to exercise an option to purchase the maxiramount specified in a contract or gr

» claim rights to products, including intellectuabperty, developed under a contract or g

» take actions that result in a longer developmentline than expecte

» direct the course of a development program in amm@anot chosen by the government contra

» suspend or debar the contractor from doing busiwébsthe government or a specific government ays

* pursue criminal or civil remedies under the Falt®Er@s Act and False Statements Act;

» control or prohibit the export of produc

Generally, government contracts and grants comtaiwisions permitting unilateral termination or nifazhtion, in whole or in part,
the governmeng convenience. Under general principles of goveningentracting law, if the government terminatesoatract or grant fc
convenience, the terminated company may recoveritmincurred or committed costs, settlement espsrand profit on work completed p
to the termination.

If the government terminates a contract or grantffault, the defaulting company is entitled toaeer costs incurred and associ
profits on accepted items only and may be liableexcess costs incurred by the government in pioguindelivered items from anotl
source. Our government contracts and grants, imgutie BARDA Contract, could be terminated undese circumstances. Some governi
contracts and grants permit the government thet tighuse, for or on behalf of the U.S. governmemy technologies developed by
contractor under a government contract or gramtelfivere to develop technology under a contragrant with such a provision, we might
be able to prohibit third parties, including ourgaetitors, from using that technology in providimgpducts and services to the government.

Political or social factors, including related ligjation, may delay or impair ouability to market Tecovirimat and our biodefenseqatuct
candidates and may require us to spend time and moto address these issues.

Products developed to treat diseases caused bycontbat the threat of bioterrorism or biowarfail e subject to changing politic
and social environments. The political and so@aponses to bioterrorism and biowarfare have begrtyihcharged and unpredictable. Polit
or social pressures or changes in the perceptitheofisk that military personnel or civilians cdule exposed to biological agents as wea
of bioterrorism or biowarfare may delay or caussstance to bringing our products to market ortlipnicing or purchases of our products,



of which would harm our business.

In addition, substantial delays or cancellationgpuofchases could result from protests or challetiges third parties. Furthermo
lawsuits brought against us by third parties suEladivists, even if not successful, require usgend time and money defending the rel
litigation. The need to address political and sdssues may divert our management’s time and @dtefrom other business concerns.
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Additional lawsuits, publicity campaigns or othezgative publicity may adversely affect the degréenarket acceptance of, ¢
thereby limit the demand for, Tecovirimat and oidefense product candidates. In such event, bilityato market and sell such produ
may be hindered and the commercial success of Tri@oav and other products we develop will be harptedreby reducing our revenues.

Risks Related to Product Development

Our business depends significantly on our succassompleting development and commercialization ofig candidates that are still und
development. If we are unable to commercialize thelug candidates, or experience significant deldgsdoing so, our business will |
materially harmed.

We have invested a substantial majority of ourrgdfand financial resources in the developmentuofdsug candidates. Our ability
generate near-term caflbws is primarily dependent on the success of gmallpox antiviral drug candidate Tecovirimat. T¢t@mmercie
success of our drug candidates will depend on rfetgrs, including:

» successful development, formulation and cGMResgp of drug manufacturing that meets FDA requirers

» successful development of animal moc

» successful completion of natinical development, including studies in approegimal model:

« our ability to pay the expense of filing, prosengtidefending and enforcing patent claims and attteHectual property right

» successful completion of clinical tri

» receipt of marketing approvals from FDA and simftaneign regulatory authoritie

» establishing commercial manufacturing processeaiobwn or arrangements on reasonable terms withraxt manufacturer

« manufacturing stable commercial supplies of drutdatates, including availability of raw materii

» launching commercial sales of the product, whe#th@me or in collaboration with others; ¢

» acceptance of the product by potential governmestomers, physicians, patients, healthcare paywisothers in the medic
community.

We expect to rely on FDA regulations known as theithal rule”to obtain approval for certain of our biodefensegdcandidates. Tl
animal rule permits the use of animal efficacy sEsadogether with human clinical safety trials tggort an application for marketing appro
These regulations are relatively new, and both ne the government have limited experience in thgliegtion of these rules to the di
candidates that we are developing. It is posshade tesults from these animal efficacy studies matybe predictive of the actual efficacy of
drug candidates in humans. If we are not successitbmpleting the development and commercializatbour drug candidates, whether
to our efforts or due to concerns raised by ouregomental regulators or customers, our businedsl d@uharmed.

We will not be able to commercialize our drug caddies if our preelinical development efforts are not successful,ralinical trials do not
demonstrate safety or our clinical trials or animatudies do not demonstrate efficacy.

Before obtaining regulatory approval for the sdl@ar drug candidates, we must conduct extensieelmical development, trials
demonstrate the safety of our drug candidates hnid¢al or animal trials to demonstrate the effigaaf our drug candidates. Peéinical anc

clinical testing is expensive, difficult to designd implement, can take many years to completasandcertain as to outcome. Success in pr

clinical testing and early clinical trials does moisure that later clinical trials or animal effigastudies will be successful, and interim resaf
a clinical trial or animal efficacy study do notcessarily predict final results.
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A failure of one or more of our clinical trials animal efficacy studies can occur at any stagesifrtg. We may experience numel
unforeseen events during, or as a result of cpnécal testing and the clinical trial or animdfieacy study process that could delay or pre
our ability to receive regulatory approval or commai@ize our drug candidates, including:

e regulators or institutional review boards may natharize us to commence a clinical trial or condauctinical trial at a prospecti
trial site;

e we may decide, or regulators may require usptaluct additional prehnical testing or clinical trials, or we may alslm project
that we expect to be promising, if our pi@ical tests, clinical trials or animal efficasyudies produce negative or inconclu
results;

« we might have to suspend or terminate our clinticals if the participants are being exposed tocaeatable health risk

e regulators or institutional review boards maguiee that we hold, suspend or terminate cliniealedlopment for various reasons,
including noncompliance with regulatory requirensgnt

» the cost of our clinical trials could escalate &edome cost prohibitiv

e our governmental regulators may impose requirgmen clinical trials, prefinical trials or animal efficacy studies that w@nno
meet or that may prohibit or limit our ability tefform or complete the necessary testing in omebtain regulatory approval;

» any regulatory approval we ultimately obtain neylimited or subject to restrictions or pagtproval commitments that render
product not commercially viable;

* we may not be successful in recruiting a sufficrumnber of qualifying subjects for our clinicalais; an:
» the effects of our drug candidates may not be #sireld effects or may include undesirable sideceffer the drug candidates n
have other unexpected characteristics.
We are in various stages of product development &mete can be no assurance of successful commeizddion.

In general, our research and development prograenataan early stage of development. To obtain Flpproval for our biodefen
products, we will be required to obtain adequat®pof efficacy from at least one animal model @ndvide animal and human safety data.
other products will be subject to the usual FDAutatpry requirements, which include a number ofgalseof testing in humans.

FDA has not approved any of our biopharmaceuticapct candidates. Any drug candidate we develdp require significar
additional research and development efforts, irinlye@xtensive prelinical and clinical testing and regulatory appbwrior to commercii
sale. We cannot be sure our approach to drug disgawill be effective or will result in the succéglscommercialization of any drug. V
cannot predict with certainty whether any drug h&sy from our research and development effortd bl commercially available within t
next several years, or if they will be availablelht

Even if we receive initially positive preinical or clinical results, such results do natan that similar results will be obtained in |
stages of drug development, such as additionatlmizal testing or human clinical trials. All ofuo potential drug candidates are prone tc
risks of failure inherent in pharmaceutical proddetelopment, including the possibility that nof®war drug candidates will or can:

* be safe, nomexic and effective

» otherwise meet applicable regulatory stand:

* receive the necessary regulatory appro

» develop into commercially viable dru

* be manufactured or produced economically and @ngeIscal
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e be successfully markete

* be paid for by governmental procurers or be reirsbdiby governmental or private insurers;

e achieve customer acceptar

In addition, third parties may preclude us from keding our drugs through enforcement of their pietary rights that we are r
aware of, or third parties may succeed in markediqgivalent or superior drug products. Our failiwelevelop safe, commercially viable dr

would have a material adverse effect on our busjrfasancial condition and results of operations.

Risks Related to Commercialization

Our ability to grow our business depends signifitgnon our ability to achieve sales of Tecovirim#&t customers other than the U.
government

An element of our business strategy is to sell Vetoat to customers other than the U.S. governm€&hese potential custom
include foreign governments and state and locakgowents, as well as n@overnmental organizations focused on global hd#th the
World Health Organization, health care institutidike hospitals (domestic and foreign) and certainge business organizations intereste
protecting their employees against global threats.

The market for sales of Tecovirimat to custometepthan the U.S. government is undeveloped, andnese not be successful
generating meaningful sales of Tecovirimat, if aiythese potential customers.

Governmental regulations may make it difficult fos to achieve significant sales of Tecovirimat tstomers other than the U
government. For example, federal and foreign ramula usually require approval of the drug underegelly applicable food and drug laws
waivers of such approval before these customers pnagure the drug. Additionally, federal laws pla@ious restrictions on the expori
drugs that are not FDA-approved or that have p@tehtodefenseelated uses. These restrictions are subject togehas global conditio
change. These restrictions and other regulationdrog sales could limit our sales of Tecovirimatfdoeign governments and other fore
customers. In addition, U.S. government demandrémovirimat may limit supplies of Tecovirimat aable for sale to nok-.S. governmel
customers.

If we fail to increase our sales of Tecovirimatctesstomers other than the U.S. government, our basiand opportunities for grov
could be materially limited.

Because we must obtain regulatory clearance or athise operate under strict legal requirements inder to test and market our products
the U.S., we cannot predict whether or when we Wil permitted to commercialize our products othiean through the BARDA Contract.

Except with respect to sales to BARDA undeajé&ut BioShield, pharmaceutical products cannoegaty be marketed in the U.S. until ti
have has completed rigorous ml@ical testing and clinical trials and an extemsiregulatory clearance process implemented by
Pharmaceutical products typically take many yearsdtisfy regulatory requirements and require theenditure of substantial resour
depending on the type, complexity and novelty efgihoduct and its intended use.

Before commencing clinical trials in humans, we treibmit and receive clearance from FDA throughracgss begun by an IM
application. Institutional review boards and FDAemsee clinical trials. Such trials:

* must be conducted in conformance with FDA regufet

e must meet requirements for institutional reviewrdoaversight

e must meet requirements for informed cons

* must meet requirements for good clinical and maatufing practice:
e are subject to continuing FDA oversic

e may require large numbers of test subjects
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 may be suspended by us or FDA at any time if ibaieved that the subjects participating in thegsst are being exposed
unacceptable health risks or if FDA finds deficiesan our IND application or the conduct of thésals.

Before receiving FDA clearance to market a prodiutche absence of a medical or public health emmergeve must demonstrate t
the product is safe and effective on the patiepupation that will be treated. Data we obtain frpre<linical and clinical activities and frc
animal models are susceptible to varying interpiata that could delay, limit or prevent regulatatgarances. Additionally, we have limi
experience in conducting and managing thegtireeal and clinical trials and animal efficacydtes and manufacturing processes necess
obtain regulatory clearance.

If full regulatory clearance of a product is grahte¢his clearance will be limited only to those ditions for which the product
demonstrated through clinical trials to be safe effidacious. We cannot ensure that any compoureldped by us, alone or with others,
prove to be safe and efficacious in pteical or clinical trials or animal efficacy stigd and will meet all of the applicable regula
requirements needed to receive full marketing elece.

The biopharmaceutical market in which we competedanill compete is highly competitive.

The biopharmaceutical industry is characterizedapyd and significant technological change. Ourcess will depend on our ability
develop and apply our technologies in the desighdavelopment of our product candidates and to d@stabhd maintain a market for «
product candidates. In addition, there are manypaoies, both public and private, including majoayhaceutical and chemical compar
specialized biotechnology firms, universities atideo research institutions engaged in developireymphceutical and biotechnology prodt
Many of these companies have substantially grdatancial, technical, research and developmentuess, and human resources that
Competitors may develop products or other techniefothat are more effective than any that are bdageloped by us or may obtain F
approval for products more rapidly than us. If wemmence commercial sales of products, we still ncostpete in the manufacturing
marketing of such products, areas in which we havexperience. Many of these companies also havelfaeturing facilities and establist
marketing capabilities that would enable such camgsato market competing products through existimannels of distribution.

Our potential products may not be acceptable in tinarket or eligible for thirdparty reimbursement resulting in a negative impawt out
future financial results.

Any product we develop may not achieve market aecee. The degree of market acceptance of anyrgbroducts will depend or
number of factors, including:

» the establishment and demonstration in the medaaimunity of the efficacy and safety of such pras|

» the potential advantage of such products overiagistpproaches to combating the problem intenddx taddresse
» the cost of our products relative to their percdilsenefits; an

e payment or reimbursement policies of governnagrt thirdparty payors

Physicians, patients or the medical community inegal may not accept or utilize any product we meyelop. Our ability to gener:
revenues and income with respect to drugs, if deyeloped through the use of our technology wipletel, in part, upon the extent to wt
payment or reimbursement for the cost of such dwmifisbe available from thirgparty payors, such as governmental suppliers lIRRBA,
CDC or DoD, governmental health administration atitles, private healthcare insurers, health mamtee organizations, pharmacy ben
management companies and other organizations.-phittyf payors are increasingly disputing the pridesrged for pharmaceutical product:
third-party payment or reimbursement was not availablsufficient to allow profitable price levels to beaintained for drugs we develog
could adversely affect our business.

Product liability lawsuits could cause us to incsubstantial liabilities and require us to limit comercialization of any products that we m
develop.

We face an inherent business risk related to tleeafal ecovirimat and any other products that wecessfully develop and the test
of our product candidates in clinical trials.

Tecovirimat is currently identified as a coveredictermeasure under a PREP Act declaration issu@gttober 2008, which provid
us with substantial immunity with respect to thenofacture, administration or use of Tecovirimat.denour BARDA Contract, the U.
government should indemnify us against claims Iyl tharties for death, personal injury and other
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damages related to Tecovirimat, including reasanébijation and settlement costs, to the exteat the claim or loss results from speci
risks not covered by insurance or caused by owsslymegligent or criminal behavior. The collectiprocess can be lengthy and complice
and there is no guarantee that we will be abletover these amounts from the U.S. government.

If we cannot successfully defend ourselves agdiriate claims that our product or product candidataused injuries and we are
entitled to or able to obtain indemnity by the Uddvernment with respect to such claims, or if th&. government does not honor
indemnification obligations, we may incur substahliabilities. Regardless of merit or eventualamrhe, product liability claims may result in:

» decreased demand for any product candidate or prdigat we may develc

e injury to our reputatiol

» withdrawal of a product from the mark

« withdrawal of clinical trial participant

e costs to defend the related litigati

e substantial monetary awards to trial participamtpatients

* loss of revenue; al

» the inability to commercialize any products thatmway develof

We currently have product liability insurance witbverage up to a $10 million annual aggregate lemil up to $10 million p
occurrence. The amount of insurance that we cuyrdrdld may not be adequate to cover all liabifitihat may occur. Product liabil
insurance is difficult to obtain and increasingipensive. We may not be able to maintain insuraoserage at a reasonable cost and we

not be able to maintain or obtain insurance cowethgt will be adequate to satisfy any liabilitatimay arise.

Additionally, a successful product liability claior series of claims brought against us could cawsestock price to fall and cot
decrease our financial resources and materiallyaandrsely affect our business.

We may be required to perform additional clinicaldls or change the labeling of our products if war others identify side effects after o
products are on the market, which could harm sat#fghe affected products

If we or others identify side effects after anyoof products are on the market, or if manufactupraplems occur:

* regulatory approval may be withdra:

» reformulation of our products, additional clini¢gals or other testing or changes in labeling wf products may be requirt

» changes to or rapprovals of our manufacturing facilities may bquieed

» sales of the affected products may drop signifigs

* our reputation in the marketplace may suffer;

» lawsuits, including class action suits, may be gtawagainst u

Any of the above occurrences could harm or prewahs of the affected products or could increagecthsts and expenses
commercializing and marketing these products.
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Healthcare reform and controls on healthcare spendimay limit the price we charge for our productséthe amounts that we can se

There have been a number of legislative and remgylairoposals in the United States to change tladttheare system in ways t
could affect our ability to sell our products ptafily. One enacted proposal, the Patient ProteetimhAffordable Care Act, as amended by
Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of @Qdollectively, the “Healthcare Reform Act§ubstantially changes the way healthca
financed by both governmental and private insuaerd will have a substantial effect on the pharmtacaluindustry. The Healthcare Refc
Act contains a number of provisions, including #agoverning enrollment in federal healthcare progrdike Medicare, reimbursem:
changes and rules protecting against fraud andealbliagt will change existing healthcare progrant wiil result in the development of ni
programs, including Medicare payment for perforneaitiatives and improvements to the physicianliguaeporting system and feedb:
program. We anticipate that, if we obtain marketaqgproval for our products, some of our revenue meayderived from governmen
healthcare programs, including Medicare. Furtheenbeginning in 2011, the Healthcare Reform Actasgdl a noreductible excise tax
pharmaceutical manufacturers or importers who ‘felinded prescription drugsyvhich includes innovator drugs and biologics (edahg
orphan drugs or generics) to U.S. government progradhe Healthcare Reform Act and other healthrefiem measures that may be ado
in the future could have an adverse effect on wdustry generally and potential future sales anfditpbility of our products specifically.

In addition to the Healthcare Reform Act, we exptet there will continue to be proposals by legisis at both the federal and s
levels, regulators, and thigghrty payors to keep healthcare costs down whipaeding individual healthcare benefits. Certainhefse chang
could impose limitations on the prices we will i#eato charge for any product that is approvecheramounts of reimbursement available
these products from governmental agencies or dtiiet-party payors or may increase the taxes imposedf@isdiences companies suct
ours. While it is too early to predict what efféhe Healthcare Reform Act or any future legislataregulation will have on us, such le
could have an adverse effect on our business,diabtondition and results of operations.

Laws and regulations governing international operahs may preclude us from developing, manufacturirmgnd selling certain produt
candidates outside of the United States and requiseto develop and implement costly compliance paogs.

As we expand our operations outside of the UnitdtieS, we must comply with numerous laws and réiguis relating to our busine
operations in each jurisdiction in which we plandjgerate. The creation and implementation of irggomal business practices complia
programs is costly and such programs are diffimuéinforce, particularly where reliance on thirdtigs is required.

The Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, or FCPA, prdkibiny U.S. individual or business from payingedffg, or authorizing payment
offering of anything of value, directly or indirégtto any foreign official, political party or cdidate for the purpose of influencing any ac
decision of the foreign entity in order to assis tndividual or business in obtaining or retainmgsiness. The FCPA also obligates compi
whose securities are listed in the United Statesotoply with certain accounting provisions requirithe company to maintain books
records that accurately and fairly reflect all sactions of the corporation, including internatiosigbsidiaries, and to devise and maintai
adequate system of internal accounting controlsnit@rnational operations. The abtibery provisions of the FCPA are enforced prityaby
the U.S. Department of Justice. The SEC is involvéd enforcement of the books and records prowusiof the FCPA.

Compliance with the FCPA is expensive and difficplrticularly in countries in which corruptionagecognized problem. In additi
the FCPA presents particular challenges in therphaeeutical industry, because, in many countriespitals are operated by the governn
and doctors and other hospital employees are comesidoreign officials. Certain payments to hogpita connection with clinical studies ¢
other work have been deemed to be improper paymentmvernment officials and have led to FCPA ecdament actions. In additic
biodefense companies like SIGA often sell theidpicis directly to foreign governments.

Various laws, regulations and executive orders adstrict the use and dissemination outside ofithiged States, or the sharing v
certain nond.S. nationals, of information classified for naté security purposes, as well as certain prodardstechnical data relating to th
products. Our expanding presence outside of theedi8tates will require us to dedicate additioraburces to compliance with these laws,
these laws may preclude us from developing, matwfag, or selling certain products and productdidates outside of the United Sta
which could limit our growth potential and increase development costs.

The failure to comply with laws governing intermatal business practices may result in substangiahlpies, including suspensior
debarment from government contracting. Violatiorthaf FCPA can result in significant civil and cnival penalties.
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Indictment alone under the FCPA can lead to suspers the right to do business with the U.S. goweent until the pending claims .
resolved. Conviction of a violation of the FCPA casult in longterm disqualification as a government contractdre Termination of
government contract or relationship as a resulowf failure to satisfy any of our obligations undaws governing international busin
practices would have a negative impact on our dgjper and harm our reputation and ability to precgovernment contracts. The SEC
may suspend or bar issuers from trading secuntiednited States exchanges for violations of th® &G accounting provisions.

Other countries have laws similar to the FCPA whicdy be applicable to our operations.

If we are unable to expand our internal sales andarketing capabilities or enter into agreements withird parties, we may be unable
generate cash flows from product sales to custonateer than the U.S. governmer

To achieve commercial success for any approvedustodie may need to enhance our own sales and tiraylaapabilities, enter in
collaborations with third parties able to perfotmge services or outsource these functions to plairties.

We currently market and sell Tecovirimat througénaall, targeted sales and marketing group. We tol@ontinue to do so and exp
that we will use a similar approach for sales ® thS. government of any other biodefense prodamtlicates that we successfully develo
we are unable to do this, we may be unable to ekpan sales of Tecovirimat, which could have anease effect on our growth.

Risks Related to Manufacturing and Manufacturing Facilities

Problems related to lar¢-scale commercial manufacturing could cause us @aly product launches or experience shortages ajgarcts.

Manufacturing drug products, especially in largamfities, is complex. Our drug candidates requéneegal manufacturing steps, i
may involve complex techniques to assure quality sufficient quantity, especially as the manufaotyscale increases. Our products mu:
made consistently and in compliance with a cleddfined manufacturing process. Accordingly, itgsential to be able to validate and coi
the manufacturing process to assure that it isothmible. Slight deviations anywhere in the manuwfidcg process, including obtaini
materials, filling, labeling, packaging, storaghipping, quality control and testing, some of whalh pharmaceutical companies, incluc
SIGA, experience from time to time, may resultan failures, delay in the release of lots, prodecalls or spoilage. Success rates can
dramatically at different stages of the manufacmiprocess, which can lower yields and increaséscige may experience deviations in
manufacturing process that may take significanetand resources to resolve and, if unresolved, affagt manufacturing output and/or ca
us to fail to satisfy customer orders or contralcteanmitments, lead to delays in our clinical siak result in litigation or regulatory action.

If third parties do not manufacture our drug candates or products in sufficient quantities and at aceptable cost or in compliance w
regulatory requirements and specifications, the é®pment and commercialization of our drug candi@éat could be delayed, preventec
impaired.

We currently rely on third parties to manufacturagicandidates that we require for pifgrical and clinical development, includi
Tecovirimat. Any significant delay in obtaining apmte supplies of our drug candidates could adieksgect our ability to develop
commercialize these drug candidates. We expectvibawill rely on third parties for a portion of teanufacturing process for commer
supplies of drug candidates that we successfulelde. If our contract manufacturers are unabledaleup production to generate enol
materials for commercial launch, the success odehmoducts may be jeopardized. Our current aridipaited future dependence upon ot
for the manufacture of our drug candidates may e affect our ability to develop drug candidatesl commercialize any product t
receives regulatory approval on a timely and coitipet basis. If our third party manufacturers’ pmotion processes malfunction
contaminate our drug supplies during manufactusiveggmay incur significant inventory loss.

We currently rely on third parties to demonstragulatory compliance and for quality assurance wegpect to the drug candide
manufactured for us. We intend to continue to mythese third parties for these purposes withe@sje production of commercial supplie
drugs that we successfully develop. Manufacturesssabject to ongoing, periodic, unannounced inspedy FDA and corresponding st
and foreign agencies or their designees to enstice @ompliance with applicable regulations.

We cannot be certain that our present or futureufgaturers will be able to comply with these regjolas and other FDA regulatc
requirements or similar regulatory requirementssiolét the U.S. While our contracts and grants aall dompliance with all applicak
regulatory requirements, we do not control comml@ahy these manufacturers with these regulatiods an

24




Table of Contents

standards. If we or these third parties fail to pynwith applicable regulations, sanctions couldrbposed on us, which could significantly
adversely affect supplies of our drug candidates.

Our activities may involve hazardous materials, usfavhich may subject us to environmental regulagdiabilities.

Our biopharmaceutical research and developmenttsoe®involves the use of hazardous and radioactiaterials and generation
biological waste. We are subject to federal, staig local laws and regulations governing the usufacture, storage, handling and disg
of these materials and certain waste products.ofith we believe that our safety procedures for lamand disposing of these mater
comply with legally prescribed standards, the dékccidental contamination or injury from thesetenials cannot be completely eliminatec
the event of an accident, we could be held liabtedmages, and this liability could exceed ououeses. We use, for example, small amc
of radioactive isotopes commonly used in pharmacautesearch, which are stored, used and dispo$ed accordance with Nucle
Regulatory Commission regulations. Our generalilligitpolicy provides coverage up to annual aggtedamits of $2 million and coverage
$2 million per occurrence.

We believe that we are in compliance in all mategapects with applicable environmental laws aggltations and currently do |
expect to make material additional capital expemdg for environmental control facilities in theangerm. However, we may have to in
significant costs to comply with current or futeevironmental laws and regulations.

Risks Related to Sales of Biodefense Products toeth).S. Government

Our business could be adversely affected by a niegatudit by the U.S. government.

U.S. government agencies such as the Defense CoWtualit Agency (the “DCAA”),routinely audit and investigate governn
contractors. These agencies review a contraciperformance under its contracts and grants, stostture, and compliance with applice
laws, regulations and standards.

The DCAA also reviews the adequacy of, and a cotdra compliance with, its internal control systems @aoticies, including th
contractors purchasing, property, estimating, compensatichraanagement information systems. Any cost fourtsetanproperly allocated
a specific contract will not be reimbursed, whilecls costs already reimbursed must be refundedn l&wait uncovers improper or illeg
activities, we may be subject to civil and crimipahalties and administrative sanctions, including:

* termination of contract

» forfeiture of profits

» suspension of paymer

» fines; ani

» suspension or prohibition from doing business whih U.S. governmel
Laws and regulations affecting government contraetsd grants might make it more costly and difficdtir us to conduct our busines

We must comply with numerous laws and regulatiogisting to the formation, administration and perfance of governme
contracts and grants, which can make it more diffifor us to retain our rights under these conga€hese laws and regulations affect hov
do business with federal, state and local govertah@gencies. Among the most significant governneemtracting regulations that affect
business are:

» the Federal Acquisition Regulation and othemagespecific regulations supplemental to the Fddsequisition Regulation,
which comprehensively regulate the procuremeniétion, administration and performance of governngentracts;

» the business ethics and public integrity oblmya, which govern conflicts of interest and therg of former government

employees, restrict the granting of gratuities amdling of lobbying activities and incorporate athequirements such as the Anti-
Kickback Act and Foreign Corrupt Practices Act;
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e export and import control laws and regulations;
» laws, regulations and executive orders restricthe use and dissemination of information clésgifor national security purposes
and the exportation of certain products and tectimiata.

Risks Related to Regulatory Approvals

If we are not able to obtain required regulatory ppovals, we will not be able to commercialize ouugd candidates in the United Stat
other than through sales to BARDA, and our ability generate revenue will be materially impaired.

Our drug candidates and the activities associaitit their development and commercialization, inahgdtheir testing, manufactu
safety, efficacy, recordkeeping, labeling, storaggroval, advertising, promotion, sale and distidn, are subject to comprehensive regul:
by FDA and other regulatory agencies in the Uni&dtes and by comparable authorities in other cmsntFailure to obtain regulatc
approval for a drug candidate will prevent us freommercializing the drug candidate in the Uniteat& other than through sales to BAF
under Project BioShield. We have limited experieimcpreparing, filing and prosecuting the applioat necessary to gain regulatory apprc
and expect to rely on thirgarty contract research organizations and congaltarassist us in this process. Securing FDA an@quires th
submission to FDA of extensive peéinical and clinical data and, potentially, aninefficacy studies, information about product mawtifanc
processes and inspection of facilities and suppgrinformation in order to establish the drug cdatks safety and efficacy. Our futt
products may not be effective, may be only modéraffective, or may prove to have significant seféects, toxicities, or other characteris
that may preclude our obtaining regulatory appravgrevent or limit commercial use.

Failure to obtain regulatory approval in internatieal jurisdictions could prevent us from marketinguo products abroad.

We intend to have our products marketed outsideUthiged States. To market our products in the EeaopUnion and many ott
foreign jurisdictions, we may need to obtain sefgaragulatory approvals and comply with numerouws earying regulatory requirements. -
approval procedure varies among countries androanivie additional testing. The time required toadbiapproval may differ from that requil
to obtain FDA approval.

The foreign regulatory approval process may inclatleof the risks associated with obtaining FDA apal. We may not obta
foreign regulatory approvals on a timely basistiéll. Approval by FDA does not ensure approvatdmyulatory authorities in other countrie:
jurisdictions, and approval by one foreign regutgtauthority does not ensure approval by regulatarthorities in other foreign countries
jurisdictions or by FDA. We and our potential fugwrollaborators may not be able to file for regapiapprovals and may not receive neces
approvals to commercialize our products in any raark

The Fast Track designation for Tecovirimat may nattually lead to a faster development or regulateeyiew or approval process.

We have obtained a “Fast Trackeésignation from FDA for Tecovirimat. However, weaynnot experience a faster developr
process, review or approval compared to converttibBe\ procedures. FDA may withdraw our Fast Tra@signation if it believes that t
designation is no longer supported by data fromatinical development program. Our Fast Track degiipn does not guarantee that we
qualify for or be able to take advantage of FBA&Xpedited review procedures or that any apptingtiat we may submit to FDA for regulat
approval will be accepted for filing or ultimatedpproved.

Risks Related to Our Dependence on Third Parties

If third parties on whom we rely for clinical triad or certain animal trials do not perform as conttually required or as we expect, we n
not be able to obtain regulatory approval for orromnercialize our drug candidates and our businessynsaffer.

We do not have the ability independently to condbetclinical trials, and certain animal trialsquéred to obtain regulatory appro
for our products. We depend on independent invaitig, contract research organizations and othet-plarty service providers to cond
trials of our drug candidates and expect to cometittudo so. We rely heavily on these third pafiiessuccessful execution of our trials, bu
not exercise day-tday control over their activities. We are respolesibr ensuring that each of our trials is condddteaccordance with tl
general investigational plan and protocols for tited. Moreover, FDA requires us to comply with efards, commonly referred to as G
Clinical Practices, for conducting and recording amporting the results of clinical trials to asstinat data and reported results are credibl
accurate and that the rights, integrity and comfiiddity of trial participants are protected. Siarlly, animal trials may have to comply w
Good Laboratory Practices.
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We also currently rely on thirgarty manufacturers and service providers to predigcovirimat. Under the BARDA Contract, we
responsible for the performance of these tipiadty contracts, and our contracts with these tpadies give us certain supervisory and qu
control rights, but we do not exercise complete-tdaglay control over their activities.

Our reliance on third parties that we do nmttool does not relieve us of the responsibilitesl requirements imposed by the BAR
Contract. Third parties may not complete activitiesschedule, or may not conduct our trials in edance with regulatory requirements or
stated protocols. The failure of these third partie carry out their obligations could delay orvenat the development, approval .
commercialization of our drug candidates.

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property

Our ability to compete may decrease if we do noé@ubtely protect our intellectual property rights.

Our commercial success will depend in part on daility to obtain and maintain patent protection faur proprietary technologie
drug targets and potential products and to presauvérade secrets and trademark rights. Becaueeafubstantial length of time and exp
associated with bringing potential products througke development and regulatory clearance processagach the marketplace,
pharmaceutical industry places considerable impogaon obtaining patent and trade secret proteciiba patent positions of pharmaceut
and biotechnology companies can be highly unceraith involve complex legal and factual questions. dénsistent policy regarding
breadth of claims allowed in biotechnology patdrds emerged to date. Accordingly, we cannot predéetype and breadth of claims alloy
in these patents.

As of December 31, 2014, we exclusively own seve®. Wtility patents, two U.S. provisional patenpbgations, three U.S. utili
patent applications, eight issued foreign patemis, international PCT patent applications and 4&ifm patent applications. We include
summary of our patent position as of December 8142n Part |, Item 1 of this Annual Report on FatfhK.

We also rely on trade secrets, knbaw, continuing technological innovation and lidagsopportunities. In an effort to maintain
confidentiality and ownership of trade secrets prabrietary information, we require our employeesnsultants and some collaborator
execute confidentiality and invention assignmemeaments upon commencement of a relationship vgitiThese agreements may not pro
meaningful protection for our trade secrets, caniithl information or inventions in the event ofauthorized use or disclosure of s
information, and adequate remedies may not exigtarevent of such unauthorized use or disclosure.

If our technologies are alleged or found to infrirggthe patents or proprietary rights of others, waynbe sued, we may have to pay dam.
or be barred from pursuing a technology, or we miagve to license those rights to or from others onfavorable terms. Even if we preve
such litigation may be costly

Our commercial success will depend significantlyoom ability to operate without infringing the pate or proprietary rights of thi
parties. Our technologies, or the technologiehioéitparties on which we may depend, may infrintge patents or proprietary rights of oth
If there is an adverse outcome in any dispute awoiireg rights to these technologies, then we coeldibject to significant liability, required
license disputed rights from or to other partied/anrequired to cease using a technology necessamgrry out our research, development
commercialization activities.

The costs to establish or defend against claimsfohgement or interference with patents or otheprietary rights can be expens
and timeeonsuming, even if the outcome is favorable. Arcomte of any patent or proprietary rights admintsteaproceeding or litigation th
is unfavorable to us may have a material adverfgetebn us. We could incur substantial costs ifaxe required to defend ourselves in ¢
brought by third parties or if we initiate suchtsuWe may not have sufficient funds or resourogbié event of litigation. Additionally, we m
not prevail in any such action.

Any dispute resulting from claims based on patenis proprietary rights could result in a significaeduction in the coverage of
patents or proprietary rights owned, optioned byjicamsed to us and limit our ability to obtain masyful protection for our rights. If patel
are issued to third parties that contain competitir conflicting claims, we may be legally prohdait from researching, developing
commercializing potential products or be requirealbtain licenses to these patents or to develabtain alternative technology. We may
legally prohibited from using technology owned liigrs, may not be able to obtain any license tg#ients or technologies of third partie:
acceptable terms, if at all, or may not be ablehti@in or develop alternative technologies.

In December 2006, PharmAthene filed an action agais in the Delaware Court of Chancery (the “Coart“Court of Chanceryy
captioned PharmAthene, Inc. v. SIGA Technologies,,IC.A. No. 2627-VCP. In its amended complaint,
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PharmAthene asked the Court to order us to enter anlicense agreement with PharmAthene with rasf@ecST246, also known
Tecovirimat, to declare that we are obliged to exesuch a license agreement, and to award damegiding from our alleged breach of 1
obligation. PharmAthene also alleges that we bregem obligation to negotiate such a license ageaein good faith, and sought damage:
promissory estoppel and unjust enrichment baseidformation, capital, and assistance that PharmAgtelegedly provided to us during
negotiation process. The Court tried the casennaiy 2011.

In September 2011, the Court of Chancery issuecdts-trial opinion. The Court denied PharmAthene2quests for speci
performance and expectation damages measured gnprealue of estimated future profits. Nevertheléise Court held that we breached
duty to negotiate in good faith and were liable @mithe doctrine of promissory estoppel. The Coonsequently awarded to PharmAthene
the Court described as an equitable payment stoeagquitable lien consisting of fifty percent okthet profits that we achieve from sale
ST-246 after we secure $40 million in net profits, fen years following the first commercial saleablidition, the Court awarded PharmAth
one-third of its reasonable attorneys’ fees ancexpitness expenses.

In May 2012, the Court entered its final order ardhment in this matter, implementing its p&s# opinion. Among other things, t
final order and judgment provided that (a) net fisofvould be calculated in accordance with gengradicepted accounting principles app
consistently with how they are applied in the prafian of our financial statements, (b) the netfipgccalculation would take into accol
expenses relating to ST-246 commencing with ouuisitpn of ST246 in August 2004, and (c) PharmAthene could rec®2.4 million o
attorneys’ fees and expenses.

In June 2012, the Company appealed to the Supresng Gf the State of Delaware the final order amdigiment and certain earl
rulings of the Court of Chancery. Shortly theregfftharmAthene filed its crosppeal. The Company obtained a stay of enforceofahe fet
and expense portion of the judgment by filing aegubond for the amount of the judgment plus podgment interest. We posted $1.3 mil
of cash as approximately 50% collateral for a $&illion surety bond. The $1.3 million of cash ctdleal is recorded in other assets a
December 31, 2014.

On January 10, 2013, the parties briefed the issuebargued before the Delaware Supreme Coubaet.

On May 24, 2013, the Supreme Court of Delawareedsts decision, affirming the Delaware Court ofa@berys judgment in pai
reversing it in part, and remanding to Vice ChaloceParsons. The Supreme Court affirmed the ChgnGaurt determination that t
Company had breached its contractual obligationetgotiate in good faith; reversed the promissotgmsel holding; and, reversed the \
Chancellors equitable damages award. The Supreme Court haldthe trial judge may award expectation damagesbfeach of th
contractual duty to negotiate in good faith if sutdmages are proven with reasonable certainty,raménded to the Chancery Court
consideration of damages consistent with that hgldThe Supreme Court also reversed the Chancamt’€award of attorney fees and ex
witness fees because they were predicated in pag now-reversed finding of liability on PharmAtieén promissory estoppel claim. 1
Supreme Court held that the Chancery Court cowdglal@ate on remand an alternative award, if anygtmirneys’fees and expert testimc
expenses consistent with the Supreme Court’s apifiimally, the Supreme Court declined to consiadeclaims raised in PharmAthesecros
appeal because it affirmed the Chancery Celiniding that the Company was liable for breachisgontractual obligation to negotiate in g
faith. On June 11, 2013, the Supreme Court issisadandate to the Court of Chancery with the degidsiescribed above.

On June 26, 2013, the parties appeared beforeGhiemcellor Parsons to discuss the remand, at wineghPharmAthene declared
desire to supplement the record with further evigerFollowing briefing and argument on August 1812 the Chancery Court gran
PharmAthene’s motion to supplement the record dsal @lowed the Company to submit responsive evide®n December 189, 2013, th
Court held an evidentiary hearing with respecthit £vidence. On January 15, 2014, after briefimgetevant issues, the parties appeare
oral argument regarding what remedy, if any, thar@ery Court should impose in light of the remapdHhe Supreme Court of Delaware.

On August 8, 2014, the Court of Chancery issuech#morandum opinion and order (the “Remand Opinidn”its Remand Opinio
the Court of Chancery reversed its earlier conohssiand held that PharmAthene had carried its bunfledemonstrating its entitlement to lu
sum expectation damages for lost profits relatedd@oovirimat by a preponderance of the evidencelsd stated that in order to calcu
PharmAthenes lost profits, several modifications to the vailomtmodel presented at trial (which the Court ola@tery had rejected as
speculative, among other things, in its pwostt opinion) were required, which modificationtset Court of Chancery set forth in the Ren
Opinion. The Court of Chancery ruled that PharmAth& entitled to the value of the revised calcoiet plus pre- and pogtdgment intere:
at the legal rate with prejudgment interest to aedrom December 20, 2006. The Court of Chancesy dénied and dismissed with prejut
PharmAthenes claims that it is entitled to specific performarar an equitable payment stream, on the grouradsPtiearmAthene is limited tc
contractual remedy and has an adequate remedy.afiaally, the Court of Chancery ruled that Phathexe was entitled to (i) forty percent
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of the reasonable attorneys’ fees and expensexiitried through post-trial argument, (ii) one-thofithe reasonable attorneyiges an
expenses it incurred in the remand proceedingp sty percent of expert witness fees it incuriedhe pretrial and trial phases, and (iv)
one-tenth of the expert witness fees it incurrethenremand proceedings.

The Remand Opinion instructed the parties to perfdamages calculations using the Court's newly fieaddbut previously rejectt
model. PharmAthene was instructed to provide SIGth & lump sum damages calculation within 10 bussngays, following which SIG
would respond within 10 business days with its @attulation, or agreement with PharmAthene. Addaity, the Remand Opinion specif
that the competing calculations would be submittethe Court of Chancery within 30 days from théedan which PharmAthene provided
lump sum damages calculation to SIGA, if thereoistinuing disagreement on the narrow issue of perifg the court's required calculations.

On September 16, 2014, as a consequence of SIG#ipter 11 filing, the legal proceedings with iifthene were stayed (see N
1 to the financial statements). On October 8, 2@i& Bankruptcy Court approved a stipulation (thtipulation” ) between the Company &
PharmAthene partially lifting the stay to permietlitigation before the Delaware Chancery Couriptoceed, including all appeals. 7
Stipulation, however, provides that the stay skafiain in effect with respect to the enforcemerdrof judgment that may be entered.

On October 17, the Company and PharmAthene sepamibmitted competing damages calculations to Goairt of Chancer
PharmAthene’s submission noted a damages calcujaticlusive of prgudgment interest, of approximately $233 millionadsSeptember 3
2014. The Company’s submission noted a damageslatdm, inclusive of prggdgment interest, of approximately $173 millionadsAugus
8, 2014 (the date of the Remand Opinion). The saparalculations submitted by PharmAthene and th@apany are based on each partie:
interpretation of the adjusted valuation methodgldlge Court of Chancery directed the parties tdizetiin the Remand Opinion.In
submission, the Company stated that SIGA intendargme on appeal that PharmAthene has no entitietoeany award of expectati
damages, but, rather, should be limited to a ragoweéits reliance interest of approximately $2@M0 Accordingly, the ultimate loss to
incurred from this litigation is highly uncertaim@é may be significantly different from the rangeaaficulations set forth in the October
submission to the Court of Chancery.

As part of the October 17 submissions, PharmAtloateulated SIGA’s liability for reimbursement of@iney’s fees, expert witness
costs and other costs as $3.2 million.

On January 7, 2015, the Delaware Court of Chanissned a letter opinion, directing PharmAtheneutonsit a revised proposed fii
order and judgment reflecting certain rulings imttlopinion, including an award to PharmAthene 013116,985 in contract expectat
damages, plus interest. On January 9, 2015, PhawenAtsubmitted a revised proposed final order adgment. On January 12, 2015, SI
submitted limited objections to PharmAthene's psmabfinal order and judgment, to which PharmAthesponded on January 14, 2015.

On January 15, 2015, the Delaware Court of Chaneetgred its Final Order and Judgment, awardingh@armAthene $113,116,¢
in contract expectation damages, plus jpdgment interest up to January 15, 2015, and iceprmitted legal fees, costs, and expenses,
Judgment of $194,649,042. Pursuant to the Januarfidal Order and Judgment, SIGA also is liablePttarmAthene for pogtxdgmen
interest, in the amount of $30,663.89, per diemictvper diem amount shall periodically be adjusted.

Both parties were free to appeal from the portiohthe trial court rulings on remand that were wofable to them within 30 days
entry of the Delaware Court of Chancery's Final é@rdnd Judgment. On January 16, 2015, SIGA appdated certain portions of ti
Delaware Court of Chancery's rulings on remanduding but not limited to the Final Order and Judgpnt) to the Delaware Supreme Court.
January 29, 2015, PharmAthene crappealed from certain portions of the Delaware €ofiChancery's rulings on remand, including but
limited to the Final Order and Judgment, to thea&lre Supreme Court. There is no assurance that @ppeal will be successful.

The ultimate loss to be incurred in the future frira PharmAthene litigation is highly uncertain andy differ significantly from th
Outstanding Judgment. However, SIGA believes thailamate loss of some amount is probable. Bectuséuture outcome of SIGA's apf
of the Final Order and Judgment to the Supremet@dubelaware is highly uncertain, the Company based its loss accrual on the Janua
2015 Delaware Court of Chancery letter opinion, tredsubsequent judgment entered by the Delawanet @bChancery on January 15, 2(
Based on the Delaware Court of Chancery letteriopjrSIGA has recorded a loss accrual for expenatiamages of approximately $1¢
million as of December 31, 2014. This amount issiféed as a liability subject to compromise. Irgd in loss accrual, the company acc
prejudgment interest through September 16, 2014, SH@hAapter 11 filing date, because it is currentigastain whether interest accri
subsequent to the chapter 11 filing date will bet phany allowed claim.
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In addition to the damages loss accrual, SIGA rgmmtely accrued $3.2 million for PharmAthene®raeys’ fees and expe
expenses, related to the case.

From time to time, the Company is involved in disgsuor legal proceedings arising in the ordinamyrse of business.
In addition, like many biopharmaceutical companigs,may from time to time hire scientific personf@merly employed by oth
companies involved in one or more areas simildhéoactivities conducted by us. It is possible thiatand/or these individuals may be sut

to allegations of trade secret misappropriationtber similar claims as a result of their prioiilatfions.

Risks Related to Our Financial Position and Need foAdditional Financing

We have incurred operating losses since our inceptand expect to incur net losses for the foresdedhbture.

We incurred net operating losses of approximat@yas7 million and $23.5 million for the years endgecember 31, 2014 and 20
respectively. As of December 31, 2014, 2013 and226(ir accumulated deficit was approximately $428illion, $156.5 million and $139
million, respectively. We expect to continue to éaignificant operating expenses and will needettegate significant revenues to achieve
maintain profitability.

Our ability to fund operations is substantially dedent on cash flows from delivery of Tecovirinlatve do not achieve positive c¢
flows, we cannot guarantee that we can sustaimlosrece our current level of operations. We exgweat ¢ash flows will fluctuate significan
and could be delayed from one quarter to anothegdan several factors. If cash flows grow slowantwe anticipate, or if operating expel
or expenses resulting from the appeal of the Oudiétg Judgment in the litigation commenced by Phghane exceed our expectation:
cannot be adjusted accordingly, then our businessilts of operations, financial condition and céisiws will be materially and adverst
affected.

Future acquisitions, strategic investments, partsbips or alliances could be difficult to identifynal integrate, divert the attention
management, disrupt our business, dilute stockhaldalue and adversely affect our operating resudtisd financial condition.

We may in the future seek to acquire or investusiresses, products or technologies that we betieulel complement or expand
services, enhance our technical capabilities oerotise offer growth opportunities, though we do eapect to seek such acquisition:
investments during the pendency of our restrucuprocess under chapter 11. The pursuit of poteatiguisitions may divert the attentior
management and cause us to incur various expenseerntifying, investigating and pursuing businesssge may not be able to integi
successfully the acquired personnel, operationstecithologies, or effectively manage the combinesiriess following the acquisitions. '
may not be able to find and identify desirable &sitjon targets or be successful in entering intoagreement with any particulate tar
Acquisitions could also result in dilutive issuasicd# equity securities or the issuance of debtctvicbuld adversely affect our operating res
In addition, if an acquired business fails to nmatexpectations, our operating results, busineddiaancial condition may suffer.

We may need additional funding, which may not beadable to us, and which may force us to delay, ueé or eliminate any of our produ
development programs or commercialization efforts.

While we have raised substantial funds throughitfedilities and the issuance of new equity or #xercise of options or warrants
the past, there is no guarantee that we will comtito be successful in raising such funds. If veeuarable to raise additional funds, we coul
forced to discontinue, cease or limit certain opens. Our cash flows may fall short of our projecs or be delayed, or our expenses
increase, which could result in our capital beiogsumed significantly faster than anticipated. @unual operating needs vary from ye:
year depending upon the amount of cash generatedgin the BARDA Contract, contracts, grants, li@nsthe amount of projects
undertake, and the amount of resources we expetmhimection with acquisitions, all of which may evélly differ from year to year and m
adversely affect our business.

We may require additional financing and we may betable to raise additional funds. If we are ableltain additional financir
through the sale of equity or convertible debt s¢ies, such sales may contain terms, such asdigigin and other preferences that are
favorable to us or our stockholders. If we raisditiohal funds through collaboration and licensargangements with third parties, it may
necessary to relinquish valuable rights to ournetdgies or product candidates or grant licenseteons that may not be favorable to us. [
financing arrangements, if available, may requsdaipledge certain assets or enter into coverthatsvould restrict our business activitie:
our ability to incur further indebtedness and mayabinterest rates and contain other terms tleatatr favorable to our shareholders.
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The possibility of potential substantial loss frothe PharmAthene litigation, combined with the costtendant to the administration of tt
Companys chapter 11 case, have led our independent regéstgoublic accounting firm to express substantiabubt about our ability t
continue as a going concern.

The possibility of potential substantial loss frddmarmAthene litigation, combined with the costseratant to the administration of

Companys chapter 11 case, have led our independent reggigbeiblic accounting firm to express substantiaitit about our ability to contin
as a going concern in its report to our financiatements as of and for the year ended Decembe&2034. If we are forced to liquidate or
otherwise unable to continue as a going concewestors will likely lose all of their investment @ur Company.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our stock price is, and we expect it to remain,atile, which could limit investors’ ability to seBtock at a profit.

The volatile price of our stock makes it difficéittr investors to predict the value of their investits, to sell shares at a profit at
given time, or to plan purchases and sales in avah variety of factors may affect the market eraf our common stock. These include,
are not limited to:

» publicity regarding actual or potential clinical animal test results relating to products underetigpment by our competitors
us;

* initiating, completing or analyzing, or a delay failure in initiating, completing or analyzingre<linical or clinical trials @
animal trials or the design or results of thesa4ri

e achievement or rejection of regulatory approval®bycompetitors or u
« announcements of technological innovations or nemroercial products by our competitors ot

» developments concerning proprietary rights, inalgdpatents and rights to Tecovirimat or a portiérthe net profits associat
therewith as asserted by PharmAthene;

» developments concerning our collaborati

* regulatory developments in the United States argida countries

+ economic or other crises and other external fay

* period-toperiod fluctuations in our revenues and other tesafl operation:

» changes in financial estimates by securities ats

* publicity or activity involving possible future agigitions, strategic investments, partnershipsl@rees
» the status of the listing of our common stock onSIDRQ; ant

* matters relating to our chapter 11 proceed

Additionally, because the volume of trading in atwck fluctuates significantly at times, any infation about us in the media n
result in significant volatility in our stock price

We will not be able to control many of these fast@nd we believe that period{period comparisons of our financial results wilk
necessarily be indicative of our future performance

In addition, the stock market in general, and tteekmat for biotechnology companies in particulars kaperienced extreme price

volume fluctuations that may have been unrelategisproportionate to the operating performancendividual companies. These broad ma
and industry factors may seriously harm the mapkiee of our common stock, regardless of our opeggterformance.
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A future issuance of preferred stock may adversaffect the rights of the holders of our common skos

Our certificate of incorporation allows our Boarfd@irectors to issue up to 10,000,000 shares diepred stock and to fix the voti
powers, designations, preferences, rights and fgpaions, limitations or restrictions of these sfsmwithout any further vote or action by
stockholders. The rights of the holders of commimelswill be subject to, and could be adverselgei#d by, the rights of the holders of
preferred stock that we may issue in the futuree Hsuance of preferred stock, while providing ddse flexibility in connection with ol
future activities, could also have the effect ofking it more difficult for a third party to acquire majority of our outstanding voting stc
thereby delaying, deferring or preventing a changsntrol.

Concentration of ownership of our capital stock cloudelay or prevent a change of control.

Our directors, executive officers and principalcktwlders beneficially own a significant percentaf@ur common stock. They a
have, through the exercise or conversion of cedanurities, the right to acquire additional comnstock. As a result, these stockholder
acting together, have the ability to influence diecome of corporate actions requiring sharehadgroval. Additionally, this concentration
ownership may have the effect of delaying or prémgna change in control of SIGA. As of the mostemet available information, directc
executive officers and principal stockholders benaify owned approximately 30% of our outstandstgck.

Risks Related to Our Business

The loss of key personnel or our ability to recrwit retain qualified personnel could adversely afteour results of operations.

We rely upon the ability, expertise, judgment, cision, integrity and good faith of our senior mgeaent team. Our succes:
dependent upon our personnel and our ability touieand train high quality employees. We must cur to recruit, retain and motivi
management and other employees sufficient to nimiotar current business and support our projectedvty. The loss of services of any
our key management could have a material advefseten our business.

Our future success depends on our ability to retain chief executive officer and other key execegivand to attract, retain ¢
motivate qualified personnel. The loss of the smwiof any key executive might impede the achiewmtrogour research, development
commercialization objectives. Replacing key empésyenay be difficult and timeensuming because of the limited number of indigldur
our industry with the skills and experiences reggito develop, gain regulatory approval of and cemumlize our product candida
successfully. We generally do not maintain key perlfe insurance to cover the loss of any of omplyees. Recruiting and retain
qualified scientific personnel, clinical personiaeld sales and marketing personnel will also bécalito our success. We may not be ab
attract and retain these personnel on acceptabiestef at all, given the competition among numergaharmaceutical and biotechnol
companies for similar personnel. We also experiecwapetition for the hiring of scientific and claal personnel from other compan
universities and research institutions. In additive rely on consultants and advisors, includingrgdic and clinical advisors, to assist u:
formulating our research and development, regutatord commercialization strategy. Our consultamd advisors may be employed
employers other than us and may have commitmemtsrwonsulting or advisory contracts with otheiitezg that may limit their availability
us.

We may have difficulty managing our growth.

Potential future growth could place a significatn&is on our management and operations. Our aliditpanage any future growth v
depend upon our ability to broaden our managenearhtand our ability to attract, hire and retairlattiemployees. Our success will ¢
depend on the ability of our officers and key ergpls to continue to implement and improve our dperal and other systems and to t
train and manage our employees.

Our ability to use our net operating loss carryfoands may be limited.

As of December 31, 2014, we had federal net opaydtiss carryforwards, or NOLs, of $87.4 milliondffset future taxable incon
In 2012 previously available NOLs of approximat8l.2 million were expired. The remaining NOLs egpin various years between 2021
2034, if not utilized. Under the provisions of thigernal Revenue Code, substantial changes in waership, in certain circumstances,
limit the amount of NOLs that can be utilized anihuin the future to offset taxable income. In pautar, section 382 of the Internal Reve
Code imposes on a company's ability to use NOblscibmpany experiences a more-than-50% ownershipgehaver a thregear period. If w
are limited in our ability to use our NOLs in futuyears in which we have taxable income, we wiyl pere taxes than if we were able to uti
our NOLs fully. For example, as a result of a poenéi change in stock ownership, the annual utibratf the net operating carryforwa
generated in tax years prior to 2004 may be subgeanitation.
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Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

Our headquarters are located in New York, NY andresearch and development facilities are locatg@drvallis, Oregon. In Janus
2013, we entered into a sublease with an affiltatesublet expanded office space in a New York, N¥ation to serve as our corpol
headquarters. The sublease commenced in April 28d3®xpires in 2020.

In Corvallis, we lease approximately 32,700 squiaet under an amended lease agreement signed uraryaB007, which wz
amended and extended on June 1, 2011. The Compangiy occupied 5,700 square feet under a sublegieement signed in January 2
which expired in September 2011. The facilitieséghin Corvallis includes space existing underptier lease terms and newly construs
space in the same building under the most recaselamendment.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In December 2006, PharmAthene filed an action agais in the Delaware Court of Chancery captionearAthene, Inc. v. SIG
Technologies, Inc., C.A. No. 2627CP. In its amended complaint, PharmAthene askedthurt to order us to enter into a license agred
with PharmAthene with respect to 86, also known as Tecovirimat, to declare thativeeobliged to execute such a license agreemestc
award damages resulting from our alleged breathatfobligation. PharmAthene also alleges that vead¢hed an obligation to negotiate su
license agreement in good faith, and sought damfagg@somissory estoppel and unjust enrichment éb@seinformation, capital, and assista
that PharmAthene allegedly provided to us duriregribgotiation process. The Court tried the casSaruary 2011.

In September 2011, the Court of Chancery issuecdts-trial opinion. The Court denied PharmAthene2quests for speci
performance and expectation damages measured dgnprealue of estimated future profits. Nevertheléise Court held that we breached
duty to negotiate in good faith and were liable @mithe doctrine of promissory estoppel. The Coonsequently awarded to PharmAthene
the Court described as an equitable payment stoeagquitable lien consisting of fifty percent okthet profits that we achieve from sale
ST-246 after we secure $40 million in net profits, fen years following the first commercial salealidition, the Court awarded PharmAth
one-third of its reasonable attorneys’ fees ancexpitness expenses.

In May 2012, the Court entered its final order ardgment in this matter, implementing its p&s# opinion. Among other things, t
final order and judgment provided that (a) net fisofvould be calculated in accordance with gengradicepted accounting principles app
consistently with how they are applied in the prafian of our financial statements, (b) the netfipgccalculation would take into accol
expenses relating to ST-246 commencing with ouuisitpn of ST246 in August 2004, and (c) PharmAthene could rec®2.4 million o
attorneys’ fees and expenses.

In June 2012, the Company appealed to the Supresng Gf the State of Delaware the final order amdigiment and certain earl
rulings of the Court of Chancery. Shortly theregfftharmAthene filed its crosppeal. The Company obtained a stay of enforceofahe fet
and expense portion of the judgment by filing aegubond for the amount of the judgment plus podgment interest. We posted $1.3 mil
of cash as approximately 50% collateral for a $&illion surety bond. The $1.3 million of cash ctdleal is recorded in other assets a
December 31, 2014 .

On January 10, 2013, the parties briefed the issuebargued before the Delaware Supreme Coubiaen.

On May 24, 2013, the Supreme Court of Delawareedsts decision, affirming the Delaware Court ofa@berys judgment in pai
reversing it in part, and remanding to Vice ChaloceParsons. The Supreme Court affirmed the ChgnGaurt determination that t
Company had breached its contractual obligationetgotiate in good faith; reversed the promissotgmsel holding; and, reversed the \
Chancellors equitable damages award. The Supreme Court haldthe trial judge may award expectation damagesbfeach of th
contractual duty to negotiate in good faith if sutdmages are proven with reasonable certainty,raménded to the Chancery Court
consideration of damages consistent with that hgldThe Supreme Court also reversed the Chancamt’€award of attorney fees and ex
witness fees because they were predicated in pag now-reversed finding of liability on PharmAtieén promissory estoppel claim. 1
Supreme Court held that the Chancery Court cowdglaleate on remand an alternative award, if anygtmirneys’fees and expert testimc
expenses consistent with the Supreme Court’s apiiimally, the Supreme Court declined to consadeclaims raised in PharmAthersecros
appeal because it
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affirmed the Chancery Coustfinding that the Company was liable for breachitsgcontractual obligation to negotiate in goodhfaOn Jun
11, 2013, the Supreme Court issued its mandatest€burt of Chancery with the decision describeul/ab

On June 26, 2013, the parties appeared beforeGhiemcellor Parsons to discuss the remand, at wineghPharmAthene declared
desire to supplement the record with further evigerFollowing briefing and argument on August 1812 the Chancery Court gran
PharmAthene’s motion to supplement the record dsal @lowed the Company to submit responsive evide®n December 189, 2013, th
Court held an evidentiary hearing with respecthit evidence. On January 15, 2014, after briefingebevant issues, the parties appeare
oral argument regarding what remedy, if any, thar@ery Court should impose in light of the remapdhe Supreme Court of Delaware.

On August 8, 2014, the Court of Chancery issuedR@mand Opinion. In its Remand Opinion, the CodirCbancery reversed
earlier conclusions and held that PharmAthene laaded its burden of demonstrating its entitlemeriump sum expectation damages for
profits related to Tecovirimat by a preponderantéhe evidence. It also stated that in order tcwake PharmAthens’lost profits, sever
modifications to the valuation model presentediat {which the Court of Chancery had rejectedas gpeculative, among other things, it
postirial opinion) were required, which modificatiofgetCourt of Chancery set forth in the Remand Opinithe Court of Chancery ruled t
PharmAthene is entitled to the value of the revisgdulations plus pre- and pgatigment interest at the legal rate with prejudgnieterest t
accrue from December 20, 2006. The Court of Chanakso denied and dismissed with prejudice Pharmigls claims that it is entitled
specific performance or an equitable payment streamthe grounds that PharmAthene is limited t@@tractual remedy and has an adec
remedy at law. Finally, the Court of Chancery ruthdt PharmAthene was entitled to (i) forty percefthe reasonable attorneyges an
expenses it incurred through post-trial argumeiil,ope-third of the reasonable attorneyises and expenses it incurred in the rer
proceedings, (iii) sixty percent of expert witndsas it incurred in the pretrial and trial phases] (iv) and ongenth of the expert witness ft
it incurred in the remand proceedings.

The Remand Opinion instructed the parties to perfdamages calculations using the Court's newly fisabbut previously rejectt
model. PharmAthene was instructed to provide SIGth a lump sum damages calculation within 10 bussneays, following which SIG
would respond within 10 business days with its @attulation, or agreement with PharmAthene. Addaity, the Remand Opinion specif
that the competing calculations would be submittethe Court of Chancery within 30 days from théedan which PharmAthene provided
lump sum damages calculation to SIGA, if thereoistimuing disagreement on the narrow issue of penifg the court's required calculations.

On September 16, 2014, as a consequence of SIG#ipter 11 filing, the legal proceedings with iifthene were stayed (see N
1 to the financial statements). On October 8, 2Qkhd, Bankruptcy Court approved a Stipulation betwdee Company and PharmAth:
partially lifting the stay to permit the litigatidnefore the Delaware Chancery Court to proceedijdimg all appeals. The Stipulation, howe
provides that the stay shall remain in effect wibpect to the enforcement of any judgment that Ineagntered.

On October 17, the Company and PharmAthene sepamibmitted competing damages calculations to Goert of Chancer
PharmAthene’s submission noted a damages calaujatidlusive of prgudgment interest, of approximately $233 millionaisSeptember 3
2014. The Company’s submission noted a damageslaadm, inclusive of prggdgment interest, of approximately $173 millionadsAugus
8, 2014 (the date of the Remand Opinion). The saparalculations submitted by PharmAthene and th@apany are based on each partie:
interpretation of the adjusted valuation methodpltige Court of Chancery directed the parties tdizetiin the Remand Opinion.. In
submission, the Company stated that SIGA intendargme on appeal that PharmAthene has no entitietoeany award of expectati
damages, but, rather, should be limited to a ragowéits reliance interest of approximately $2@M0 Accordingly, the ultimate loss to
incurred from this litigation is highly uncertaimé may be significantly different from the rangeaaficulations set forth in the October
submission to the Court of Chancery.

As part of the October 17 submissions, PharmAttreateulated SIGA’s liability for reimbursement otainey’s fees, expert witne
costs and other costs as $3.2 million.

On January 7, 2015, the Delaware Court of Chanissned a letter opinion, directing PharmAtheneutonsit a revised proposed fii
order and judgment reflecting certain rulings imttlopinion, including an award to PharmAthene 01%116,985 in contract expectat
damages, plus interest. On January 9, 2015, Ph&wenatsubmitted a revised proposed final order addgment. On January 12, 2015, S|
submitted limited objections to PharmAthene’s premabfinal order and judgment, to which PharmAthersponded on January 14, 2015.
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On January 15, 2015, the Delaware Court of Chaneetgred its Final Order and Judgment, awardingh@armAthene $113,116,¢
in contract expectation damages, plus jpdggment interest up to January 15, 2015, and icepermitted legal fees, costs, and expenses,
judgment of $194,649,042. Pursuant to the FinaleDehd Judgment, SIGA also is liable to PharmAthiemepos-judgment interest, in tl
amount of $30,663.89, per diem, which per diem amhsball periodically be adjusted.

Both parties were free to appeal from the portiohthe trial court rulings on remand that were wofable to them within 30 days
entry of the Final Order and Judgment. On Januéry@15, SIGA appealed from certain portions of Biedaware Court of Chancery's rulil
on remand, including but not limited to the Finaldé and Judgment, to the Delaware Supreme Courtld@Duary 29, 2015, PharmAth
cross-appealed from certain portions of the Delaw@ourt of Chancerg’ rulings on remand, including but not limited ke t~inal Order ar
Judgment, to the Delaware Supreme Court. There &saurance that either appeal will be successful.

The ultimate loss to be incurred in the future frira PharmAthene litigation is highly uncertain andy differ significantly from th
Outstanding Judgment. However, SIGA believes thatlimate loss of some amount is probable. Becthuséuture outcome of SIGA’appes
of the Final Order and Judgment to the Supremet@dubelaware is highly uncertain, the Company based its loss accrual on the Janua
2015 Delaware Court of Chancery letter opinion, tredsubsequent judgment entered by the Delawanet @bChancery on January 15, 2(
Based on the Delaware Court of Chancery letteriopjrSIGA has recorded a loss accrual for expenatiamages of approximately $1¢
million as of December 31, 2014. This amount issiféed as a liability subject to compromise. Irt#d in the loss accrual, the Comp
accrued pre-judgment interest through Septembe20®4, SIGAS chapter 11 filing date, because it is currentigautain whether intere
accrued subsequent to the chapter 11 filing ddtéwipart of any allowed claim.

In addition to the damages loss accrual, SIGA tgmmtely accrued $3.2 million for PharmAthene®raeys’ fees and expe
expenses, related to the case.

See “Chapter 11 Filing,” in Item 1, “ Business” faformation relating to the Company’s ongoing dieafi1 proceedings.

From time to time, the Company is involved in digsuor legal proceedings arising in the ordinanyrse of business. The Comp.
believes that there is no dispute or litigation gieg, except as discussed above, that could hadejidually or in the aggregate, a mate
adverse effect on its financial position, resuftsperations or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

No disclosure is required pursuant to this item.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities
Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock trades under the symbol “SIG3wF common stock has been traded on the Nasdag@@Wdrket since Septemt
3, 2009 and, prior to such date, had been tradatieiNasdaq Capital Market since September 9, 1RP8ar to that time there was no pul
market for our common stock. The following tabléssterth, for the periods indicated, the high aow kales prices for the common stock
reported on the Nasdaq Global Market:

2014 High Low

First Quarter $ 3.87 $ 2.94
Second Quarter 3.2¢ 2.4¢
Third Quarter 2.91 0.9¢
Fourth Quarter 1.7¢ 1.32
2013 High Low

First Quarter $ 46C $ 2.71
Second Quarter 4.0C 2.7z
Third Quarter 4.0C 2.82
Fourth Quarter 4.1t 2.9C

As of February 17, 2015, the closing sale priceowf common stock was $2.Gfer share. There were 31 holders of record
February 17, 2015. We believe that the number oefieial owners of our common stock is substantigileater than the number of rec
holders, because a large portion of common stobkli in broker “street names.”

We have paid no dividends on our common stock andad expect to pay cash dividends in the forededakure. We are not unc
any restriction as to our present or future abilitypay dividends. We currently intend to retaily &imure earnings to finance the growth
development of our business. See “ Other Mattefat&to the Chapter 11 Case,” in Item 1, “ Bussfiésr information relating to the status
our listing on the Nasdaq Global Market.
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Performance Graph
The following line graph compares the cumulativealtstockholder return through December 31, 20B4uming reinvestment

dividends, by an investor who invested $100 on bressr 31, 2009 in each of (i) our common stock;ttig Nasdaq National Marké&tS; anc
(i) the Nasdaq Pharmaceutical Index.

December 31,

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
SIGA Technologies, Inc. $ 177 $ 426 3 77 $ 8C $ 10C $ 25
NASDAQ Composite Index $ 144  $ 16 $ 165 $ 191 $ 268 $ 20¢
NASDAQ Biotech Composite Index $ 11€ % 13: % 14¢  $ 19€ $ 32t % 371
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The information required by this item concerninguséies authorized for issuance under equity camp#on plans is set forth in Ite
12, “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owsnand Management and Related Stockholder Matters.”

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected financial data for the years endededéer 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 and the consolidadéxhce sheet data as
December 31, 2014 and 2013 have been derived frorawdited consolidated financial statements inatlidilsewhere in this Annual Repori
Form 10K. The selected financial data for the years eridecember 31, 2011 and 2010 and the consolidatesh&x@sheet data as of Decen
31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 have been derived fromcaiyhé audited consolidated financial statementsimduded in this annual report. T
following table should be read in conjunction witem 7, “Managemens’ Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord d&esults ¢
Operations,” and the consolidated financial statésand related notes to those statements incleldedhere in this annual report.
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Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Selling, general and administrative 12,52: 13,04¢ 10,96° 21,88: 8,13!

Patent preparation fees 98¢ 1,421 1,88 1,80¢ 1,14¢

Restructuring charges — 51z — — —

Decrease (increase) in fair value of comstock warrants 31z (74) 80¢ 24,43¢ (38,110

Other income, net 1 1 1 13 65¢

Loss before income taxes (211,93) (24,79¢) (21,909 (6,939 (50,179

Net income (loss) $ (265,46) $ (17,17 (14,060 $ 29,10 $ (50,34%)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share

Weighted average shares outstanding: diluted 53,419,68 52,368,84 51,639,62 54,061,65 45,151,77

Total assets $ 166,38 $ 193,82: $ 105,83t $ 90,38( $ 27,03.

Stockholders’ equity (deficit) $ (246,50) $ 16,97t $ 28,24:  $ 40,77 $ (12,919

w |
(o]
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiomcwith our consolidated financial statements aodies to those statements and
other financial information appearing elsewheretiis Annual Report on Form 10-K. In addition totbrécal information, the following
discussion and other parts of this Annual Repontaim forward-looking information that involves kisand uncertainties

Overview

We are a company specializing in the developmedtcammercialization of solutions for serious unmetdical needs and biothre:
Our lead product is Tecovirimat, also known as 2&6; an orally administered antiviral drug thatgtts orthopoxviruses, includi
smallpox. While Tecovirimat is not yet licensedsage or effective by the U.S. Food & Drug Admirasion, it is a novel smalholecule dru
that is being delivered to the Strategic Natiortac®pile under Project Bioshield.

Chapter 11 Filing

On September 16, 2014, the Company filed a volyrpatition for relief under chapter 11 of Title di the Bankruptcy Code in t
Bankruptcy Court, chapter 11 Case Number 14-12628 J. The Company is continuing to operate its bess as a “debtor-in-possessiam”
accordance with the applicable provisions of thekBaptcy Code. The Company commenced the chapterndéd to preserve and to ensur
ability to satisfy its commitments under the BARIntract and to preserve its operations, whichylikeould have been jeopardized by
enforcement of a judgment stemming from the liimatwith PharmAthene (see Note 14 to the finanstatements). While operating a
debtor-inpossession under chapter 11, the Company is pgrsulirat it believes is a meritorious appeal of thedaware Court of Chance
Final Order and Judgment, without the necessityosting a bond.

PharmAthene Litigation

On August 8, 2014, the Delaware Court of Chancesyed its Remand Opinion and related order initigation initiated against ti
Company in 2006 by PharmAthene. In the Remand ©Opjnihe Court of Chancery determined, among othielgs, that PharmAthene
entitled to a lump sum damages award for its losfiprelated to Tecovirimat, with interest and $edased on United States governr
purchases of the Company's smallpox drug allegaudtiicipated as of December 2006. On January 15,20& Delaware Court of Chanc
entered its Final Order and Judgment awarding PAdreme approximately $195 million, including gredlgment interest up to January
2015 . The Company's pending chapter 11 case pe®RirarmAthene from taking any enforcement actiothia time and also permits 1
Company's appeal of the Outstanding Judgment forgard without the need to post a bond. On Jan@&r2015, the Company filed a no
of appeal of the Outstanding Judgment.

Administration of Chapter 11 Cas

On September 17, 2014, the Company received Batdyrupourt approval of certain “first-daytotions, which preserved 1
Company's ability to continue operations withoueiruption in chapter 11. As part of the “first-dayotions, the Company received appr:
to pay or otherwise honor certain gretition obligations generally designed to supploet Company's operations. Additionally, the Bankey
Court confirmed the Company's authority to paygoods and services received post-petition in th&ary course of business.

In October, the U.S. Trustee appointed the UCQfficial committee of unsecured creditors. The UR43 a right to be heard on |
issue in the Company’s chapter 11 case. Therebeano assurance that the UCC will support the Caoryigapositions on matters to
presented to the Bankruptcy Court in the futurevithh respect to any plan of reorganization, whewppsed.

As part of the chapter 11 case, the Company hameet, pursuant to Bankruptcy Court authorizatlegal and other professionals
advise the Company in connection with the admiaigin of its chapter 11 case and its litigationhwRharmAthene, and certain ot
professionals to provide services and advice inottdgnary course of business. From time to tirhe, Company may seek Bankruptcy C
approval to retain additional professionals.

Pursuant to an order of the Bankruptcy Court, d@etbber 28, 2014, the Company was authorized yor@abursable prgetitior
obligations to certain service providers that aréyfreimbursable by BARDA pursuant to the BARDA i@@ct. Pursuant to an order of
Bankruptcy Court, dated January 14, 2015, the Compeas authorized to satisfy a fulbgcured term loan provided by General Ele
Capital Corporation in the approximate amount aB%illion. Such amount, and related fees, was pgithe Company on January 16, 2
and all liens securing the credit facility weresased.
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On January 29, 2015, the Company filed a motior it Bankruptcy Court to assume the BARDA Confrastamended by t
BARDA Amendment, under the provisions of the Bamitcy Code. If the motion is granted, the partisghts and obligations under 1
BARDA Contract, as so amended, will continue withaay impact arising from SIGA’filing for relief under chapter 11 of the Bankicy
Code. The Motion currently is scheduled to be atergid by the Bankruptcy Court on March 17, 2015.

Plan Reorganizatior

The Company has not yet filed a plan of reorgamirzatith the Bankruptcy Court. The Company hasdkelusive right to file a ple
of reorganization through and including May14, 2048d to solicit votes on such a plan if filed lgcls date through and including July
2015, subject to the ability of parties in intertsfile motions seeking to terminate the Compaeyausive periods, as well as the Compe
right to seek further extensions of such periodee Tompany has a right to seek further extensiérssich exclusive periods, subject to
statutory limit of 18 months from the Petition Dattethe case of filing a plan and 20 months in¢hse of soliciting and obtaining accepta
of such a plan. The implementation of a plan ofganization is subject to confirmation of the ptanthe Bankruptcy Court in accordance \
the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, and the petice of the effective date under the plan. Ad thme, there is no certainty as to when
a plan will be filed, the provisions of a plan (uding provisions with respect to the treatmenpdépetition claims and equity interests)
whether a plan will be confirmed and become efecti

Other Matters Related to the Chapter 11 Case
On September 16, 2014, the Company received a fettm the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC asserting thiadsed on the Comparsy’

chapter 11 filing, the Company no longer met thatioming listing requirements necessary to mainigsnlisting on the NASDAQ Stox
Market. The Company appealed such assertion. Oob®ctl6, 2014, representatives of the Company appdzefore the NASDAQ Sto
Market LLC’s hearings panel to present the Compsuayppeal, asking the panel to exercise its disereétd allow the Company to maintain
listing for up to five additional months (the lindf the paneB discretion at that time). On October 29, 2014,Glompany received the decis
of the NASDAQ hearings panel. The NASDAQ hearingaqd decided that the CompasyCommon Stock would remain listed, subject tc
the Company providing the NASDAQ hearings panehwibnfidential updates regarding the status of RharmAthene litigation, pub
disclosures relating to such litigation and to @oegsible judgment, and (b) the Company, on or leefidarch 16, 2015, emerging from cha
11 and evidencing compliance with all requiremdatdnitial listing on the NASDAQ Stock Market. TIRASDAQ hearings panel also sta
that it reserved the right to reconsider its deteation based upon any event, condition or circamse that exists or develops that would, it
opinion of the panel, make continued listing of empanys securities on the NASDAQ Stock Market inadvisatteunwarranted. Tl
Company does not expect to emerge from bankruptcgrdefore March 16, 2015. Accordingly, there banno assurance that the Comg
will meet the conditions required by the NASDAQ hHiegs panel and maintain the listing of its Comn&tack on NASDAQ.

Optimization Program

In the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company beganoptimization program to increase efficiencies wmtlits operations (tt
“Optimization Program”)This program, which included a reduction in empyeadcount, was intended to align the Compangturees
staff and efforts with the most promising growthpogunities. A substantial portion of the Optimipat Program was implemented as
December 31, 2013.

Lead Product - Tecovirimat

On May 13, 2011, we signed the BARDA Contract parguo which we agreed to deliver two million casf Tecovirimat to tt
Strategic Stockpile. The BARDA Contract is worttpegximately $463 million, including $409.8 millidier manufacture and delivery of :
million courses of Tecovirimat and $54 million oftpntial reimbursements related to developmentsaportive activities. In addition to 1
Base Contract, the BARDA Contract also containsouaroptions that are exercisable at BARBAiscretion and would fund development
supportive activities such as work on pediatric gedatric formulations of the drug as well as v§decovirimat for smallpox prophylax
would result in $50 million payment to the CompdoayFDA approval for extension to 8enth expiry for Tecovirimat (from 38 month exg
as required in the Base Contract); and/or wouldi faroduction-related activities such as warase manufacturing. As of December 31, 2
BARDA has not exercised any options. The BARDA Cacit expires in September 2020.

Under the Base Contract , BARDA has agreed to bom fSIGA 1.7 million courses of Tecovirimat. Additially, SIGA expects
contribute to BARDA 300,000 courses at no additiaost to BARDA.

As discussed in Item 3, “Legal Proceedinghg amount of profits we will retain pursuant t@ BARDA Contract may be advers
affected by the outcome of PharmAthene’s actionnsg&IGA.
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We believe Tecovirimat is among the first new smadilecule drugs delivered to the Strategic Stockpileer Project BioShiel
Tecovirimat is an investigational product that @&t nurrently approved by FDA as a treatment of f§moal or any other indication. FDA h
designated Tecovirimat for “fast-track” status,atieg a path for expedited FDA review and eventagllatory approval.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The methods, estimates and judgments we use igiagpur accounting policies have a significant &opon the results we repor
our consolidated financial statements, which wewlis under the heading “Results of Operationsb¥alhg this section of our Management’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition delsults of Operations. Some of our accounting Esicequire us to make difficult a
subjective judgments, often as a result of the reethake estimates of matters that are inherentexain. Our most critical account
estimates include the valuation of stdzksed awards including options, revenue recognitioome taxes and contingencies. For a del
discussion of the application of these and otheoaeting policies, see Note 2 to our consolidatedrfcial statements.

Going Concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statemieat® been prepared assuming that the Company amtimue as a going conct
and contemplate the realization of assets andatigfaction of liabilities in the normal courselnfsiness. The Comparsyability to continue ¢
a going concern is expected to be impacted by theome of the Company’s appeal of pomtiand judgment by the Delaware Cout
Chancery (as described in Note 14 to the finarst@ements), as well as the resolution of its @rapt case. The Delaware Court of Chant
acting on remand from the Delaware Supreme Contéred its Final Judgment and Order awarding Phanerfe approximately $195 millic
including prejudgment interest up to January 151520Additionally, in response to the potential iropaf the Outstanding Judgment,
Company filed a voluntary petition for relief unddrapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code and is operatingusiness as‘adebtor-in-possessich
in accordance with the applicable provisions of Bankruptcy Code. These factors raise substantiasbdabout the Compars/ability tc
continue as a going concern. As a result of thetendll filing and the Outstanding Judgment, ttedization of assets and the satisfactio
liabilities are subject to uncertainties. Any reamgation plan could materially change the amoanis classifications of assets and liabil
reported in the consolidated financial statemeiitee accompanying financial statements do not irelady adjustments related to
recoverability and classification of assets orah®ounts and classification of liabilities or anhat adjustments that might be necessary sl
the Company be unable to continue as going concern.

Revenue Recognitio
Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, delivery has occurred, theddixed and determinab
collectability is reasonably assured, title an& d§loss have been transferred to the customettaare are no further contractual obligations.

Certain arrangements may provide for multiple delbles, in which there may be a combination offrapt licenses; resear
development, regulatory or other services; andvepfi of product. Multiple deliverable arrangemensn be divided into separate unit:
accounting if the deliverables in the arrangemeagtthe following criteria: (i) the delivered iteshave value to the customer on a stand.
basis and (i) in circumstances in which an arramgrg includes a general right of return with resgedaelivered items, then performanci
the remaining deliverables must be considered feband substantially in control of the Companymiiltiple deliverables cannot be divic
into separate units of accounting then the delbesamust be combined into a single unit of acdognt

Total consideration in a multiple deliverable agament is allocated to units of accounting on atned fair value of selling pric
basis. Consideration allocated to a delivered ibemnit of accounting is limited to the amount tishot contingent upon delivery of additio
items.

The BARDA Contract is a multiple deliverable arrangent comprising delivery of courses and coversgarch and developm
activities. The BARDA Contract contains certain gwot replacement rights with respect to deliveredrses. For this reason, recognitiol
revenue that might otherwise occur upon delivergairses is expected to be deferred until our atibgs related to potential replacemer
delivered courses are satisfied. Accordingly weehdeferred revenue for all amounts received to datker the BARDA Contract except
revenue recognized for amounts received with rase@ARDA’s obligation to reimburse the cost of covered neteand developme
services.

Subject to the above, payments for developmentitiet are recognized as revenue when earned tibggreriod of effort. Funding f
the acquisition of capital assets under cost-phasebntracts and grants is evaluated for apprepréaognition

41




Table of Contents
as a reduction to the cost of the acquired as$etaacing arrangement, or revenue, based on thefspterms of the related grant or contract.

Share-based Compensation

We account for our stodkased compensation using the fair value recognji@visions prescribed by the authoritative guiganehict
requires the measurement and recognition of congpiensexpense for all shab®sed payment awards made to employees and dg
including employee stock options based on estimiaiedalues.

Stockbased compensation expense for 2014, 2013 and \28422.4 million, $2.3 million and $1.8 million,seectively. The fa
value of share-based awards is determined on Hre date. For options awards, fair value is geheestimated using the Blackeholes mod
and for stock appreciation rights, fair value itireated using a Monte Carlo method. The value efgbrtion of the award that is ultimat
expected to vest is recorded as expense over thesite periods in our consolidated statement afrafions. Determining the fair value
stockbased awards at the grant date requires judgnrenitiding estimating the expected term over whidtlstawards will be outstandi
before they are exercised, the expected volatiftpur stock, and the number of stdeksed awards that are expected to be forfeiteid
reasonably likely that future assumptions may ckaimgwhich case the fair value of future optioraads may exceed or fall short of histor
calculated fair values. In addition, for stock ops with performance conditions, we estimate, guarterly basis, the most probable outc
of the performance conditions in order to deterntireeamount of compensation costs to be recordedtbe remaining vesting period.

Income Taxes

Determining the consolidated provision for incorag expense, deferred tax assets and liabilitiesraladed valuation allowance,
any, involves judgment. The recognition of a vahrmtallowance for deferred taxes requires managertemake estimates and judgme
about our future profitability which are inherentiycertain. On an ogeing basis, we evaluate whether a valuation allmgas needed
reduce our deferred income tax assets to an antbahtis more likely than not to be realized. Thalaation process includes asses
historical and current results in addition to fetexpected results.

Our assessment of whether our deferred tax assktbemealized is based on estimates of futurealde income arising from t
BARDA Contract. If the current estimates of futdaeable income change, then our assessment regatdinrealization of deferred tax as
could change. Based on the Outstanding Judgmd@®A Bas recorded a loss accrual for expectationadgs of approximately $187.8 milli
related to the PharmAthene litigation. On Septenilfr2014, SIGA filed a voluntary petition for mfliunder chapter 11 of Title 11 of -
United States Bankruptcy Code (see Note 1 to thenfiial statements). Because of the PharmAthegatidn and chapter 11 filing, there
substantial doubt about the Company's ability totiooie as a going concern. As such, the Companygdraduded that it is not more likely tf
not that it will realize its deferred tax assetseomore likely than not basis and recorded a casft charge of approximately $53.5 milliol
establish a valuation allowance against its neeérdefl tax assets. The amount of deferred tax assmsidered realizable, however, coulc
adjusted if estimates of future taxable income rduthe carryforward period are increased or redwreifl objective negative evidence is
longer present. Future changes in the estimatediainod deferred taxes expected to be realizedbilreflected in our financial statement
the period the estimate is changed with a corredipgradjustment to operating results.

Contingencies

We are currently involved in a litigation with Phakthene, Inc.(see Note 14 to the financial statds)elf the potential loss from a
claim, asserted or unasserted, or legal proceddingnsidered probable and the amount can be rablyoestimated, we accrue a liability
the estimated loss. Accruals are based on ourelséistates based on available information. Baseth@®utstanding Judgment, SIGA belie
an amount of loss is probable and has recordedss dacrual for expectation damages of approximab@®7.8 million related to fl
PharmAthene litigation. Additionally, SIGA has aged a $3.2 million liability for reimbursement dt@ney's fees and other costs relate
the PharmAthene litigation. On a periodic basisadditional information becomes available, or basedpecific events such as the outcon
litigation or settlement of claims, we may reasgbsspotential liability, if any, related to thes®atters and may revise this estimate, w
could result in a material adjustment to our opegatesults.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In August 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Stand#pdate (* ASU” ) No. 2014-15Presentation of Financial Statement&§eing
Concern (Subtopic 205-40) Disclosure of Uncertaistabout an Entity's Ability to Continue as a Goi@gncern. This ASU require
management to assess whether there is substaotibt ebout the entitg’ ability to continue as a going concern and, jfdisclose that fac
Management will also be required to evaluate arstlose whether its plans alleviate that doubt. BJ states that, when making 1
assessment, management should consider relevaditiona or events that are known or reasonably laie on the date the financ
statements are issued or available to be issues ABU is effective
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for annual periods ending after December 15, 2046 iaterim periods thereafter, and early adoptmpermitted. The Company is curre
evaluating the impact of adoption on its consoéiddinancial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-B@venue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 6@&GU No. 201409 supersed
the revenue recognition requirements in Topic 8®yenue Recognitigrand most industrgpecific revenue recognition guidance throug
the Industry Topics of the Accounting Standards ification. Additionally, this update supersedes sooost guidance included in Subtc
605-35,Revenue Recognition-Construction-Type and Prodn€Tigpe Contracts The core principle of the guidance is that aritgmshoulc
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of prothpeods or services to customers in an amountréfigicts the consideration to which
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for thgseds or services. It is effective for the finsteirim period within annual reporting perit
beginning after December 15, 2016, and early adog# not permitted. The Company is currently eatihg the impact of adoption on
consolidated financial statements.

In April 2014, FASB issued ASU No. 2014-®resentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) Bnoperty, Plant, and Equipme
(Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Operations didclosures of Disposals of Components of Entityich changes the criteria for report
discontinued operations while enhancing discloseqeirements. This ASU addresses sources of camfsid inconsistent application rele
to financial reporting of discontinued operationsdgnce in U.S. GAAP. Under this guidance, a disooed operation is defined as a disp
of a component or group of components that is disgmf or is classified as held for sale and regmtssa strategic shift that has a major e
on an entitys operations and financial results. This ASU is@ff/e prospectively for fiscal years and interimripds within those yee
beginning after December 15, 2014. This ASU isatif¥e for us prospectively on January 1, 2015. Wendt anticipate that the adoption of
standard will have a material impact on our finahstatements.

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardsulassued new guidance on the financial statemegentation of unrecogniz
tax benefit when a net operating loss carryforwargimilar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforwasdses. The Compang’ adoption of th
guidance on January 1, 2014 did not have a matdfedt on our financial statements.

Results of Operations for theYears ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Revenues from research and development contradtgrants for the years ended December 31, 20442013, were $3.1 million a
$5.5 million, respectively. The decrease in reventi&2.4 million, or 43%, reflects a $0.6 milliorectease in revenues from our fed
contracts supporting the development of Tecoviriarad a $1.8 million decrease in grant revenuese@leo dengue fever and Lassa feve
which $1.2 million relates to the Lassa fever pamgr In connection with the Optimization Progrange @ompany entered into an asset purc
agreement in August 2014 to sell and transferriésgtinical Lassa fever assets to Kineta Four, LLC.

Revenues from research and development contradtgrants for the years ended December 31, 2012@h8, were $5.5 million al
$9.0 million, respectively. The decrease of $3.8iom, or 39%, includes the impact of a $3.0 mitlidecrease in revenues from our fec
contracts supporting the development of Tecoviriarat a $455,000 decrease in grant revenues retatexbsa fever.

Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SQ&#r the years ended December 31, 2@bdl 2013 were $12.5 million and $1
million, respectively, reflecting a decrease of mpgmately $0.5 million or 4%. The net decreaserparily relates to: a decrease of $0.5 mil
in employee compensation which is mostly due t@duction in accrued employee bonuses and a decoéak@ 7 million in profession
service fees in connection with general corporati&ities and litigation. The net decrease wasigllytoffset by an increase of $0.7 million
professional services fees in connection with bessrdevelopment and strategic initiatives.

SG&A for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2&42 $13.0 million and $11.0 million, respectivelgflecting an increase
approximately $2.0 million or 18%. The increasemaiily relates to a $920,000 increase in employ@apensation, which is related to
increase in corporate headcount and an increasenitash stock compensation expense, and an iecoé&4 13,000 in facilities expenses.

Research and development (“R&D”) expenses were8hifllion for the year ended December 31, 2054decrease of approximat
$3.1 million or 22% from the $13.9 million incurretlring the year ended December 31, 2013. The dseris primarily attributable tc
decline of approximately $2.7 million in employesmmpensation, due to the Optimization Program, aB@d.a million decrease in direct vendor-
related expenses supporting the development ofvigmat and the Company's paodinical programs. The decreases in employee cosgiem
and vendor expenses were partially offset by anveintory write-off of $0.8 million.
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R&D expenses were $13.9 million for the yeaded December 31, 2013, a decrease of approximbdedymillion or 24% from the $1¢
million incurred during the year ended December 3012. $2.4 million of the decrease relates to lodieect vendorelated expens
supporting the development of Tecovirimat, dengngvials, broad-spectrum antivirals and higineughput screening. An additional $
million of the decrease is attributable to $775,88fuction in employee compensation and a $468r0&htory write-off in 2012.

During the years ended December 31, 2014, 201328t68, we incurred direct costs of $3.6 million,G4nillion and $7.4 millior
respectively, on the development of TecovirimatriBy the year ended December 31, 2014, we sper§,8dQ on internal human resour
dedicated to the drug's development and $3.1 mili@inly on manufacturing and clinical testing. Dgrthe year ended December 31, 2
we spent $597,000 on internal human resources atedido the drug development and $3.4 million mainly on manufaotyand clinice
testing. During the year ended December 31, 20&2spent $1.3 million on internal human resourceBodted to the drug’ development ai
$6.0 million mainly on manufacturing and clinicakting. From inception of the ST-246 developmengmm todate, we invested a total
$60.2 million in the program, of which $10.7 milieupported internal human resources, and $49l®mwas used mainly for manufacturi
clinical and preclinical work. These resources reflect research dedelopment expenses directly related to the pragrThey excluc
additional expenditures such as patent costs,altot of indirect expenses, and other servicesigeavby NIH and DoD.

Patent expenses for the years ended December B4, 2013 and 2012 were $1.0 million, $1.4 million &1d9 million, respectivel
These expenses reflect our ongoing efforts to ptater lead drug candidates in varied geographitdees.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Compmsyyded approximately $188.5 million of loss actinaconnection with th
PharmAthene litigation. See Note 14 to the finadnstatements for additional information.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Coynipanrred restructuring expenses of $513,000hénfourth quarter of 2013, t
Company began an Optimization Program to increffsgemcies within its operations. The program, ahiincluded a reduction in employ
headcount, was intended to align the Company'siress, staff and efforts with the most promisingvgth opportunities. A substantial port
of the Optimization Program was implemented as efddnber 31, 2013.

Changes in the fair value of liability classifiedmants to acquire common stock are recorded &s gailosses. For the years er
December 31, 20142013, and 2012, we recorded a gain of $313,0085sa0f $74,000 and a gain of $805,000, respdytiveflecting change
in fair market value of liability classified warrsnoutstanding during respective periods. The wsrand rights to purchase our common <
were recorded at fair market value and classifeetiadilities. As December 31, 2014, there werdiataility classified warrants outstanding.

Interest expense for the year ended December 34, ®@s $0.5 million consisting of interest on camsting debt. Interest expense
the year ended December 31, 2013 was $1.2 millomsisting of interest on outstanding debt and gesandor payable arrangements.
decrease in interest expense is due to lower oulistg debt due to monthly principal payments aretéhwas no interest on vendor payab
2014.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Compayred approximately $2.1 million in reorganizatiexpenses in connect
with the chapter 11 filing. See Note 1 to the ficiahstatements for additional information.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we incurttea grovision of $53.5 million on prex net losses of $211.9 million. The
provision primarily relates to the Compasyconclusion that it could no longer realize it$eded tax assets on a more likely than not |
because of the PharmAthene litigation, the chahtdiling and the substantial doubt about the Camg{saability to continue as a going conc
(see Note 12 to the financial statements). Thectiffe tax rate as of December 31, 2014 was 25.3@6.dffective tax rate was impacted
recurring items such as state and local taxesatialuof deferred tax assets, non-deductible exggand changes in tax laws.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, we incuretbases of $24.8 million for tax purposes andrasponding tax benefit of $
million. The effective tax rate as of December 2013 was 30.7%. Our tax rate was impacted by reguitems such as state and local te
non-deductible expenses and changes in tax laws. Egrethr ended December 31, 2012, we incurred netdder tax purposes and recogn
an income tax benefit of $7.8 million.

The recognition of a valuation allowance for defdrtaxes requires management to make estimatepidgishents about our futt
profitability which are inherently uncertain. Defed tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowahes, in the opinion of management,
more likely than not that some portion or all of tiheferred tax assets will not be realized. Ifaheent estimates of future taxable income
reduced or not realized, for example, based onotiteome in the PharmAthene litigation describedtém 3, “Legal Proceedingsfhe
Company’s assessment regarding the realizatioefeficbd tax assets
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could change. Future changes in the estimated anuuteferred taxes expected to be realized wilrdféected in the Company’financia
statements in the period the estimate is chang#daniorresponding adjustment to operating resGhsinges in estimates may occur often
can have a significant favorable or unfavorabledaoipn the Company’s operating results from petogeriod.

In 2012, previously available NOLs of approximat8li.2 expired.The remaining NOLs of $87.4 milliofll wxpire in various yea
between 2021 and 2034, if not utilized.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2014 , we had $99.7 million astcand cash equivalents compared with $91.3 midioDecember 31, 2013
Additionally, as of December 31, 2014, the Comphagl $4.0 million in restricted cash as collatecal dbligation under the General Elec
Corporation term loan (“GE term loan”). In Janu@fA5, the Company paid the GE term loan in full.

There can be no assurance that cash on hand, eashated through operations by future delivery @firses to BARDA, ca:
generated from asset sales, and other availabsfuill be sufficient to satisfy the ultimate rastidn of the PharmAthene litigation. T
possibility of potential substantial loss from tR&darmAthene litigation, combined with the costerdint to the administration of
Company's chapter 11 case, raise substantial égduhtt the Company's ability to continue as a gaimrgcern. The financial statements do
include any adjustment relating to the recovergbdf the carrying amount of recorded assets aatullifies that might result from the outco
of these uncertainties. We believe that the fuedegived from the BARDA Contract (see Note 3 tofthancial statements) together with
existing capital resources and continuing goverrtneentracts and grants will be sufficient to sugpr operations beyond the next twe
months; however, depending on the outcome of thag@my's appeal of the PharmAthene litigation, this@nding Judgment may ultimat
have a significant impact on the Company.

Litigation
On January 7, 2015, the Delaware Court of Chaneetjng on remand from the Delaware Supreme Centéred its Final Judgmt
and Order awarding PharmAthene approximately $18%m including prejudgment interest up to January 15, 2015, basddriied State
government purchases of the Company's smallpox alfegedly anticipated as of December 2006. The f@o's pending chapter 11 c
prevents PharmAthene from taking any enforcemetiraat this time and also permits the Companyfseapof the Outstanding Judgmer
go forward without the need to post a bond. On dgni6, 2015, the Company filed a notice of appédhe Outstanding Judgment (see !
14 to the financial statements).

Change in Provisional Dosage of Tecovirimat

On December 24, 2014, the Company announced tis&idban discussions with representatives of the Rhé BARDA, produc
deliveries of Tecovirimat subsequent to December2814 are expected to be at a provisional dos&é@®® mg administered twice per (
(1,200 mg per day). This is a change from the piowal dosage that was in effect when product dekg were made in 2013 and 2014 |
mg per day). In 2013 and 2014, the provisional desaf courses delivered to the Strategic Stockpde 600 mg administered once per
The change in the provisional dosage is based oh giddance received by the Company in 2014, subsgqio the delivery of 1.3 millic
courses of Tecovirimat. Based on the current piové dosage of 600 mg administered twice per dag00 mg per day), SIGA currer
expects to supplement previously delivered couofeiecovirimat, at no additional cost to BARDA, Wwiadditional dosages so that all of
courses previously delivered to BARDA will be ag¢tiew provisional dosage. The Company and BARDAelemyreed to an amendment of
“ BARDA Amendment”’ ) of the BARDA Contract to reflect the foregoing, whimodification is subject to the approval of thenRruptc
Court. The Company expects to incur significantréneental costs with the production of additionakatye. The provisional dosage
Tecovirimat may be subject to additional changehénfuture based on FDA guidance.

Prior Year Activity
In the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company initiatee Optimization Program which included a redurctin employee headcount
substantial portion of the Optimization Program waplemented as of December 31, 2013.

In December 2012, we entered into a loan agreemithta lender to provide the Company a term loai$®0 million with a fixe
interest rate of 9.85% per annum and a revolving 6f credit of $7.0 million with a variable intstaate. Borrowings under the revolving |
of credit are based on eligible outstanding accouateivable and will bear interest at a rate peum equal to 5.25% plus the higher of:
1.50%, and (b) thremonth LIBOR divided by a defined factor. The terfrttte loan is three years. As of December 31, 2@pproximatel
$2.0 million of the term loan was outstanding amdamounts were outstanding against the revolving &f credit. In connection with t
chapter 11 case, the revolving line of credit veamtnated and the term loan is considered fullysst and is not reported as liabilities suk
to compromise. The Company has set aside, in a
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separate account, $4.0 million as collateral fdigaltions under the loan agreement. In January 2BE5Company paid the term loan in full.

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operations for the year eridlstember 31, 2014 was $14.2 million; net cash plexviby operations for the yi
ended December 31, 2013 was $58.4 million and ash csed in operations during the year ended Dezmefih 2012 was $20.2 million.
2014, the Company received approximately $43.8ionilfrom BARDA, partially offset by $7.8million ofash payments to CMOs for
manufacture of Tecovirimat.

In 2013, the Company received approximately $108ililon from BARDA, partially offset by $27.0 miliin of cash payments
CMOs for the manufacture, development and suppodistivities for Tecovirimat. These cash uses edlatthe performance of the BARI
contract.

On December 31, 201dnd 2013, our accounts receivable balance was spmtely $500,000 and $1.0 million, respectivelyur
account receivable balances primarily reflect woekformed during December 2014 and 2013 in conmeetith Tecovirimat and dengue fe
antiviral development contracts. this decreaseimarily attributed to lower grant activity in 2014

Our accounts payable, accrued expenses and otlientliabilities balance were $5.5 million and $@nillion on December 31, 20
and 2013, respectively. This decrease is mainly tdueertain amounts being classified as liabilitsebject to compromise in 2014. As
December 31, 2014, approximately $4.3 million afamts payable, accrued expenses and other cligkifities were subject to compromi

Investing Activities

Net cash used by investing activities for yearseenDecember 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 was approedyn®8.5 million, $857,30
and $2.0 million, respectively. Capital expenditudeiring the years ended December 31, 2028113, and 2012 were approximately $28,
$857,300 and $588,200, respectively, reflectingpases of fixed assets in the ordinary course sihless.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Comparaskle, in a separate account, $4.0 million #atecal for obligations under t
GE term loan and classified this amount as resttictash on its balance sheet, offset by $569,608sgoroceeds from the sale of cel
laboratory equipment during the second quartel0a#2
Financing Activities

Net cash used by financing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2014 was $2.3 million; and ash @rovided by financii
activities was $1.7 million and $4.9 million foretlyears ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, resglgcuring the year endddecember 3.
2014, we repaid $2.0 million of the GE term loan in @atance with the loan repayment schedule and repsed $415,938 of common st
to meet minimum statutory tax withholding requirertse The cash outlay was offset by proceeds of B&from exercises of options ¢
warrants to purchase common stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we red&i2ed million from exercises of options and watsaiw purchase common st
which was offset by a net $1.0 million repaymenttaf GE term loan in accordance with the loan repayt schedule.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we redgiveceeds of $10,000 from exercises of options \w@adants to purcha
common stock and received $4.9 million from the t€ifn loan.
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Contractual Obligations, Commercial Commitments andPurchase Obligations

Future contractual obligations and commercial commants as of December 31, 2014 are expected te fodlaws:

Payments due by period

Greater than 5

Total Less than 1 year 1to 3 years 3to 5 years years

Debt obligations (1) $ 2,217,68 $ 2,217,68 $ — % —  $ =
Operating lease obligations (2) 6,929,33 1,622,50! 3,304,02. 1,495,42. 507,37¢
Purchase obligations 5,067,20: 4,632,33! 411,01 23,85( —

Total contractual obligations $ 14,214,222 % 8,472,531 $ 3,715,04 % 1,519,27. $ 507,37t

Q) Consists of $2.0 million of outstanding debt under GE term loan with a fixed interest rate of 985he amounts in the table ab

reflect the payments made by the Company to fatist/ the debt obligation.
(2) Includes facilities and office space under perating leases expiring in 2017 and 2020, reés@de. These obligations assume non

termination of agreements and represent expectadgras, which are subject to change.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
The Company does not have any off-balance shesigements.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk

Our investment portfolio includes cash and cashvedgnts. Our main investment objectives are thes@rvation of investment cap
and the maximization of afteéax returns on our investment portfolio. We beli¢hvat our investment policy is conservative, batlhie duratio
of our investments and the credit quality of theestments we hold. We do not utilize derivativeafinial instruments, derivative commo
instruments or other market risk sensitive instrotegpositions or transactions to manage exposunetérest rate changes. Accordingly,
believe that, while the securities we hold are scthfo changes in the financial standing of thees®f such securities and our interest incor
sensitive to changes in the general level of Lh&rest rates, we are not subject to any matesis rarising from changes in interest re
foreign currency exchange rates, commodity priegsijty prices or other market changes that affearket risk sensitive instruments.

47




Table of Contents

Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements

48




Table of Contents

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of S[Ghnologies, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statemeafemtions and comprehensive incom
(loss), of changes in stockholdeeuity (deficit) and of cash flows present fairig, all material respects, the financial position SIGA
Technologies, Inc. and its subsidiary at Decemlier2814 and December 31, 2013, and the resultseaf dperations and their cash flows
each of the three years in the period ended Dece&ihe2014in conformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United Sta
of America. Also in our opinion, the Company main&al, in all material respects, effective interoahtrol over financial reporting as
December 31, 2014, based on criteria establishéaténnal Control - Integrated Framework (2018sued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOg Thmpany's management is responsible for theaadial statements, for maintain
effective internal control over financial reportiagd for its assessment of the effectiveness efrial control over financial reporting, incluc
in Managemens Report on Internal Control over Financial Repartinder Item 9A. Our responsibility is to exprepmions on these financ
statements and on the Company's internal contexl fiwancial reporting based on our integrated @udlVe conducted our audits in accord:
with the standards of the Public Company Accountihngrsight Board (United States). Those standa¥dsire that we plan and perform
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whetbeinancial statements are free of material tatssnent and whether effective intel
control over financial reporting was maintainedailh material respects. Our audits of the finansi@tements included examining, on a
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and digessn the financial statements, assessing theuatiog principles used and signific
estimates made by management, and evaluating #ralbfinancial statement presentation. Our autlibternal control over financial reporti
included obtaining an understanding of internaltadrover financial reporting, assessing the risatta material weakness exists, and te
and evaluating the design and operating effectis®emé internal control based on the assessed@igk.audits also included performing s
other procedures as we considered necessary airthuenstances. We believe that our audits provideaaonable basis for our opinions.

The accompanying financial statements have prepmssdming that the Company will continue as a goorcern. As more fully discussec
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, Gompany has a net capital deficiency and on 8#ye 16, 2014, the Company file
voluntary petition for relief under chapter 11 b&tUnited States Bankruptcy Code. These factose imibstantial doubt about the Company
ability to continue as a going concern. Managensepliins in regard to these matters are also desciibNote 1. The financial statement:
not include any adjustments that might result ftbmoutcome of this uncertainty.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranagiregthe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial stateimidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeeslcepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgddnose policies and procedures that (i) pertaithéomaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assur
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoasizations of management
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readsleaassurance regarding prevention or timely deteaf unauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/s PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

New York, New York
March 6, 2015
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SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of
December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 99,71392 $ 91,309,75.
Restricted cash 4,000,00! —
Accounts receivable 491,63: 982,02
Inventory 19,044,47 20,515,34
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 898,70! 750,80¢
Deferred tax assets 5,655,92 10,383,90
Total current assets 129,804,67 123,941,84
Property, plant and equipment, net 831,93t 1,382,07:
Deferred costs 32,860,87 22,583,20
Goodwill 898,33 898,33«
Other assets 1,989,52 2,078,15'
Deferred tax assets, net — 42,940,62
Total assets $ 166,385,33 $ 193,824,23
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 3,384,311 % 5,064,38!
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 2,085,99: 4,842,39:
Current common stock warrants — 313,42!
Current portion of long term debt 1,989,944 1,968,82
Total current liabilities 7,460,25: 12,189,02
Deferred revenue 81,79¢ 162,222,18
Long term debt — 1,989,94
Deferred income tax liability 5,900,46: —
Other liabilities 405,32! 447,60!
Liabilities subject to compromise 399,039,96 —
Total liabilities 412,887,81 176,848,76
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 14)
Stockholders’ equity (Deficit)
Common stock ($.0001 par value, 100,000,000 stzartwrized, 53,504,296 and 53,108,844 issued atstboding
at December 31, 2014, and December 31, 2013, risgigr 5,351 5,31(
Additional paid-in capital 175,483,18 173,498,02
Accumulated deficit (421,991,00) (156,527,87)
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) (246,502,47) 16,975,46.
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit) $ 166,385,333  $ 193,824,23

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesfinancial statements.
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SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME(LOSS)

Revenues

Research and development

Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative
Research and development
Patent preparation fees
Litigation accrual
Restructuring charges
Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Decrease (increase) in fair value of common stoakants
Interest expense
Other income, net
Reorganization items, net
Loss before income taxes
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes
Net and comprehensive income (loss)
Basic earnings (loss) per share
Diluted earnings (loss) per share
Weighted average shares outstanding: basic

Weighted average shares outstanding: diluted

For the Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012

$ 313983 $ 5519300 $  8,970,83
12,523,67 13,047,61 10,967,41
10,830,33 13,856,50 18,213,03
987,77 1,421,21 1,883,40.
188,465,06 197,20° 442,72

— 512,94« —

212,806,84 29,035,48 31,506,57
(209,667,01) (23,516,18) (22,535,73)
313,42 (73,756 804,51
(455,81() (1,207,33) (172,99)

1,06¢ 1,497 522

(2,126,53) — —
(211,934,87) (24,795,77) (21,903,69)
(53,528,26) 7,618,43! 7,844,15

$ (265463,13) $ (17,177.33) $ (14,059,53)
$ (497 $ (039 $ (0.29)
$ 4.97) $ 039 $ (0.27)
53,419,68 52,368,84 51,639,62
53,419,68 52,368,84 51,639,62

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesfinancial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’

SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 201

EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Accumulated

Balances, December 31, 2011

Net loss

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodkmupt
and warrants

Stock-based compensation

Balances, December 31, 2012
Net loss
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodkrugpt

Stock-based compensation

Payment of common stock tendered for employee s
based compensation tax obligations

Warrants issued in exchange for services recors@dher
assets

Fair value of exercised common stock warrants

Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation

Balances, December 31, 2013

Net loss
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodkrugpt

Stock-based compensation

Payment of common stock tendered for employee stox
based compensation tax obligations

Balances, December 31, 2014

Additional Other Total
Common Stock Paid - In Accumulated Comprehensive Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Equity

51,637,35 5,16¢ 166,056,69 (125,290,99) — 40,770,85
(14,059,53) (14,059,53)

5,16¢ (247,83)) (247,83))
1,779,51! 1,779,51

51,642,52 5,164 167,588,37 (139,350,53) — 28,243,00
(17,177,33) (17,177,33)

1,508,14: 15C 2,868,23 2,868,38
2,172,59 2,172,59

(41,829 4 (178,949 (178,95
272,72¢ 272,72

751,37( 751,37

23,66¢ 23,66¢

53,108,84 $ 5,31( 173,498,02 (156,527,87) — 16,975,46
(265,463,13) (265,463,13)

521,32 54 101,98: 102,03!
2,299,09 2,299,09:
(125,87%) (193) (415,92) (415,941
53,504,29 $ 5,35 175,483,18 (421,991,00) — (246,502,47)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesfinancial statements.
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SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to reshcprovided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and other amortization
Increase (decrease) in fair value of warrants
Stock-based compensation
Gain on sale of assets

Non-cash interest expense
Reorganization items

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Deferred costs
Prepaid expenses and otheentassets
Other assets
Deferred income taxes, net
Accounts payable, accrued agps and other current liabilities
Liabilities subject to comprise
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) opegaactivities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sale of assets
Collateral for surety bond
Restricted cash
Net cash provided by (used in) invegsactivities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from exercise of warrants and options
Payment of common stock tendered for employee béigations
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt
Repayment of long-term debt
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation
Net cash provided by (used in) firagactivities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiwalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing #ietsz

Reclass of common stock warrant liability to iiddal paid-in capital upon warrant exercise

2014 2013 2012

$ (265463,13) $ (17,177,33) (14,059,53)
351,56 463,13 419,35
(313,42) 73,75¢ (804,51
2,435,46; 2,263,501 1,779,51
(345,65 — _
31,178 48,77: —
(577,909 — —
490,39: 3,759,48. (2,104,40)
1,470,87: (2,873,42) (17,641,92)
(10,277,67) (19,741,66) (2,591,46)
(236,139 188,10 (444,25
43,18¢ 147,62 (548,419
53,569,07 (9,599,92) (7,847,80)
(3,858,561 (4,566,99) 7,550,98
399,039,96 — —
(162,140,39) 105,170,16 16,050,91
(42,280) 281,30; 18,71
14,176,52 58,436,50 (20,222,82)
(28,04¢) (857,34) (588,23
569,60 — —

— — (1,347,95)
(4,000,00) — —
(3,458,43) (857,34) (1,936,19)
102,03t 2,868,38 9,57
(415,941 (178,95 —

— 7,000,001 4,910,001
(2,000,00) (8,000,00) —
— 23,66¢ —
(2,313,90) 1,713,10. 4,919,57
8,404,17! 59,292,26. (17,239,44)
91,309,75 32,017,49 49,256,93

$ 9971392 $  91,309,75 32,017,49
$ — 3 751,37( —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesfinancial statements
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SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

Description of Busines:

SIGA Technologies, Inc. (“SIGA” or the “Companyl§ a company specializing in the development andmercialization of solutions f
serious unmet medical needs and biothreats. Thep@uoys lead product is Tecovirimat, also known #s286®, an orally administere
antiviral drug that targets orthopoxviruses. WHikrovirimat is not yet licensed as safe or effectiy the U.S. Food & Drug Administration
is a novel small-molecule drug that is being defeto the Strategic National Stockpile under Riogtoshield.

Chapter 11 Filing

On September 16, 2014 (the “Petition Dat#fie Company filed a voluntary petition for relieider chapter 11 of Title 11 of the United St
Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”) in the United StatemBuptcy Court for the Southern District of NewrkKdthe “Bankruptcy Court"chapte
11 Case Number 14-12623 (SHL). The Company is cuimg to operate its business as a “debtor-in-@Es¢se” in accordance with tl
applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code.

The Company commenced the chapter 11 case to peeard to ensure its ability to satisfy its comnatits under the BARDA Contract
defined in Note 3 ) and to preserve its operatiarisch likely would have been jeopardized by théoerement of a judgment stemming fr
the litigation with PharmAthene (see Note 14). Wldlperating as a debtorqrossession under chapter 11, the company is parsuimat i
believes is a meritorious appeal of the DelawarerCof Chancery Final Order and Judgment (as ddfinelow), without the necessity
posting a bond.

PharmAthene Litigation

On August 8, 2014, the Delaware Court of Chancesyed its Remand Opinion and related order initigation initiated against the Compe
in 2006 by PharmAthene. In the Remand Opinion,Gbert of Chancery determined, among other thingat PharmAthene is entitled t
lump sum damages award for its lost profits related@ecovirimat, with interest and fees, based mitdd States government purchases o
Company's smallpox drug allegedly anticipated aB@fember 2006. On January 15, 2015, the Delawauet ©f Chancery entered its Fi
Order and Judgment awarding PharmAthene approxiy&¥95 million , including prgudgment interest up to January 15, 2015
“Outstanding Judgment”'he Company's pending chapter 11 case preventsnPllaene from taking any enforcement action at timge anc
also permits the Company's appeal of the Outstgndlimigment to go forward without the need to pobbad. On January 16, 2015,
Company filed a notice of appeal of the Outstandindgment.

Administration of Chapter 11 Cas

On September 17, 2014, the Company received Batdgrupourt approval of certain “first-daythotions, which preserved the Compa
ability to continue operations without interruptionchapter 11. As part of the “first-dayfiotions, the Company received approval to pe
otherwise honor certain ppetition obligations generally designed to suppbe Company's operations. Additionally, the BankrypCour
confirmed the Company's authority to pay for goand services received post-petition in the ordirtayrse of business.

In October, the U.S. Trustee for the Southern Risof New York (the “U.S. Trustee’dppointed an official committee of unsecured croee
(the “UCC”). The UCC has a right to be heard og &msue in the Company’chapter 11 case. There can be no assurancén¢haiCC wil
support the Compang’positions on matters to be presented to the Batdy Court in the future or with respect to angrpbf reorganizatio
when proposed.

As part of the chapter 11 case, the Company hameat, pursuant to Bankruptcy Court authorizatiegal and other professionals to advise
Company in connection with the administration of ¢ghapter 11 case and its litigation with PharmAg&eand certain other professional
provide services and advice in the ordinary coofdausiness. From time to time, the Company mak &ankruptcy Court approval to ret
additional professionals.

Pursuant to an order of the Bankruptcy Court, d@etbber 28, 2014, the Company was authorized yagienbursable prgetition obligation
to certain service providers that are fully reingable by the U.S. Biomedical Advanced ResearchDaalopment Authority (thé BARDA
") pursuant to the BARDA Contract (as defined in N&)tePursuant to an order of the Bankruptcy Couwated January 14, 2015, the Comg
was authorized to satisfy a fully-secured term Ipesvided by General
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Electric Capital Corporation in the approximate amoof $1.8 million. Such amount, and related fees, was paid by tmep@oy on Janua
16, 2015 and all liens securing the credit facilitgre released.

On January 29, 2015, the Company filed a motior whie Bankruptcy Court to assume the BARDA Conjfrastamended by the BARI
Amendment (as defined in Note 3), under the prowisiof Bankruptcy Code. If the motion is grantée parties' rights and obligations ur
the BARDA Contract, as so amended, will continughait any impact arising from SIGA's filing for iefl under chapter 11 of the Bankrug
code. The Motion currently is scheduled to be aargd by the Bankruptcy Court on March 17, 2015.

Plan of Reorganizatior

The Company has not yet filed a plan of reorgaitmatvith the Bankruptcy Court. The Company has éRelusive right to file a plan
reorganization through and including May14, 2014 8 solicit votes on such a plan if filed by swlzte through and including July 13, 2(
subject to the ability of parties in interest tie finotions seeking to terminate the Company's skatuperiods, as well as the Company's rig
seek further extensions of such periods. The Cognpas a right to seek further extensions of sudiuskve periods, subject to the statu
limit of 18 months from the Petition Date in theseaof filing a plan and 20 months in the case &tisimg and obtaining acceptances of su
plan. The implementation of a plan of reorganizati® subject to confirmation of the plan by the Baptcy Court in accordance with -
provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, and the occumenf the effective date under the plan. At thiseti there is no certainty as to when or
plan will be filed, the provisions of a plan (inding provisions with respect to the treatment afpatition claims and equity interests)
whether a plan will be confirmed and become efecti

Pre-Petition Claims

As a result of the chapter 11 filing, the paymepre-petition liabilities is generally subject to comprige pursuant to a plan of reorganizal
Generally, under the Bankruptcy Code, actions forer or otherwise effect payment of grankruptcy filing liabilities are stayed. AlthoL
payment of pre-petition claims generally is notpiéted, the Bankruptcy Court granted the Compartfiarity to pay certain prpetition claim:
in designated categories and subject to certamst@nd conditions. Among other things, the Banlay@ourt has authorized the Compan
pay certain pre-petition claims relating to emplegiecritical vendors, a fully-secured goetition term loan, and services for which
Company receives reimbursement from the government.

On October 30, 2014, the Company filed scheduleassits and liabilities and statement of finanaféhirs (the “Schedules™ith the
Bankruptcy Court. The Bankruptcy Court has enteredrder setting March 30, 2015 as the deadlinéliiog proofs of claim (the “Bar Datg”
The Bar Date is the date by which claims against@ompany relating to the period prior to the comoeenent of the Company's chapte
case must be filed if such claims are not listedignidated, norecontingent and undisputed amounts in the Scheduoled, the claimar
disagrees with the amount, characterization orstfiaation of its claim as reflected in the SchexdulClaims that are subject to the Bar Date
which are not filed on or prior to the Bar Date,ynrae barred from participating in any distributithat may be made under a plar
reorganization in the Company's chapter 11 case.

Financial Reporting in Reorganization

The Company applied Financial Accounting Standd@dard (“FASB”) Accounting Standards CodificationASC”) 852, Reorganizatiol
effective on September 16, 2014, which is applieablcompanies under bankruptcy protection, andiresjamendments to the presentatic
key financial statement line items. It required tihe financial statements for periods subsequetita chapter 11 filing distinguish transacti
and events that are directly associated with tbegemization from the ongoing operations of theiless. Revenues, expenses, realized
and losses, and provisions for losses that carirbetly associated with the reorganization andruestiring of the business must be repc
separately as reorganization items in the congelitistatements of operations. The balance shedtdistisguish prepetition liabilities subje«
to compromise from both those pre-petition liakaBtthat are not subject to compromise and front-pestion liabilities. Liabilities that may |
subject to a plan of reorganization must be repoatethe amounts expected to be allowed in the @Gowip chapter 11 case, even if they |
be settled for lesser amounts as a result of tue @il reorganization or negotiations with creditdnsaddition, cash used by reorganization it
are disclosed separately in the consolidated statesmof cash flow.

Other Matters Related to the Chapter 11 Case

On September 16, 2014, the Company received a fettm the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC asserting thbdsed on the Comparsythapte
11 filing, the Company no longer met the continulisging requirements necessary to maintain itsnigison the NASDAQ Stock Market. T
Company appealed such assertion. On October 18, 28firesentatives of the Company appeared bdier&€lASDAQ Stock Market LLG
hearings panel to present the Comparappeal, asking the panel to exercise its disgrét allow the Company to maintain its listing tgr tc
five additional months (the limit of the pargldiscretion at that time). On October 29, 2014, @ompany received the decision of
NASDAQ hearings panel. The NASDAQ hearings paneidisl that the Compa’s Common Stock would remain listed, subject to:tka
Company providing the NASDAQ hearings panel witmfadential updates regarding the status of the mAdnene litigation, publi
disclosures relating to such
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litigation and to any possible judgment, and (b Bompany, on or before March 16, 2015, emergiognfchapter 11 and evidenc
compliance with all requirements for initial lisgiron the NASDAQ Stock Market. The NASDAQ hearings@ also stated that it reserved
right to reconsider its determination based uponarent, condition or circumstance that exists evedops that would, in the opinion of
panel, make continued listing of the Compangécurities on the NASDAQ Stock Market inadvisateinwarranted. The Company does
expect to emerge from bankruptcy on or before Mal6h2015. Accordingly, there can be no assurahae the Company will meet t
conditions required by the NASDAQ hearings panel sraintain the listing of its Common Stock on NASQA

Basis of presentatiol
The consolidated financial statements are preséntadcordance with generally accepted accountimgiples in the United States of Amer
("US GAAP”) and reflect the consolidated finangmsition, results of operations and cash flowsafbperiods presented.

Going Concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statembate been prepared assuming that the Company wvilinue as a going concern
contemplate the realization of assets and thefaetiign of liabilities in the normal course of busss. The Comparg/ability to continue as
going concern is expected to be impacted by theoout of the Company’s appeal of postaand judgment by the Delaware Court of Char
(as defined in Note 14 to the financial statememts)well as the the resolution of its chapter 44ec The Delaware Court of Chancery, a
on remand from the Delaware Supreme Court, entigseHinal Judgment and Order awarding PharmAthg@aximately $195 million,
including prejudgment interest up to January 151520Additionally, in response to the potential iropaf the Outstanding Judgment,

Company filed a voluntary petition for relief unddrapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code and is operatingusiness as“adebtor-in-possessich
in accordance with the applicable provisions of Bankruptcy Code. These factors raise substantiasbdabout the Compars/ability tc
continue as a going concern. As a result of thetendll filing and the Outstanding Judgment, ttedization of assets and the satisfactio
liabilities are subject to uncertainties. Any reamgation plan could materially change the amoanis classifications of assets and liabil
reported in the consolidated financial statemeiitee accompanying financial statements do not irelady adjustments related to

recoverability and classification of assets orah®ounts and classification of liabilities or anhat adjustments that might be necessary sl
the Company be unable to continue as a going concer

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassiiiethe current period presentation, primarily tetato the legal expert fees accrue
connection with the PharmAthene litigation.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The consolidated financial statements and relaiscdasures are prepared in conformity with accawghirinciples generally accepted in
United States of America. Management is requirethéie estimates and assumptions that affect th@tegpamounts of assets and liabilii
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabiliiethe date of the financial statements and revama expenses during the period reported
most significant estimates include the variablesdui the calculation of fair value of stobksed awards including options and wan
granted or issued by the Company; reported amooitevenue and expenses; calculation of contingsniicluding estimating litigatic
accrual; and the realization of deferred tax asg&timates and assumptions are reviewed peridygliaatl the effects of revisions are refle
in the financial statements in the period theydetermined to be necessary. Actual results codldrdiom these estimates.

Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investmensith original maturities of three months or legse cash equivalents.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company has cash in bank accounts that exdeed-@deral Deposit Insurance Corporation insuredtdi The Company has 1
experienced any losses on its cash accounts amdlaveance has been provided for potential credisés because management believe:
any such losses would be minimal, if any.

As part of its chapter 11 case, on January 29, 2€H& Company established debtor-in-possession baokunts” DIP Accounts” in
accordance with the provisions of the Bankruptc@€and transferred substantially all its cash iheoDIP Accounts in February 2015.
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Accounts Receivabl

Accounts receivable are recorded net of provisifmmsdoubtful accounts. At December 31, 2014 and32aD0%of accounts receivabl
represented receivables from National InstitutesHefalth (“NIH”) and Biomedical Advanced Research and Developmerthohity
("BARDA"). An allowance for doubtful accounts is based on ifipeanalysis of the receivables. At December 31142and 2013, the Compse
had no allowance for doubtful accounts.

Inventory

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost onested realizable value. The Company capitalizesritory costs associated with the Company
products when, based on managentsejttigment, future commercialization is considgrezbable and the future economic benefit is expul
to be realized; otherwise, such costs are expeasedsearch and development. Inventory is evaldateitnpairment periodically to identi
inventory that may expire prior to expected salehas a cost basis in excess of its estimated adddizvalue. If certain batches or unit:
product no longer meet quality specifications ocdmee obsolete due to expiration, the Company recarccharge to write down st
unmarketable inventory to its estimated realizailee.

Property, Plant and Equipmer

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cestpfhaccumulated depreciation. Depreciation is/ioled on a straighline method over tf
estimated useful lives of the various asset clasBes estimated useful lives are as follows: 5 gdar laboratory equipment; 3 yedis
computer equipment; and 7 ye#éos furniture and fixtures. Leasehold improvemesnts amortized over the shorter of the estimatetllibees
of the assets or the lease term. Maintenance,rsepiadl minor replacements are charged to experiselwased.

Revenue Recognitio
Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, delivery has occurred, thasféixed or determinable, collectabi
is reasonably assured, title and risk of loss Hmeen transferred to the customer and there arertieef contractual obligations.

Certain arrangements may provide for multiple detables, in which there may be a combination offrapt licenses; research, developm
regulatory or other services; and delivery of prdiultiple deliverable arrangements can be digidtdo separate units of accounting if
deliverables in the arrangement meet the follovanitgria: (i) the delivered item(s) have value he tustomer on a standalone basis and
circumstances in which an arrangement includesnergé right of return with respect to deliveredritg then performance of the remair
deliverables must be considered probable and suizdta in control of the Company. If multiple deérables cannot be divided into sepe
units of accounting then the deliverables mustdyelined into a single unit of accounting.

Total consideration in a multiple deliverable agament is allocated to units of accounting on atined fair value of selling price bas
Consideration allocated to a delivered item or oh#ccounting is limited to the amount that is ocontingent upon delivery of additional iter

Direct costs incurred by the Company and associaifid the deferral of revenue for a unit of accaogtwill also be deferred and will
recognized as expenses over the same period thegltiied deferred revenue is recognized as revenue

Subject to the above, payments for developmentites are recognized as revenue when earned, tbeeperiod of effort. Funding for t
acquisition of capital assets under cost-glescontracts or grants is evaluated for approprietognition as a reduction to the cost of thet:
a financing arrangement, or revenue based on #mfgpterms of the related grant or contract.

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, ahd, 28venues from NIH and BARDA were 1003f6total revenues recognized by
Company.

Research and Developme

Research and development expenses include costdlgliand indirectly attributable to the conductre$earch and development programs
performance of the BARDA Contract, including emmeyrelated costs, materials, supplies, depreciaiiorand maintenance of rese:
equipment, the cost of services provided by outsadractors, including services related to the @amny’s clinical trials and facility costs, st
as rent, utilities, and general support servicdscésts associated with research and developnrengxpensed as incurred. Costs related t
acquisition of technology rights, for which devetognt work is still in process, and that have neratitive future uses, are expense
incurred.
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Goodwill

The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment atsteannually or as circumstances warrant. The imygit review process compares
fair value of the reporting unit in which goodwiltsides to its carrying value. The Company operasesne business and one reporting
Therefore, the goodwill impairment analysis is paried on the basis of the Company as a whole, usiagnarket capitalization of t
Company as an estimate of its fair value.

Share-based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense for all shased payment awards made to employees and dgdstdetermined on the grant date;
options awards, fair value is estimated using tleelBScholes model and for stock appreciation sdh$ARS”), fair value is estimated usi
the Monte Carlo method. The value of the portiorttef award that is ultimately expected to vesteisorded as expense over the reqt
service periods in the Company’s consolidated state of operations.

These compensation costs are recognized net oftamaged forfeiture rate over the requisite senpegiods of the awards. Forfeitures
estimated on the date of the respective grantevidad if actual or expected forfeiture activityfelis from original estimates.

Income Taxes

The Company recognizes income taxes utilizing theetaand liability method of accounting for incotages. Under this method, defer
income taxes are recorded for temporary differefieaeen financial statement carrying amounts aeddx basis of assets and liabilitie
enacted tax rates expected to be in effect foy#aes in which the differences are expected torseveA valuation allowance is established
is more likely than not that some or the entireedefd tax asset will not be realized. The recognitf a valuation allowance for deferred te
requires management to make estimates and judgmakeots the Company’s future profitability which améerently uncertain.

Net Loss per Shar

The objective of basic earnings per share (“ERSt) measure the performance of an entity overdperting period by dividing income (lo
by the weighted average shares outstanding. Theciblg of diluted EPS is consistent with that o§ibé&EPS, except that it also gives effe
all potentially dilutive common shares outstandituging the period.

The Company incurred losses for the years endeeérbeer 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. For all periodsepited, all equity instruments .
excluded from the calculation of diluted earnintpsg) per share as the effect of such shares iigldutive. The weighted average numbe
equity instruments excluded consist of:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Stock Options 2,179,64. 2,725,63 2,865,86:
Stock-Settled Stock Appreciation Rights 388,32! 439,05¢ 421,02
Restricted Stock Units 1,206,53. 981,64! 351,01:
Warrants 772,90: 1,802,82I 2,263,53!

As discussed in Note 6, the appreciation of eachRS®as capped at a determined maximum value. Assalt; the weighted average nun
shown in the table above for stoskttled stock appreciation rights reflects the Wiid average maximum number of shares that cot
issued.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsouads payable and accrued expenses approximatesafae due to the relatively sh
maturity of these instruments. Common stock wasrawvhich are classified as liabilities are recoréédheir fair market value as of ei
reporting period.

The measurement of fair value requires the usedfriqgues based on observable and unobservables.irpbservable inputs reflect mai
data obtained from independent sources, while wrebble inputs reflect our market assumptions. ifipats create the following fair val
hierarchy:

* Level 1 —-Quoted prices for identical instruments in activarkets
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* Level 2 — Quoted prices for similar instrumeintactive markets; quoted prices for identicaliamigr instruments in markets that are
not active; and model-derived valuations where isuwe observable or where significant value ds\ae observable.

» Level 3 -nstruments where significant value drivers arehssovable to third partie

The Company uses moddérived valuations where inputs are observablefiveamarkets to determine the fair value of carm@mmon stoc
warrants on a recurring basis and classify sudilitia classified warrants in Level 2. The Compaurtifizes the BlackScholes model consisti
of the following variables: (i) the closing pricé 8IGA’s common stock; (ii) the expected remaining lifetaf liability classified warrant; (ii
the expected volatility using a weightatderage of historical volatilities from a combimsttiof SIGA and comparable companies; and (iv
risk-free market rate. At December 31, 2014 and32€e fair value of such liability classified wants was as follows:

2014 2013
Common stock warrants, current $ — % 313,42!
Common stock warrants, non-current — —
$ — % 313,42!

At December 31, 2014, there were no liability dieesd warrants outstanding.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company Bardillion and $4.0 million outstanding, respeetiy from a loan entered into on
December 31, 2012 (see Note 7). The fair valub®idan, which is measured using Level 2 inputpr@pmates book value at December 31,
2014 and 2013.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2012, &iGnot hold any Level 3 securities.
There were no transfers between levels of thevidire hierarchy during the year ended Decembe2®14.

Legal Contingencie:

The Company is subject to certain contingenciesirgyiin the ordinary course of business. The Comjmalso currently involved in litigatic
with PharmAthene, Inc. (see Note 14 ). The Compaayprds accruals for these contingencies to thenéxhat a loss is both probable
reasonably estimable. If some amount within a rasfdess appears to be a better estimate than gagy amount within the range, that amc
is accrued. Alternatively, when no amount withireage of loss appears to be a better estimateatiyother amount, the lowest amount in
range is accrued. The Company expenses legal asstgiated with loss contingencies as incurred.r&¢erd anticipated recoveries un
existing insurance contracts when recovery is assur

Segment Informatior

The Company is managed and operated as one busiiesgntire business is managed by a single mamageteam that reports to the cl
executive officer. The Company does not operatarsép lines of business or separate businessesntitith respect to any of its prod
candidates. Accordingly, the Company does not peegiscrete financial information with respect &parate product areas or by location
only has one reportable segment.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In August 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Stand#pdate (‘ ASU” ) No. 2014-15Presentation of Financial Statement§eing Concer
(Subtopic 205-40) Disclosure of Uncertainties abantEntity's Ability to Continue as a Going Concerhhis ASU requires managemen
assess whether there is substantial doubt abowintiitg’s ability to continue as a going concern and, jfdisclose that fact. Management
also be required to evaluate and disclose wheth@lans alleviate that doubt. This ASU states, tivaen making this assessment, manage
should consider relevant conditions or events d@natknown or reasonably knowable on the date tlenéial statements are issued or avai
to be issued. This ASU is effective for annual pési ending after December 15, 2016 and interimogerthereafter, and early adoptio
permitted. The Company is currently evaluatingithpact of adoption on its consolidated financiatsments.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-8®%venue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 6083U No. 201409 supersedes t
revenue recognition requirements in Topic 6RByenue Recognitignrand most industrgpecific revenue recognition guidance throughoe
Industry Topics of the Accounting Standards Codiiien. Additionally, this update supersedes sonst goidance included in Subtopic 685
Revenue Recogniti-Construction-Type and Production-Type Contracthe core principle of the guidance is that antgshould recogniz
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goodseorices to customers in an amount that refléetsonsideration to which the entity exp
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
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services. It is effective for the first interim pmd within annual reporting periods beginning affercember 15, 2016, and early adoption i
permitted. The Company is currently evaluatingithpact of adoption on its consolidated financiatsments.

In April 2014, FASB issued ASU No. 2014-0Bresentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205 Bnoperty, Plant, and Equipment (To
360): Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disales of Disposals of Components of Entitshich changes the criteria for report
discontinued operations while enhancing discloseqeirements. This ASU addresses sources of camfsid inconsistent application rele
to financial reporting of discontinued operationsdgnce in U.S. GAAP. Under this guidance, a disooed operation is defined as a disp
of a component or group of components that is disgmf or is classified as held for sale and regmtssa strategic shift that has a major e
on an entitys operations and financial results. This ASU is@ff/e prospectively for fiscal years and interimripds within those yee
beginning after December 15, 2014. This ASU isatif¥e for us prospectively on January 1, 2015. Wendt anticipate that the adoption of
standard will have a material impact on our finahstatements.

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardsuiidssued new guidance on the financial statepresentation of unrecognized tax bet
when a net operating loss carryforward, a simiéar Ibss, or a tax credit carryforward exists. ThmmPanys adoption of this guidance
January 1, 2014 did not have a material effectwrfinancial statements.

3. Procurement Contract and Research Agreements

Procurement Contrac

On May 13, 2011, the Company signed a contract BRRDA (the “BARDA Contract”) pursuant to which SKagreed to delivetwo million
courses of Tecovirimat to the U.S. Strategic NatioBtockpile (“Strategic Stockpile”). The BARDA Ciact is worth approximatel§$46:
million , including $409.8 million for manufacturand delivery of 1.7 million courses of Tecovirimahd $54 millionof potentia
reimbursements related to development and suppaatitivities (the “Base Contract'n addition to the Base Contract, the BARDA Cont
also contains various options that are exercisabRBARDA'’s discretion and would fund development and supéctivities such as work
pediatric and geriatric formulations of the drugvesll as use of Tecovirimat for smallpox prophy&xivould result in $50 milliopayment t
the Company for FDA approval for extension to 8%4nthm expiry for Tecovirimat (from 38&onth expiry as required in the Base Contr
and/or would fund production-related activities Isuas warmbase manufacturing. As of December 31, 2014, BARI2A& not exercised a
options. The BARDA Contract expires in Septembet@®@0

Under the Base Contract with BARDA, BARDA has agrée buy from SIGA 1.7 milliorcourses of Tecovirimat. Additionally, SIGA expe
to contribute to BARDA 300,000 courses at no add#i cost to BARDA.

As discussed in Note 14 the amount of profits wk rgtain pursuant to the BARDA Contract may be edely affected by the outcome
PharmAthene’s action against SIGA.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company has receit88.8 millionunder the Base Contract related to the manufaetigphysical delivery
courses of Tecovirimat. Included in this amount: &e$41 millionadvance payment in 2011 for the completion of aerfdanning an
preparatory activities related to the Base Contreadtl2.3 millionmilestone payment in 2012 for the completion of gheduct labeling strate:
for Tecovirimat; an $8.2 milliomilestone payment in 2013 for the completion of teenmercial validation campaign for Tecovirimatd
$136.8 million of payments following physical dedies of 1.3 millioncourses of Tecovirimat to the Strategic Stockg#educt deliveries
Tecovirimat in 2013 and 2014 were at a provisiatedage of 600 mg administered once daily. Paynfelisving physical delivery of cours
were $40.7 million and $96.1 milliom 2014 and 2013, respectively. Reimbursementse®@lto research and development services
supportive activities were $3.1 million and $5.4limm in 2014 and 2013, respectively, and are $8ibion since inception of the BARD
Contract.

On December 24, 2014, the Company announced teatlan discussions with representatives of the BB BARDA, product deliveries
Tecovirimat subsequent to December 31, 2014 areate to be at a provisional dosage of 600 mg adtaned twice per day (1,200 mg
day). This is a change from the provisional doghgéwas in effect when product deliveries were enad2013 and 2014 (600 mg per day
2013 and 2014, the provisional dosage of courskgeded to the Strategic Stockpile was 600 mg adisténed once per day. The change ir
provisional dosage is based on FDA guidance redebse the Company in 2014, subsequent to the degliedérl.3 million courses c
Tecovirimat. Based on the current provisional desafj600 mg administered twice per day (1,200 mgdas), SIGA currently expects
supplement previously delivered courses of Tecmt] at no additional cost to BARDA, with additiortiosages so that all of the coul
previously delivered to BARDA will be at the newopisional dosage. The Company and BARDA have agteedn amendment (the
BARDA Amendment”) of the BARDA Contract to refleitte foregoing, which modification is subject to tygproval of the Bankruptcy Court.
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The Company expects to incur significant incremleadats with the production of additional dosagbe Pprovisional dosage for Tecovirir
may be subject to additional changes in the fubased on FDA guidance.

The BARDA Contract is a multiple deliverable arrangent comprising delivery of courses and coverséaeh and development activit
The BARDA Contract provides certain product repfaeat rights with respect to delivered courses.thisrreason, recognition of revenue
might otherwise occur upon delivery of coursesxgeeted to be deferred until the Compangbligations related to potential replacemel
delivered courses are satisfied. The Company as$élss selling price for each of the aforementiodeliverables research and developm
activities and drug product. The selling price eftain reimbursed research and development serwiassletermined by reference to exis
and past research and development grants and ctsntratween the Company and various governmentcaggenmhe selling price of dr
product was determined by reference to other Compasales of drug products such as antiviral therapgutrphan drugs and drugs v
potential life-saving impact similar to Tecovirimaicluding products delivered to the Strategiccgfile.

The Company has recognized revenue for reimburseaferertain BARDA Contract research and developnsenvices. Cash inflows rela
to delivery of courses will continue to be recor@sddeferred revenue. In addition, direct costarireel by the Company to fulfill the delivery
courses including the supplementing of coursesipusly delivered under the BARDA Contract are bedlederred and will be recognized
expenses over the same period that the relatedre@fieevenue is recognized as revenue.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, deferred direstscunder the BARDA Contract of approximately $3gillion and $22.6 million,
respectively, are included in deferred costs orctiresolidated balance sheets. As of December 314,2Be Company record&203.8 millior
of deferred revenue, of which $203.7 millia included in liabilities subject to compromiseefBrred revenue has been recorded fo
delivery of approximately 1.3 millionourses of Tecovirimat to the Strategic Stockpild aertain research and development services p#c
as part of the BARDA Contract. For the year endedddnber 31, 2014, revenue from reimbursed reseatidevelopment was $2.1 million .

Research Agreemen

The Company obtains funding from the contracts graahts it obtains from various agencies of the G8vernment to support its research
development activities. Currently, the Company &1 contract and orgrant with varying expiration dates through Febyu2018 that provic
for potential future aggregate research and dewedop funding for specific projects of approximated@.2 million . Because of tt
Optimization Program (see Note 13), we may notzatimaterial amounts under the grant covering tkecpnical drug candidates.

The funded amount includes, among other thingspepthat may or may not be exercised at the Uo8ermments discretion. Moreover, t
contract and contract grant contain customary temusconditions including the U.S. Governmentght to terminate or restructure a gran
convenience at any time.

In connection with the Optimization Program, in Ais§2014, the Company entered into an asset puawsement to sell and transfer its pre
clinical Arenavirus assets and research and demeap grant relating to Lassa fever to Kineta FalC (the “ Purchaser ” )an unrelate
party. In exchange for the transfer of certain &saad intellectual property rights, the Compamgereed profit interest units“( Units ” ) in
Kineta Four, LLC, and the Company is eligible f@peoximately $5.1 million of later-stage milestop@yments and royalties of up to 4%
sales of drugs that use the transferred intellégraperty rights. The Units, which have no votinghts, could provide the Company wit
participation of approximatel y 5 - 10% of wreash distribution, if any, by Kineta Four, LLGgpEnding on future fundraising by Kineta F
LLC. The assets transferred as part of the assehpse agreement are the sole operating assetmefakFour, LLC. The asset purch
agreement had no impact on the Company's resutiperfitions as the assets and intellectual proprentgferred to the Purchaser had no |
value.

4. Liabilities Subject to Compromise

Pre-petition liabilities that are subject to compise are required to be reported at the amountsateg to be allowed in the Compasghapte
11 case, even if they may be settled for lesseruatso The amounts classified as Liabilities SubfedCompromise as of December 31, 2
may be subject to future adjustments depending ankBiptcy Court actions, further developments widspect to disputed clain
determinations of the secured status of certaiimslaif any, the value of any collateral securingls claims, or other events. The Comg
cannot reasonably estimate the value of the claiaswill ultimately be allowed in its chapter 1ase until its evaluation, investigation i
reconciliation of all filed claims has been comptét

The amount of liabilities subject to compromiseresgnts the Company's estimate, where an estimatetérminable, of known or poten
prepetition claims to be addressed in connection watlthapter 11 case. Such liabilities are repoatethe Company's current estimate, w
an estimate is determinable, of the allowed claimoant, even though they may be settled for lesser
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amounts. These claims remain subject to futuresamjents depending on Bankruptcy Court actionshéurdevelopments with respect
disputed claims, determinations of the securedistat certain claims, if any, the value of any atal securing such claims, or other events.

As of December 31, 2014, Liabilities Subject to @oamise consist of the following:

December 31, 2014

Deferred revenue 203,696,19
Accounts payable - pre-petition 3,502,60
Expectation damages accrual- PharmAthene Litigation 187,820,36
Legal and expert fees accrual - PharmAthene Litigat 3,226,05! (1)
Other accrued expenses - pre-petition 794,75(
Total $ 399,039,96

(1) $3.2 million is the total accrual for reimbumsent of PharmAthene attorney's fees and expert fggnst which there is $2.7 millior
surety bond that has cash collaterization of $1ilBom .

Reorganization Items, ne!

December 31, 2014

Legal fees $ 1,806,70.
Professional fees 225,36(
Trustee fees 17,87¢
Other 76,60(
Total $ 2,126,53

5. Stockholders’ Equity

On December 31, 2014, the Company’s authorizedestegital consisted of 110,000,000 shares, of whith000,00G@re designated comm
shares and 10,000,000 are designated preferredssiidre Compang’'Board of Directors is authorized to issue pref@ishares in series w
rights, privileges and qualifications of each seriketermined by the Board. As of December 31, 28dl 2013, no preferred shares v
outstanding or issued.

At December 31, 2014, there are no liability clisdiwarrants outstanding. At December 31, 2018 fdir market value of outstanding liabi
classified warrants was $313,425 . The Companyiegphe BlackScholes model to calculate the fair values of tspective derivatiy
instruments using the contractual term of the waslaManagement estimated the expected volatikingia combination of the Company’
historical volatility and the volatility of a grougf comparable companies.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 201&dimpany recorded a gain and a (loss) of $313,A855673,756) respectively. The ga
and (loss) are result of net decrease and (increaspectively in fair value of Commitment Warmfas discussed below) during the respe
periods.

In 2006, the Company issued 1,000,000 warrants avitnitial exercise price of $4.99 per share (2@06 Warrants”)The remaining warrar
expired in 2013.

On June 19, 2008, SIGA entered into a letter agea¢ifas amended, the “Letter Agreemetitgt expired on June 19, 2010, with MacAndr
& Forbes LLC (“M&F"), a related party, for M&F’s goamitment to invest, at SIGA’s discretion or at M&Foption, up to $8 millionn
exchange for (i) SIGA common stock and (i) warsatd purchase 40%f the number of SIGA shares acquired by M&F. Imsideration fc
the commitment of M&F reflected in the Letter Agnaeent, on June 19, 2008, M&F received warrants tehmse 238,008hares of SIG,
common stock, initially exercisable at $3.06 (tf@ofmmitment Warrants”)The Commitment Warrants were exercisable until JLée201Z
On June 19, 2012, the Commitment Warrants were deteto extend expiration to June 19, 2014. Duesttam antidilution provisions, th
Commitment Warrants were recorded as a liabilihd aonsequently the “mark-to-markettijustment to the fair value from the extended
was accounted immediately upon modification. OneJif, 2014, the Commitment Warrants expired. Thnoiligne 19, 2014, the Compi
recognized a mark-to-market gain of $129,398 .
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In 2009, SIGA issued to M&F 816,993 shares of commtock and 326,797 warrants (the “2009 Warranis”acquire common stock
exchange for total proceeds of $2.5 million . Thenants were exercisable for a term of four yemmfissuance for an exercise priceb8f51¢
per share. The 2009 Warrants were not exercisedsadesult expired during the year ended Deceihe2013.

On June 18, 2010, M&F notified SIGA of its intentito exercise its right to invest $5.5 milligrihe remaining amount available under
Letter Agreement following earlier investments adered into a Deferred Closing and Registratiogh8i Agreement dated as of June
2010 with the Company. On July 26, 2010, upon fation of certain customary closing conditiongliming the expiration of the applica
waiting period pursuant to the Hart-Scott-Rodindifkust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, M&Rded the $5.5 milliopurchase pric
to SIGA in exchange for the issuance of (i) 1,788,38hares of common stock and (ii) warrants to lmase 718,954hares of SIGA commu
stock at an exercise price of $3.519 per shareytreants are exercisable for a term of fgears from issuance. On July 26, 2014, the wai
expired. Through July 26, 2014, the Company recegha mark-to-market gain of $184,027 .

On April 30, 2013, SIGA entered into a Servicesegnent with M&F, a related party, for certain pesienal and administrative services.
Services Agreement has a term of three years. Asideration for the Services Agreement, SIGA isswadants to M&F to acquirg50,00(
shares of common stock at an exercise price of9§3P share. The warrants are fully vested, immelgi@eercisable and remain exercisi
for two years from issuance date. The grant-datesédue, determined using the Bla8icholes model as previously described, is recoadeal
asset with a corresponding increase to equity.a8set is amortized over the contractual term ofsheant. For the years ended Decembe
2014 and 2013, the Company recorded an expensk36{364 and $90,909 , respectively.

The number of shares issuable pursuant to the miarganted under the Letter Agreement, as welagxercise price of those warrants,
be subject to adjustment as a result of the effefiiture equity issuances on certain anti-dilugwavisions in the related warrant agreements.

The Company accounted for the warrants in accorlavith the authoritative guidance which requirest theestanding derivative financi
instruments that require net cash settlement tesifiled as assets or liabilities at the time oftth@saction, and recorded at their fair value.
changes in the fair value of the derivative instemts are reported in earnings or loss as longeaddhvative contracts are classified as ass
liabilities.

6. Stock Compensation Plans

The Company’s 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2814n") was initially adopted in May 2010. The 2010 Planvled for the issuance
stock options, restricted stock and unrestrictedksivith respect to an aggregate of 2,000,000 shaféhe Compang Common Stock
employees, consultants and outside directors oCtmapany. On May 17, 2011, the 2010 Plan was antetal@rovide for the issuance
restricted stock units (“RSUsgnd on February 2, 2012, the 2010 Plan was ameiodeabvide for the issuance of SARs. Effective AR5,
2012, the 2010 Plan was amended to increase thenmaxnumber of shares of Common Stock availableidsuance to an aggregate
4,500,000shares. The vesting period for awards granted utidef010 Plan, except those granted to outsideetdirs, is determined by
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directotse Tompensation Committee also determines the aiqirdate of each equity awe
however, stock options and SARs may not be exdigsaore than ten years after the date of grah@snaximum term of equity awal
issued under the 2010 Plan is ten years.

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ang, 24 Company recorded stobised compensation expense, including stock of
SARs, RSUs and certain warrant amortization, ofeximately $2.4 million , $2.3 million and $1.8 ihioin , respectively.

Stock Options

Stock option awards provide holders the right tochase shares of Common Stock at prices deternfipéde Compensation Committee
must have an exercise price equal to or in exceedair market value of the Company’s commorcktat the date of grant.
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There were no stock options granted during yeated 2014. The fair value of option grants wetienased at the date of grant during the y
ended December 31, 2013, and 2012 based uponlitwifg range of assumptions:

2013 2012
Expected volatility 67% 7%
Expected dividend yield —% —%
Risk-free interest rate 0.84% -1.29% 0.98% -1.24%
Expected life 6 year 6 year:

Expected volatility has been estimated using a doation of the Companyg’ historical volatility and the historical volatili of a group c
comparable companies, both using historical peregfigvalent to the optiongxpected lives. The expected dividend yield assiomp$ base
on the Company’s intent not to issue a dividenthanforeseeable future. The rifilee interest rate assumption is based upon obs$émieres
rates for securities with maturities approximating options’expected lives. The expected life was estimateddan historical experience ¢
expectation of employee exercise behavior in theréugiving consideration to the contractual teohthe award.

A summary of the Company’s stock option activityssfollows:

Weighted Weighted
Average Average Aggregate
Number of Exercise Remaining Life Intrinsic Value
Options Price (in years) (in thousands)
Outstanding at January 1, 2014 2,353,631 $ 4.91
Granted — —
Exercised (54,66¢) 1.87
Canceled/Expired (183,39)) 5.92
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 2,115,561 $ 4.9( 4.08 $ 19,10(
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2014 2,108,39. $ 4.9(C 409 $ 19,10(
Exercisable at December 31, 2014 1,877,060 $ 5.17 411 $ 19,10(

As of December 31, 2014 , $47,000 of total remgninrecognized stockased compensation cost related to stock optiopggected to t
recognized over the weighted-average remainingiséguservice period of 2.2 years . The total fafue of vested stock options w#6.1
million , $0.6 million and $0.9 million for the yemended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, resplycti

The total intrinsic value of stock options exerdiseas $19,000 , $959,000 and $5,000the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an#,
respectively. The intrinsic value represents thewm by which the market price of the underlyingcktexceeds the exercise price of an op

The weighted average fair value at the date oftgi@nstock options granted during the years eridedember 31, 2013 and 2012 vk 3¢
and $1.77 .

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, 500,000 of thengamys outstanding options, respectively, were subjecspecific performant
conditions consisting of minimum cash receiptsshodds and regulatory approval of our lead druglate. During the year ended Decen
31, 2014, the performance conditions relating tmimim cash receipts were achieved making 30000¢he aforementioned optic
exercisable. The remaining 200,000tions with performance conditions relating toulegpry approval have not been achieved, thus
options are not exercisable at December 31, 2014.

Stock Appreciation Right

Stock-settled stock appreciation rights (“SSARgfvide holders the right to purchase shares of I@omStock at prices determined by
Compensation Committee and must have an exerdise grual to or in excess of the fair market valtithe Companys common stock at t
date of grant. Upon exercise, the gain, or intdnsilue, is settled by the delivery of SIGA stogkhie employee.

There were no SSARs granted during the year en@#d. During the year ended December 31, 2012, trepany granted 1.4 millioshare
of SSARs at a weighted average grant-date fairevafi$0.68per share. The exercise price of a SSAR is equaietalosing market price on 1
date of grant. The granted SSARSs vest in equalannstallments over a period of three years argrexo later than seven yedirsm the dat
of grant. Moreover, the appreciation of each SSAR weapped at a determined
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maximum value. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, dube cap on value the maximum number of sharésthdd be issued in the future v
372,000 and 408,000 , respectively.

The fair value of granted SSARs has been estimatiéiding a Monte Carlo method. The Monte Carlo heet is a statistical simulati
technique used to provide the gralatte fair value of an award. As the issued SSARs wapped at maximum values, such attribute
considered in the simulation. The following tabtegents the weighted-average assumptions utiliz#tki valuations:

2012
Expected volatility 71%
Expected life from grant date 4.5 year
Expected dividend yield —%
Risk-free interest rate 0.61%

The Company calculates the expected volatility gigircombination of SIGA historical volatility and the volatility of a gup of comparab
companies. The expected life from grant date wésmated based on the expectation of exercise behaviconsideration of the maximi
value and contractual term of the SSARs. The diddgield assumption is based on the Compangtent not to issue a dividend in
foreseeable future. The risk-free interest rateragsion is based upon observed interest rates ppate for the expected life of the SSARs.

A summary of the Company’s SSAR activity is asdals:

Weighted Weighted
Average Average Aggregate
Number of Exercise Remaining Life  Intrinsic Value
SSARs Price (in years) (in thousands)
Outstanding at January 1, 2014 1,310,900 $ 3.5¢
Granted — —
Exercised — —
Canceled/Expired (84,37¢) 3.5¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 1,226,52. $ 3.5¢ 4.09 $ —
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2014 1,214,79  $ 3.5¢ 4.09 $ —
Exercisable at December 31, 2014 849,230 $ 3.5¢ 4.09 $ —

As of December 31, 2014 , $24,000 of total remagnimrecognized stodkased compensation cost related to SSARs is expédotde
recognized over the weighted-average remainingisagguservice period of 0.09 years. The total falue of vested SSARs was $267,000
$317,000 and $0 for the years ended December 34, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The total intdnglue of SSARs exercised was $0
$4,000 and $dor the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and, 26%pectively. The intrinsic value representsah®unt by which tt
market price of the underlying stock exceeds trex@se price of a SSAR.

Restricted Stock Awards/Restricted Stock Ut
RSUs awarded to employees vest in equal annuallliments over a thregear period and RSUs awarded to directors of thafgamy vest ov
a one-year period. A summary of the Company’s R&wity is as follows:

Weighted

Average

Number of Grant-Date

RSUs Fair Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2014 966,66 $ 2.9¢
Granted 695,00( 3.2
Vested (466,667) 3.12
Canceled/Expired (33,339 3.14
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 1,16167. $ 3.07

As of December 31, 2014 , $2.0 million of total Emng unrecognized stodkased compensation cost related to RSUs is expéatée
recognized over the weighted-average remainingisgquservice period of 1.42 years. The weighteelage fair value at
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the date of grant for restricted stock awards @auduring the years ended December 31, 2014, 200 2@12 was $3.23 , $2.98 and $2#2
share, respectively. The total fair value of res#d stock and restricted stock units vested dufhiegyears ended December 31, 2014, 201
2012 was $1.5 million , $0.7 million and $0.0 naili .

Warrants
A summary of the Company’s warrant activity is akofws:

Number of Weighted Average

Warrants Exercise Price
Outstanding at January 1, 2014 1,216,221 $ 3.3¢€
Granted — —
Exercised — —
Canceled/Expired (966,226 3.37
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 250,00  $ 3.2¢

Warrants represent the right to purchase shar€swimon Stock at contractual exercise prices. A3emfember 31, 2014, all outstanding
warrants are exercisable.
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7. Debt

In December 2012, the Company entered into a lga@eanent (“Loan Agreement”) with General Electrigplal Corporation (“GE Capita)l”
to provide the Company a term loan of $5.0 millwith a fixed interest rate of 9.85% per annum améwalving line of credit of7.0 millior
with a variable interest rate. Borrowings underrénwolving line of credit was based on eligiblestahding accounts receivable and was se
rate per annum equal to 5.25% plus the higheradfi(50% , and (b) thremonth LIBOR divided by a defined factor. The terfitlee loan wa
three years.

On September 17, 2014, the Bankruptcy Court apgrowean interim basis a Stipulation and Order betwhe Company and GE Capital, ir
capacity as Agent for the lenders under the Loaredment, in connection with the chapter 11 case.lddan Agreement, consisting of a ti
loan and revolving line of credit, is a fully seedrloan facility. Pursuant to the Stipulation andl€D:

» The Company could continue to use cash as to whil\gent has a lie

e The Company continued to make its regularly daked interest (at the natefault rate) and amortization payments on the tear
under the Loan Agreement;

e The revolving loan commitment under the Loan Agreeinas to which no borrowings are outstanding, t@aminatec

* The Company paid $70,0040 GE in full satisfaction of all amounts payableder the Loan Agreement in connection with
termination of the revolving loan commitment;

* The Company would maintain a minimum balanc&40 millionin a specified account as collateral for the ohiayes under the Loz
Agreement; and

 The Company and GE reserved their respective raghtshether interest at the default rate was payabd if it was determined thz
is payable, such amount, less the $70,88@rred to above, would be added to the amounthefobligations under the Lo
Agreement.

The Stipulation and Order was approved by the Bagstky Court on a final basis on October 28, 2014 Tompany set aside, in a seps
account, $4.0 millioras collateral for obligations under the Loan Agreatrand classified this amount as restricted casksdalance sheet.
long as the Stipulation and Order is in effect, &ffeed to not seek to take any action to accel@aenent under the Loan Agreemen
exercise any remedies. The GE loan is considefdsecured and is not reported as liabilities sabjo compromise (see Note 1).

As of December 31, 2014, approximately $2.0 milladrthe term loan was outstanding.

In January 2015, the Company paid the term lodalinncluding related fees. The Loan Agreement wasinated with the full payment of 1
term loan and all collateral was released.

In connection with securing the Loan Agreement, @mmpany incurred approximately $386,080debt issue costs which are recorde
deferred costs and allocated between other cuassdts and other assets. Furthermore, the Compeaungred $90,00@f costs which wel
accounted for as a debt discount and thus, arededas a direct reduction of the face amount efdabt. The debt issue costs and
discount will be amortized to interest expense dkerterm of the Loan Agreement.

The aggregate amount of required principal paymanBecember 31, 2014 were as follows:

2015 $ 2,000,001
Unamortized discount (10,057)
Total $ 1,989,94i

67




Table of Contents
8. Related Party Transactions

On December 1, 2009, the Company entered into diteOServices Agreement with an affiliate of M&F ticcupy office space f
approximately $8,000 per month. An amendment irlaly 2012 increased the monthly payment to $12t0G{ppropriately reflect expanc
use of space. The Office Services Agreement wasebaah effective March 31, 2013.

In October 2012, the Company funded a letter afliciend deposit to take advantage of a lease fareo§pace secured by an affiliate of M
from a third party landlord on behalf of the CompaRursuant to such letter of credit, in January®the Company entered into a sublea
which the Company will pay all costs associatedlie lease, including rent. All payments madehgy@ompany pursuant to the sublease
either be directly or indirectly made to the thpdrty landlord and not retained by M&F or any #dfié. The new sublease replaced the cu
Office Services Agreement that is described inpgtevious paragraph, and occupancy commenced oth B2D13. The sublease allows fc
free rent period of five months beginning April2013; subsequent to the free rent period, montty payments are $60,000 for the ffise
years an$63,000 for the next twgears. Upon expiration on September 1, 2020, théeage and lease provides for two consecutiveyfds
renewal options.

The Company has a Services Agreement with M&F awdraant agreement with M&F (see Note 5).

A member of the Company’s Board of Directors is entber of the Compang’outside counsel. During the years ended DeceBihe?014
2013 and 2012, the Company incurred costs of $802,81.8 million and $2.0 millionrespectively, related to services provided byahiside
counsel. On December 31, 2014, the Company's auiistg payables included $60,000 payable to thedmitunsel.

During fourth quarter of 2014, an affiliate of M&fovided the Company with research services faealnical drug candidate. The Comp:
incurred costs of $68,600 related to services piebiby the affiliate of M&F.

9. Inventory

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Coyngelivered approximately 504,0@@urses accepted into the Strategic Stockpile;to
the deferral of revenue under the BARDA Contraeg(blote 3), amounts that would be otherwise recbadecost of goods sold for delive
courses are recorded as deferred costs in thedeakdreet. The value of inventory represents thes dosurred to manufacture Tecovirir
under the BARDA Contract. Additional costs incurredcomplete production of courses of Tecovirimdlt ive recorded as inventory &
reclassified to deferred costs upon delivery toetktent related revenue is deferred.

Inventory consisted of the following at Decembey 3114 and 2013:

2014 2013
Work in-process $ 16,688,68 $ 14,363,15
Finished goods 2,355,79! 6,152,19
Inventory $ 19,044,47 $ 20,515,34

The Company has revised the disclosure of the pusly reported component of inventory at Decemiie2813.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 201&arodsand development expense included inventoitg-gdowns of approximatel$1.C
million and $0.5 million , respectively.
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10. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the¥adlg at December 31, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013

Laboratory equipment $ — 3 2,473,42i
Leasehold improvements 3,170,59 3,166,62.
Computer equipment 669,78: 655,36
Furniture and fixtures 488,80" 488,16¢
4,329,18 6,783,58:

Less - accumulated depreciation (3,497,25) (5,401,50)
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 831,93t $ 1,382,07.

Depreciation and amortization expense on propptant, and equipment was $351,561 , $463,137 $4i8,358 for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively.

As a result of the Optimization Plan described ioteN12, in March 2014 the Company engaged a trartly to manage the disposition
certain laboratory equipment. During 2014, cerfainoratory equipment with a net book value of $229,was sold for gross proceeds
$569,607 , which resulted in a gain of $345,658 .

11. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities isted of the following at December 31, 2014 and3201

2014 2013
Loss contingency $ — % 2,635,27!
Bonus 17,50( —
Professional fees 534,77! 794,27"
Vacation 271,00( 252,41(
Other 1,262,72! 1,160,43
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 2,085,99° § 4,842,39

As of December 31, 2014, loss contingency is diassin liabilities subject to compromise.
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12. Income Taxes

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company's goov{benefit) for income taxes is comprised of fibléowing:

2014 2013 2012
Current:
Federal $ (10,428 $ 1,608,03. $ —
State and local (30,375 373,45! 3,64¢
Total current provision (benefit) (40,809 1,981,48: 3,64¢
Deferred:
Federal 53,198,63 (10,072,49) (7,557,16)
State and local 370,43¢ 472,57. (290,63
Total deferred provision (benefit) 53,569,07 (9,599,92) (7,847,80)
Total provision (benefit) $ 53,528,26 $ (7,618,43) $ (7,844,15)

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company’s dedeax assets and liabilities are comprised ofdiewing:

2014 2013
Deferred income tax assets:
Net operating losses $ 30,402,94 % 7,750,69i
Deferred research and development costs 1,606,54 2,278,39
Amortization of intangible assets 1,106,23! 1,342,55!
Share-based compensation 2,389,811 2,166,12!
Fixed assets 639,57¢ 604,97:
Deferred revenue 37,910,54 48,685,08
Alternative minimum tax credits 1,578,811 1,608,03.
Loss contingency 67,833,41 942,52¢
Other 777,80: 554,77
Deferred income tax assets 144,245,68 65,933,16
Less: valuation allowance (132,578,02) (4,442,92)
Deferred income tax assets, net of valuation alimea $ 11,667,66 $ 61,490,23
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Amortization of goodwill (244,54 (224,90
Capitalized contract costs (11,667,66) (7,940,79))
Deferred income tax assets, net $ (244,54) $ 53,324,53

The recognition of a valuation allowance for deddrtaxes requires management to make estimatgsdgmients about the Compasyfuture
profitability which are inherently uncertain. Thigludes assessing available positive and negatiidence to determine if sufficient future
income will be generated to utilize existing de¢efrtax assets. During 2014, the Company recordedsaaccrual for expectation damage
approximately $187.8 milliomelated to the PharmAthene litigation (see Notedt) filed a voluntary petition for relief undertl& 11 of ths
United States Bankruptcy Code (see Note 1). Thesalbstantial doubt about the Company's abilityoiatinue as going concern. Based or
weight of available evidence, the Company concluthed it could no longer realize its deferred tasets on a more likely than not basis
recorded a non-cash charge of $53.5 millionestablish a valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets. The valuation allow:
increased by $128.1 million from prior years.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had $87.4amibbf federal net operating loss carryforwards whigipiee in 2021 to 2034 w.
available to offset taxable income. As a resuli gimulative change in stock ownership occurring prior year, approximately $3.1 milliaf
the federal net operating loss carryforwards algesti to annual limitation under IRC Section 382aHdition, the utilization of approximat:
$1.6 million of federal net operating losses atttiole to excess tax deductions on shEsed compensation activity will be realized
benefit to Additional Paida Capital when such deductions reduce income tgpagmble. As of December 31, 2014, the Compan)
approximately $1.6 million of alternative minimuaxt
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credit which will be carried forward indefinitely.

The Company'’s effective tax rate differs from th&lUFederal Statutory income tax rate of 35% devial:

2014 2013 2012

Statutory federal income tax rate (35.0% (35.0% (35.0%
State tax benefit 0.2% 2.8% (1.9%
Gain (loss) from fair value of common warrants — % 0.1% (1.9%
Share-based compensation — % 0.4% 0.86%
Reorganization costs 0.4% — % — %
Other — % 0.3% 0.E%
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets 59.7% 0.€% 0.5%

25.2% (30.1% (35.9%

Effective tax rate

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Compaaiigstive tax rate differs from the statutory rgencipally due to the Compary’
conclusion that they could no longer realize itledied tax assets on a more-likely-than-not basisracorded a non-cash tax charg&s3.-
million . For the years ended December 31, 2013202, the Compang’effective tax rate differs principally due totstand local taxes a

other permanent differences.

The Company applies the applicable authoritatiidance which prescribes a comprehensive modehfontanner in which a company shc
recognize, measure, present and disclose in @ fial statements all material uncertain tax pms&ithat the Company has taken or expe:
take on a tax return. As of December 31, 2014 &182the Company has no uncertain tax positionsré'are no uncertain tax positions
which it is reasonably possible that the total antswf unrecognized tax benefits will significanihcrease or decrease within twelve mo

from December 31, 2014.

The Company files federal income tax returns acdrme tax returns in various state and local taisgictions. The open tax years for U.S.
federal, state and local tax returns is generdllyl2- 2014; open tax years relating to any of haany’s net operating losses begin in 1998.
In the event that the Company concludes thatstiect to interest and/or penalties arising froroautain tax positions, the Company will
present interest and penalties as a componentoiia taxes. No amounts of interest or penaltieg wegognized in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for each of gery in the three-year period ended December 34, 20

13. Restructuring

In the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company begaroptimization program to increase efficiencies witits operations (theOptimizatior
Program”).This program, which included a reduction in emp®¥yeadcount, was intended to align the Compansgturees, staff and effo
with the most promising growth opportunities. Fbe tyear ended December 31, 2013, the Company et@destructuring charge o
512,944 which included a non-cash asset impairnf@nthe writeoff of certain prepaid assets. A substantial partad the Optimizatio
Program was implemented as of December 31, 201Desember 31, 2014, the remaining severance acofufB,825is not subject t
compromise. The following table summarizes thevigtfor the restructuring:

Accrued as of Accrued as of
December 31, 2013  Charges Payments  Non-Cash Items December 31, 2014
Severance Charges $ 118,23( $ — $ (114,409 $ — % 3,82t
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14. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating lease commitments

The Company leases its Corvallis, Oregon, faciliied office space under an operating lease, rmoshtly amended in November 2012, w|
expires in 2017 and includes a renewal option foegtension of five yearsin January 2013, we entered into a sublease avithffiliate o
M&F for corporate office space under an operataaske which commenced in April 2013 and expireYR0see Note 8 for further descripi
of the lease arrangement). The respective leasgainannual escalation clauses, renewal provisimusgenerally require us to pay utilit
insurance, taxes and other operating expensesalReqense, including charges for maintenancetiesi real estate taxes and other oper.
expenses, totaled $1.6 million , $1.4 million arid®million for the years ended December 31, 2@D43 and 2012, respectively.

Future minimum rental commitments under reamcelable operating leases as of December 31, &@lexpected to be in the future as follo

2015 1,622,50:
2016 1,642,17
2017 1,661,84!
2018 734,36(
2019 761,06
Thereafter 507,37t

Total $ 6,929,33

Actual payments in the future could be less thamtimimum commitments due to the chapter 11 case.

Legal Proceeding:

In December 2006, PharmAthene, Inc. (“PharmAthgfilgd an action against us in the Delaware Coti€hancery (the “Court” or “Court of
Chancery”) captioned PharmAthene, Inc. v. SIGA Tedbgies, Inc., C.A. No. 2627-VCP. In its amendethplaint, PharmAthene asked the
Court to order us to enter into a license agreeméhtPharmAthene with respect to ST-246, also kmas Tecovirimat, to declare that we are
obliged to execute such a license agreement, aaddod damages resulting from our alleged brea¢hatfobligation. PharmAthene also
alleges that we breached an obligation to negasiath a license agreement in good faith, and salayhtiges for promissory estoppel and
unjust enrichment based on information, capitadl assistance that PharmAthene allegedly provides uring the negotiation process. The
Court tried the case in January 2011.

In September 2011, the Court of Chancery issuegois$-trial opinion. The Court denied PharmAthsnequests for specific performance
expectation damages measured by present valudimigsd future profits. Nevertheless, the Courthbht we breached our duty to nego
in good faith and were liable under the doctrinepadmissory estoppel. The Court consequently aveatdePharmAthene what the Cc
described as an equitable payment stream or etpiltab consisting of fifty percent of the net gtsfthat we achieve from sales of 346 afte
we secure $40 million in net profits, for ten yefatbowing the first commercial sale. In additiche Court awarded PharmAthene dhed of
its reasonable attorneys’ fees and expert witnegsreses.

In May 2012, the Court entered its final order unmdigment in this matter, implementing its pt$&l opinion. Among other things, the fii
order and judgment provided that (a) net profitsuldobe calculated in accordance with generally pismk accounting principles appl
consistently with how they are applied in the pragian of our financial statements, (b) the netfipgccalculation would take into accol
expenses relating to ST-246 commencing with ouuisitpn of ST-246 in August 2004, and (c) Pharmekth could recover $2.4 millioof
attorneys’ fees and expenses.

In June 2012, the Company appealed to the Suprevud 6f the State of Delaware the final order amdigjment and certain earlier rulings
the Court of Chancery. Shortly thereafter, PharneAthfiled its crossppeal. The Company obtained a stay of enforcemiktite fee an
expense portion of the judgment by filing a sutetyd for the amount of the judgment plus post-judgtrinterest. We posted $1.3 milliof
cash as a 50% collateral for a $2.7 million subigd. The $1.3 million of cash collateral is re@tdn other assets as of December 31, 2014.

On January 10, 2013, the parties briefed the issuebargued before the Delaware Supreme Coubaet.
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On May 24, 2013, the Supreme Court of Delawareeidsts decision, affirming the Delaware Court ofa@berys judgment in part, reversing
in part, and remanding to Vice Chancellor Parsdiee Supreme Court affirmed the Chancery Court deteation that the Company F
breached its contractual obligation to negotiatgdod faith; reversed the promissory estoppel hgldand, reversed the Vice Chancelor’
equitable damages award. The Supreme Court heldhéadrial judge may award expectation damagedbfeach of the contractual duty
negotiate in good faith if such damages are pravitm reasonable certainty, and remanded to the &@hgrCourt for consideration of dama
consistent with that holding. The Supreme Count aéversed the Chancery Cosréiward of attorney fees and expert witness feeause the
were predicated in part on a now-reversed findihgatility on PharmAthene promissory estoppel claim. The Supreme Court tiedt the
Chancery Court could reevaluate on remand an aliemaward, if any, of attorneyfes and expert testimony expenses consistenttiad
Supreme Court’s opinion. Finally, the Supreme Cdextlined to consider all claims raised in Pharnefdts cross appeal because it affirr
the Chancery Cous’finding that the Company was liable for breachtagontractual obligation to negotiate in goodhfaOn June 11, 201
the Supreme Court issued its mandate to the Co@hancery with the decision described above.

On June 26, 2013, the parties appeared beforeGhemcellor Parsons to discuss the remand, at winehPharmAthene declared its desir
supplement the record with further evidence. Faihgnbriefing and argument on August 15, 2013, thar@ery Court granted PharmAthene’
motion to supplement the record and also allowedG@bmpany to submit responsive evidence. On Decef®#9, 2013, the Court held
evidentiary hearing with respect to that evider@@e.January 15, 2014, after briefing on relevanidss the parties appeared for oral argu
regarding what remedy, if any, the Chancery Cdusuil impose in light of the remand by the Supré&noert of Delaware.

On August 8, 2014, the Court of Chancery issuedR#snand Opinion. In its Remand Opinion, the CodirChancery reversed its ear
conclusions and held that PharmAthene had cartsdourden of demonstrating its entitlement to llsnm expectation damages for lost prt
related to Tecovirimat by a preponderance of thilemce. It also stated that in order to calculabarfAthenes lost profits, sever
modifications to the valuation model presentediat {which the Court of Chancery had rejectedas gpeculative, among other things, it
postirial opinion) were required, which modificatiofgetCourt of Chancery set forth in the Remand Opinithe Court of Chancery ruled t
PharmAthene is entitled to the value of the revisgdulations plus pre- and pgatigment interest at the legal rate with prejudgnieterest t
accrue from December 20, 2006. The Court of Chanakso denied and dismissed with prejudice Pharmigls claims that it is entitled
specific performance or an equitable payment streamthe grounds that PharmAthene is limited t@@tractual remedy and has an adec
remedy at law. Finally, the Court of Chancery ruthdt PharmAthene was entitled to (i) forty percefthe reasonable attorneyges an
expenses it incurred through post-trial argumeiil, ope-third of the reasonable attorneyises and expenses it incurred in the rer
proceedings, (iii) sixty percent of expert witnésas it incurred in the pretrial and trial phases] (iv) and ongenth of the expert witness ft
it incurred in the remand proceedings.

The Remand Opinion instructed the parties to perfdamages calculations using the Court's newly fieatbut previously rejected moc
PharmAthene was instructed to provide SIGA withump sum damages calculation within 10 business, daifewing which SIGA wouli
respond within 10 business days with its own calboh, or agreement with PharmAthene. Additionalye Remand Opinion specified that
competing calculations would be submitted to thei€of Chancery within 30 days from the date onahhPharmAthene provided its lul
sum damages calculation to SIGA, if there is caritig disagreement on the narrow issue of perforrttiegcourt's required calculations.

On September 16, 2014, as a consequence of SlG#pter 11 filing, the legal proceedings with iRisthene were stayed (see Note 1).
October 8, 2014, the Bankruptcy Court approvedipugittion between the Company and PharmAthenegiigrtifting the stay to permit tf
litigation before the Delaware Chancery Court togeed, including all appeals. The Stipulation, hesveprovides that the stay shall remai
effect with respect to the enforcement of any judgtrthat may be entered.

On October 17, the Company and PharmAthene sepasatemitted competing damages calculations tdabert of Chancery. PharmAthese’
submission noted a damages calculation, inclusfvpre-judgment interest, of approximately $233 ioillas of September 30, 2014. -
Company’s submission noted a damages calculatictudive of pre-judgment interest, of approximat®ly’3 millionas of August 8, 2014 (t
date of the Remand Opinion). The separate calonstubmitted by PharmAthene and the Company aexlban each partiesiterpretation ¢
the adjusted valuation methodology the Court ofricleay directed the parties to utilize in the Rem@mdhion. The ultimate loss to be incur
from this litigation is highly uncertain and may bignificantly different from the Final Order anddgment. In its submission, the Comp
stated that SIGA intends to argue on appeal thatrRAthene has no entitlement to any award of egpect damages, but, rather, shoul
limited to a recovery of its reliance interest g@ipeoximately $200,000 Accordingly, the ultimate loss to be incurrednfrahis litigation it
highly uncertain and may be significantly differendbm the range of calculations set forth in thetaber 17 submission to the Court
Chancery.

As part of the October 17 submissions, PharmAttreateulated SIGA's liability for reimbursement ot@hey’s fees, expert witness costs
other costs as $3.2 million .

73




Table of Contents

On January 7, 2015, the Delaware Court of Chanissned a letter opinion, directing PharmAtheneutonsit a revised proposed final order
judgment reflecting certain rulings in that opiniemcluding an award to PharmAthene$113,116,985n contract expectation damages, |
interest. On January 9, 2015, PharmAthene submiéteevised proposed final order and judgment. Quudiy 12, 2015, SIGA submitt
limited objections to PharmAthene’s proposed fimaer and judgment, to which PharmAthene respondetanuary 14, 2015.

On January 15, 2015, the Delaware Court of Chaneetgred its Final Order and Judgment, awardingharmAthene $113,116,986
contract expectation damages, plus jpdgment interest up to January 15, 2015, and icepiarmitted legal fees, costs, and expenses,
judgment 0f$194,649,042 . Pursuant to the January 15 FinakiCadd Judgment, SIGA also is liable to PharmAthiemepostjudgmen
interest, in the amount of $30,663.89 , per diefnctv per diem amount shall periodically be adjusted

Both parties were free to appeal from the portiohthe trial court rulings on remand that were wofable to them within 30 days of entry
the Delaware Court of ChancesyFinal Order and Judgment. On January 16, 2015A Slppealed from certain portions of the Delawaoeir
of Chancery's rulings on remand, including but limatted to the Final Order and Judgment, to theadere Supreme Court. On January
2015, PharmAthene cross-appealed from certainquartdf the Delaware Court of Chanceryulings on remand, including but not limitec
the Final Order and Judgment, to the Delaware $upi@ourt. There is no assurance that either apykdie successful.

The ultimate loss to be incurred in the future frime PharmAthene litigation is highly uncertain amey differ significantly from th
Outstanding Judgment. However, SIGA believes thatlimate loss of some amount is probable. Becthuséuture outcome of SIGA’appes

of the Final Order and Judgment to the Supremet@dubelaware is highly uncertain, the Company based its loss accrual on the Janua
2015 Delaware Court of Chancery letter opinion, tredsubsequent judgment entered by the Delawanet @bChancery on January 15, 2(
Based on the Delaware Court of Chancery letteriopjrSIGA has recorded a loss accrual for expentadamages of approximately $183s88
of December 31, 2014. This amount is classifiec #iability subject to compromise. Included in tloss accrual, the Company accrued pre
judgment interest through September 16, 2014, s chapter 11 filing date, because it is currenthcastain whether interest accri
subsequent to the chapter 11 filing date will bet phany allowed claim.

In addition to the damages loss accrual, SIGA tegmmsately accrued $3.2 million for PharmAthenet®raeys’ fees and expert expens
related to the case.

See Note 1 for information relating to the Compamylgoing chapter 11 proceedings.
From time to time, the Company is involved in digsuor legal proceedings arising in the ordinamyrse of business. The Company belit

that there is no dispute or litigation pending, eptcas discussed above, that could have, individaalin the aggregate, a material adv
effect on its financial position, results of op&as or cash flows.
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15. Financial Information By Quarter (Unaudited)

2014

Revenues

Selling, general and administrative
Research and development
Patent preparation fees

Litigation accrual

Operating loss

Net loss

Earnings (loss) per share: basic and diluted

2013

Revenues

Selling, general and administrative
Research and development
Patent preparation fees

Litigation accrual
Restructuring charges

Operating loss

Net loss

Earnings (loss) per share: basic and diluted

Three Months Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
(in thousands, except for per share data)
$ 54¢  § 651 $ 1,09¢ $ 84C
3,03¢ 2,74¢ 4,31« 2,42%
2,81% 2,37: 2,742 2,90:
28¢ 22¢ 30¢€ 17C
49 51 175,46t 12,89¢
(5,63¢) (4,749 (181,729 (17,554
(3,387) (2,94%) (240,07) (19,05¢)
$ 0.06) $ (0.06) $ (449 % (0.36)
Three Months Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
(in thousands, except for per share data)
$ 132¢ % 96t $ 2,29: % 934
2,98¢ 3,115 3,21¢ 3,731
3,64¢ 3,131 4,261 2,81¢
45¢ 301 32¢ 332
47 49 51 51
— — — 512
(5,807) (5,639) (5,564) (6,51%)
(4,87¢) (3,067) (4,907) (4,33¢)
$ 0.09 ¢ 0.06) ¢ 0.09 ¢ (0.0¢)
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accounté&on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Cligécutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, &vated the effectiveness of «
disclosure controls and procedures as of DecembeP@®14 in accordance with the framework laternal Control -Integrated Framewol
(2013)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafnhie Treadway Commission. The term “disclosuwatmls and proceduress
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 158e) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 188hagement recognizes that any disclosure ca
and procedures no matter how well designed andatgrgrcan only provide reasonable assurance oénbitheir objectives and managen
necessarily applies its judgment in evaluatingahe&t-benefit relationship of possible controls anacedures.

Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive @ffamnd Chief Financial Officer have concluded that disclosure controls a
procedures were effective as of December 31, 2024 easonable level of assurance.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There have been no changes in our internal coowen financial reporting during the quarter endest®mber 31, 2014 that materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf, our internal control over financial reporting

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaiing adequate internal control over financiglaing, as such term is defir
in Rule 13a-15(f) or Rule 1585(f) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1984ernal control over financial reporting is a pregelesigned
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réjabil financial reporting and the preparation ofaincial statements prepared for exte
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles. Our internal control over finglcreporting includes those policies
procedures that:

a. pertain to the maintenance of records that, inarasle detail, accurately and fairly reflect thansactions and disposition of
Company’s assets;

b. provide reasonable assurance that transactionseapeded as necessary to permit preparation ohdiah statements in accorda
with generally accepted accounting principles, Hrad receipts and expenditures of the Company airgglmade only in accordar
with authorizations of management and the direabthe Company; and

c. provide reasonable assurance regarding preveotitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose or disposition of the Company’
assets that could have a material effect on tlenéial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or d@¢taisstatements. Also, projectic
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future pesiage subject to the risk that controls may becimagequate because of changes in condi
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

Our management conducted an evaluation of thetafé@ess of our internal control over financial sgpng as of December 31, 2(
using the framework itnternal Control - Integrated Framework (2018sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrike Treadwa
Commission. Based on this evaluation using the CQ@8tria, management concluded that the Comgamternal control over financ
reporting was effective as of December 31, 2014.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fioial reporting as of December 31, 2014 has beditealiby PricewaterhouseCoof
LLP, an independent registered public accounting,fas stated in their report which appears herein.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporge Governance

Information required by this item is incorporatestdin by reference to our definitive proxy statetrfenthe 2015 Annual Meeting
Stockholders.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information required by this item is incorporatestdin by reference to our definitive proxy statetrfenthe 2015 Annual Meeting
Stockholders.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

Information required by this item is incorporatestdin by reference to our definitive proxy statetrfenthe 2015 Annual Meeting
Stockholders.

Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table sets forth certain compensaptan information with respect to compensation plas of December 31, 2014:

Number of Securities to be Weighted-average Number of Securities
Issued Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of Available for Future
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Issuance under Equity
Warrants, Rights and Warrants, Rights and
Plan Category Restricted Stock Units(1) Restricted Stock Units Compensation Plans (2)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders 3,899,35. $ 4.1% 1,572,56!
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders — N/A —
Total 3,899,35: 1,572,56!

(1) Consists of the 1996 Incentive and Non-QuadifStock Option Plan and the 2010 Stock Incentiaa.P
(2) Consists of the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

Information required by this item is incorporatestdin by reference to our definitive proxy statetrfenthe 2015 Annual Meeting
Stockholders.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
Information required by this item is incorporatestdin by reference to our definitive proxy statetrfenthe 2015 Annual Meeting

Stockholders.
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) (1) and (2). Financial Statements and Financi@tatements Schedule.

See Index to Financial Statements under Item & IPhereof where these documents are listed.

(@) (3). Exhibits.

The following is a list of exhibits:

Exhibit
No.

Description

3(a)

3(b)

3(c)

4(a)

4(b)

4(c)

4(d)

10(a)

10(b)

10(c)

10(d)

10(e)

10(f)

10(9)

Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Compamcdrporated by reference to the FornB SRegistration Statement of t
Company dated May 10, 2000 (No. 333-36682)).

Form of Certificate of Amendment of the Restatedtifieate of Incorporation of SIGA Technologies,cln(incorporated b
reference to the Proxy Statement on Schedule 14Aeo€ompany dated June 15, 2007).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (incatpd by reference to the Annual Report on FornKd-the Company fc
the year ended December 31, 2008), as amendea ntlendment to the Bylaws of the Company (incorfaatdy reference to tl
Current Report on Form 8-K of the Company filed b2, 2009).

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated bjerence to the Form SB-Registration Statement of the Company d
March 10, 1997 (No. 333-23037)).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Aug@st2D03, between the Company and MacAndrews & Fotbeldings Inc
(incorporated by reference to the Current Repoffam 8-K of the Company filed on August 18, 2003).

Form of Warrant to purchase shares of common sbétke Company, issued to MacAndrews & Forbes, ldrCJune 19, 20C
(incorporated by reference to the Current Repoffam 8-K of the Company filed on June 23, 2008).

Form of Consideration Warrant issued to MacAndrév$orbes, LLC on April 30, 2013 (incorporated byfemence to th
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company fiedMay 15, 2013).

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of AugdisPd03, between the Company and MacAndrews & Fotbeldings Inc
(incorporated by reference to the Current Repoffam 8-K of the Company filed on August 18, 2003).

Letter Agreement dated October 8, 2003 among thepaoy, MacAndrews & Forbes Holdings Inc. and TrawirPharma, Ini
(incorporated by reference to the Current Repoffam 8-K of the Company filed on August 18, 2003).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dateof dsnuary 22, 2007, between the Company and BeBniHruby
(incorporated by reference to the Current Repoffam 8-K of the Company filed on January 22, 2007)

Amended Employment Agreement dated December 311,201January 27, 2007 Employment Agreement (asndet betwee
the Company and Dr. Hruby (incorporated by refeeeiacthe Current Report on Fornmk8ef the Company filed on December
2011).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dateaf danuary 22, 2007, between the Company and BeBniHruby
(incorporated by reference to the Current Repoffam 8-K of the Company filed on January 22, 2007)

Amended Employment Agreement dated December 311,201January 27, 2007 Employment Agreement (asndet betwee
the Company and Dr. Hruby (incorporated by refeeetocthe Current Report on Fornmk8ef the Company filed on December
2011).

Letter Agreement, dated as of June 19, 2008, betweeCompany and MacAndrews & Forbes, LLC (incoaped by reference

tha Cilirrant Dannrt nn Enrn_ nf tha Camnanv filad An Tiina 22 2Nr



10(h) Employment Agreement, dated as of January 31, 208Wyeen the Company and Eric A. Rose (incorporbteceference to tr
Current Report on Form R-of the Company filed on January 31, 2007), asrated and restated (as set forth in the Current R

on Form 8-K of the Company filed on November 170&0

10(i) Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated March2DD9, between the Company and Dennis E. Hruby (ocated by
reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K ofG@lenpany filed on March 12, 2009).

78




10())

10(K)

10(l)

10(m)

10(n)

10(0)

10(p)

10(q9)

10(r)

10(s)

10(t)

10(u)

10(v)

10(w)

10(x)

Employment Agreement dated as of February 10, 2b&tyeen SIGA and Daniel J. Luckshire (incorpordigdeference to tr
Current Report on Form 8-K of the Company filedrabruary 16, 2011).

2010 Stock Incentive Plan dated May 13, 2010 (ipoated by reference to the Definitive Proxy Statehon Schedule 14A of tl
Company filed on April 12, 2010).

Amendment to the SIGA Technologies, Inc. 2010 Stackentive Plan (incorporated by reference to theréht Report on Form 8-
K of the Company filed on May 17, 2011).

Deferred Closing and Registration Rights Agreemdated as of June 18, 2010, between MacAndrews &dsoLLC and th
Company (incorporated by reference to the Curremdr on Form 8-K of the Company filed on JuneZZ?10).

Contract dated as of May 13, 2011, between SIGA thrdBiomedical Advanced Research and Developmerhdikity of the
United States Department of Health and Human Sesviportions of this exhibit have been omitted separately filed with th
Securities and Exchange Commission with a requestdnfidential treatment) (incorporated by refeemo the Current Report
Form 8-K of the Company filed on May 17, 2011).

Amendment of Solicitation/Modification of Contragated as of June 24, 2011, to Agreement dated &apfl3, 2011, betwee
SIGA and the Biomedical Advanced Research and Dewedént Authority of the United States DepartmenHe#lth and Huma
Services (portions of this exhibit have been orditted separately filed with the Securities and Brge Commission with
request for confidential treatment) (incorporatgddference to the Current Report on Forrid 8f the Company filed on June :
2011).

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated Januay2@@7, between the Company and Dr. Dennis Hrubgo(porated b
reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K ofGleenpany filed on December 27, 2011).

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated Novemi@er2008, between the Company and Dr. Eric Rosei(porated b
reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K ofGleenpany filed on January 13, 2012).

Amendment to the SIGA 2010 Stock Incentive Plasdiporated by reference to the Current Report amR&K of the Compan
filed on February 2, 2012).

Director Compensation Program, effective Januarf01,2 (incorporated by reference to the DefinitRrexy Statement on For
DEF 14A of the Company filed on April 27, 2012).

Amendment of Solicitation/Modification of Contradated as of September 28, 2011, to Agreement deteaf May 13, 201:
between SIGA and the Biomedical Advanced ReseandnDevelopment Authority of the United States Dépant of Health an
Human Services (portions of this exhibit have besritted and separately filed with the Securitied Bxchange Commission wi
a request for confidential treatment) (incorporaigdeference to the Quarterly Report on FormQL6f the Company filed on Mz
7,2012).

Amendment of Solicitation/Modification of Contragated as of October 7, 2011, to Agreement dated By 13, 2011, betwee
SIGA and the Biomedical Advanced Research and Dewedént Authority of the United States DepartmenHeflth and Huma
Services (portions of this exhibit have been orditted separately filed with the Securities and Brge Commission with
request for confidential treatment) (incorporatgddference to the Quarterly Report on Form@.6f the Company filed on May
2012).

Amendment of Solicitation/Modification of Contraatated as of January 25, 2012 to Agreement, datefiday 13, 2011, betwes
SIGA and the Biomedical Advanced Research and Dewetnt Authority of the United States DepartmenHeflth and Huma
Services (portions of this exhibit have been ordittexd separately filed with the Securities and Brgfe Commission with
request for confidential treatment) (incorporatgddference to the Quarterly Report on Form@.6f the Company filed on May
2012).

Amendment of Solicitation/Modification of Contradated as of February 7, 2012, to Agreement, dasedfaMay 13, 2011
between SIGA and the Biomedical Advanced ReseandhDeevelopment Authority of the United States Dépant of Health an
Human Services (incorporated by reference to that®ry Report on Form 10-Q of the Company filed\bay 7, 2012).

Amendment to the SIGA 2010 Stock Incentive Plasdiporated by reference to the Current Report amR&K of the Compan






10(aa)

10(bb)

10(cc)

10(dd)

10(ee)

10(ff)

10(g9)

10(hh)

10(ii)

10(j)

10(kK)
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Amendment of Solicitation/Modification of Contradéited as of December 19, 2012, to Agreement, deted May 13, 2011,
between SIGA and the Biomedical Advanced ReseardiDeevelopment Authority of the United States Dépant of Health and
Human Services (portions of this exhibit have bewritted and separately filed with the Securitied Bxchange Commission with
a request for confidential treatment) (incorporadigdeference to the Annual Report on Form 10-khef Company filed on March
6, 2013).

Amendment of Solicitation/Modification of Contradated as of February 28, 2013, to Agreement, deeaaf May 13, 2011,
between SIGA and the Biomedical Advanced ReseardiDeevelopment Authority of the United States Dépant of Health and
Human Services (incorporated by reference to theudhReport on Form 10-K of the Company filed onréfel0, 2014).

Amendment of Solicitation/Modification of Contradated as of April 9, 2013, to Agreement, datedfaday 13, 2011, between
SIGA and the Biomedical Advanced Research and D@eweént Authority of the United States Departmeritie&lth and Human
Services (incorporated by reference to the Anngld® on Form 10-K of the Company filed odlarch 10, 2014).

Commercial Manufacturing Agreement, dated August22d.1, by and between Albemarle Corporation ar@@AS(portions of this
exhibit have been omitted and separately filed WithSecurities and Exchange Commission with aggtfior confidential
treatment) (incorporated by reference to the QusrReport on Form 10-Q of the Company filed on Bmber 4, 2014).

Addendum #1 to Commercial Manufacturing Agreemedated December 21, 2012, to Commercial Manufagjuligreement,
dated August 25, 2011, by and between Albemarl@&@ation and SIGA (portions of this exhibit havebemitted and separately
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissidth & request for confidential treatment) (incogted by reference to the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company fi@dNovember 4, 2014).

Addendum #2 to Commercial Manufacturing Agreemelatted July 1, 2013, to Commercial Manufacturing esgnent, date
August 25, 2011, by and between Albemarle Corpamadind SIGA (portions of this exhibit have been ttedi and separately fil¢
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witbcuest for confidential treatment) (incorporatgddference to the Quartel
Report on Form 10-Q of the Company filed on Noventhe2014).

Addendum #3 to Commercial Manufacturing Agreemelatted July 2, 2014, to Commercial Manufacturing esgnent, date
August 25, 2011, by and between Albemarle Corpmmnagind SIGA (portions of this exhibit have been ttedi and separately file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witbcuest for confidential treatment) (incorporatgddference to the Quartel
Report on Form 10-Q of the Company filed on Noventhe2014).

Stipulation and Interim Order Regarding Use of Cé&sillateral and Adequate Protection, dated Septertlde 2014, by an
between SIGA and General Electric Capital Corporaijincorporated by reference to the Current RepartForm 8K of the
Company filed on September 18, 2014) (incorporatedeference to the Quarterly Report on FormQLof the Company filed ¢
November 4, 2014).

Commercial Sublease New York City, dated Januar2(d,3, by and between MacAndrews & Forbes GroupC ldnd SIG/
Technologies, Inc. (incorporated by reference éoQ@uarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Companylfde November 4, 2014).

Commercial Lease, dated December 23, 1997, by ahdekn Research Way Investments and SIGA Techrespgiic. Secon
Addendum, dated January 22, 2002 by and betweeeaR#dsWay Investments and SIGA Technologies, Mikitd Addendum
dated July 16, 2004 by and between Research Wastiments and SIGA Technologies, Inc.; Fourth Addemddated October
2004 by and between Research Way Investments dB4 $echnologies, Inc.; Fifth Addendum, dated Japur2007 by an
between Research Way Investments and SIGA Techieslotnc.; Sixth Addendum, dated January 1, 2008abg betwee
Research Way Investments and SIGA Technologies, $®venth Addendum, dated March 1, 2010 by angdmt Research Wi
Investments and SIGA Technologies, Inc.; Eight Adtien, dated June 1, 2011 by and between Researghind@stments an
SIGA Technologies, Inc.; and Ninth Addendum, datvember 2, 2012 by and between Research Way messgs and SIG,
Technologies, Inc. (incorporated by reference éoQ@uarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Companylfde November 4, 2014).

Stipulation and Interim Order Regarding Use of C&sillateral and Adequate Protection, dated Septerie 2014, by an
between SIGA Technologies, Inc. and General Elec@apital Corporation (incorporated by referencehi® Current Report ¢
Form 8-K of the Company filed on September 18, 2014

The Company's Code of Ethics and Business Condumbrporated by reference to the Annual Report omF10KSB of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2003).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this repot
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(Registrant)

Date: March 6, 2015 By: /sl Eric A. Rose
Eric A. Rose, M.D.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpwhe following persons
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Signature Title of Capacities Date
/sl Eric A. Rose
Eric A. Rose, M.D. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer March 6, 2015

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Daniel J. Luckshire

Daniel J. Luckshire Executive Vice President and March 6, 2015
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)

/sl James J. Antal
James J. Antal Director March 6, 2015

/sl Michael J. Bayer
Michael J. Bayer Director March 6, 2015

/sl Thomas E. Constance
Thomas E. Constance Director March 6, 2015

/sl Jeffrey Kindler
Jeffrey Kindler Director March 6, 2015

/sl Joseph Marshall
Joseph Marshall Director March 6, 2015

/s/ Paul G. Savas
Paul G. Savas Director March 6, 2015

/s/ Bruce Slovin
Bruce Slovin Director March 6, 2015

/s/ Andrew Stern
Andrew Stern Director March 6, 2015
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtiee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N83:-1383101, 333-167329, 333-112935,
333-56216 and 333-35992) of SIGA Technologies, dfi@ur report dated March 6, 2015 relating tofthaencial statements and the
effectiveness of internal control over financighoeting, which appears in this Form-1.

/sl PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

New York, New York
March 6, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

Certification by Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Eric A. Rose, M.D., certify that:

| have reviewed this annual report on FornKléF SIGA Technologies, Inc
Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtade a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,aher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure conteoid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresgused such disclosure controls and procedares tiesigned under «
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr; or caused such internal control over finahi@orting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repodimnd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtihis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contral$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in theistegnt's internal control over financial reporting thatcomred during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrdts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finateeporting; and

5. The registran$’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal abrdver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitasmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakresssn the design or operation of internal contneérofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinancia
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 6, 2015

/sl Eric A. Rose
Eric A. Rose, M.D.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

Certification by Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Daniel J. Luckshire, certify that:

| have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F SIGA Technologies, Inc
Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtade a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,aher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure conteoid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresgused such disclosure controls and procedares tiesigned under «
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr; or caused such internal control over finahi@orting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repodimnd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtihis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contral$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in theistegnt's internal control over financial reporting thatcomred during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrdts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finateeporting; and

5. The registran$’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal abrdver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitasmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakresssn the design or operation of internal contneérofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinancia
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 6, 2015

/s/ Daniel J. Luckshire
Daniel J. Luckshire

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of SIGA Techogies, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form X0for the period ended December
2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report})Eric A. Rose, M.D., Chief Executive Officer
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 8 1280adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarley Act of 2002, that to the best
my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementseétion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934; an

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanmialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

A signed original of this written statement reqdifgy Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyvall be retained by tt
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@uammission or its staff upon request.

/sl Eric A. Rose

Eric A. Rose, M.D.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
March 6, 2015




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of SIGA Techogies, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form X0for the period ended December
2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Csion on the date hereof (the “Report;)Daniel J. Luckshire, Executive Vice Presic
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certifjursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted purdoaBection 906 of the Sarban@siey
Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementseétion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934; an

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanmdaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

A signed original of this written statement reqdifgy Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyvall be retained by tt
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@ammission or its staff upon request.

/sl Daniel J. Luckshire

Daniel J. Luckshire

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
March 6, 2015




